From: DPH-DOC Plans Sit Stat

To: Aram.bronston@acgov.org; mhccsitreps&resourcerequests@cdph.ca.gov; DPH-Integration Steering Committee;
EMSADutyOfficer@EMSA.ca.gov; cdphdutyofficer@cdph.ca.gov; chess@ncric.ca.gov;
CoastalRegion@CalOES.ca.gov; DutyOfficer, DEM (DEM)

Subject: SFDPH DOC Incident Action Plan (IAP) for Operational Period 7
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 3:47:00 PM
Attachments: OP7 COVID-19 IAP 2020.02.28 FINAL.pdf

Please find attached SFDPH DOC Incident Action Plan (IAP) for Operational Period 7 (Saturday
2/29/2020 through Friday 3/6/2020).

NOTE: the DPH DOC has changed Operational Period structure to Saturday-Friday. OP7 is now
Saturday 2/29/2020 through Friday 3/6/2020. Please ensure your 214s reflect these dates.
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DOC OBJECTIVES

1. EVENT NAME: 2. DATE / TIME: 3. OPERATIONAL PERIOD (Date/Time):

COVID-19 Activation Feb 28, 2020/12:00 | Mar 2, 2020 — Mar 8, 2020

4. SITUATIONAL UPDATE FOR DPH DOC RESPONSE:

Situation Background (updated 2020-02-26)
Sources: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/summary.html
https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/situation-reports/

CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel (new) coronavirus that was
first detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China and which continues to expand. On February 11, 2020,
the World Health Organization named the disease coronavirus disease 2019 (abbreviated “COVID-19”).
Chinese health officials have reported tens of thousands of cases of COVID-19 in China, with the virus
reportedly spreading from person-to-person in parts of that country. COVID-19 illnesses, most of them
associated with travel from Wuhan, also are being reported in a growing number of international locations,
including the United States. Some person-to-person spread of this virus outside China has been detected.
The United States reported the first confirmed instance of person-to-person spread with this virus on
January 30, 2020.

On January 30, 2020, the International Health Regulations Emergency Committee of the World Health
Organization declared the outbreak a “public health emergency of international concern” (PHEIC). On
January 31, 2020, Health and Human Services Secretary Alex M. Azar |l declared a public health
emergency (PHE) for the United States to aid the nation’s healthcare community in responding to COVID-
19. Also on January 31, the President of the United States signed a presidential “Proclamation on
Suspension of Entry as Immigrants and Nonimmigrants of Persons who Pose a Risk of Transmitting 2019
Novel Coronavirus.” These measures were announced at a press briefing by members of the President’s
Coronavirus Task Force.

On February 25, 2020, San Francisco Mayor London Breed declared a local emergency due to COVID-19.
Although there are still zero confirmed cases in San Francisco residents, the global picture is changing
rapidly. On February 24, 2020, the WHO-China joint commission determined although new cases are
declining in China, a sudden increase in new cases globally is concerning. Given the high volume of travel
between SF and mainland China, and the global spread of the virus, there is a growing likelihood San
Francisco will see cases eventually. The declaration of a local emergency will mobilize city resources,
accelerate emergency planning, streamline staffing, coordinate agencies across the city, allow for future
reimbursement by the state and federal governments and raise awareness throughout San Francisco about
how everyone can prepare in the event that COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) appears in San Francisco.

Coronaviruses are a large family of viruses that are common in many different species of animals, including
camels, cattle, cats, and bats. Rarely, animal coronaviruses can infect people and then spread between
people such as with MERS-CoV and SARS-CoV.

There are ongoing investigations to learn more. This is a rapidly evolving situation and information will
be updated as it becomes available.
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Estimation of total number of cases (updated 2020-02-28 at 11:11 PST)

Sources:
https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx

# of Cases/Deaths — Data from JHU CSSE Map
Worldwide: 83, 867 Cases/2,867 Deaths

US: 60 Cases/0 Deaths

CA: 11 cases/0 Deaths

SF: 0 Cases/0 Deaths

Situation Summary in U.S. (CDC updated 2020-02-27)
Source: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/summary.html

Imported cases of COVID-19 infection in travelers have been detected in the U.S. Person-to-person spread
of COVID-19 also has been seen among close contacts of returned travelers from Wuhan, but at this time,
this virus is NOT currently spreading in the community in the United States.

CDC Response (updated 2020-02-27)
Source: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/summary.html

The federal government is working closely with state, local, tribal, and territorial partners as well as public

health partners to respond to this public health threat. The public health response is multi-layered, with the
goal of detecting and minimizing introductions of this virus in the United States so as to reduce the spread
and the impact of this virus.

e CDC established a COVID-19 Incident Management Structure on January 7, 2020. On January 21,
2020, CDC activated its Emergency Operations Center to better provide ongoing support to the
COVID-19 response.

e The U.S. government has taken unprecedented steps with respect to travel in response to the
growing public health threat posed by this new coronavirus:

o Effective February 2, 2020 at 5pm, the U.S. government suspended entry of foreign
nationals who have been in China within the past 14 days.

o U.S. citizens, residents and their immediate family members who have been in Hubei
province and other parts of mainland China are allowed to enter the United States, but they
are subject to health monitoring and possible quarantine for up to 14 days.

o CDC has issued the following travel guidance related to COVID-19:

= China — Level 3, Avoid Nonessential Travel — updated February 22
= South Korea — Level 3, Avoid Nonessential Travel — updated February 24

e CDC isissuing clinical guidance, including:

o CDC issued an interim Health Alert Network (HAN) Update to inform state and local health
departments and healthcare professionals about this outbreak on February 1, 2020.

o On January 30, 2020, CDC published guidance for healthcare professionals on the clinical
care of COVID-19 patients. Updated February 12, 2020.

o On February 3, 2020, CDC posted guidance for assessing the potential risk for various
exposures to COVID-19 and managing those people appropriately. Updated February 8,
2020.

e CDC has deployed multidisciplinary teams to Washington, lllinois, California, and Arizona to assist
health departments with clinical management, contact tracing, and communications.
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e CDC laboratories have supported the COVID-19 response, including:

o CDC has developed a real time Reverse Transcription-Polymerase Chain Reaction (rRT-
PCR) test that can diagnose COVID-19 in respiratory and serum samples from clinical
specimens. On January 24, 2020, CDC publicly posted the assay protocol for this test.
Currently, testing for this virus must take place at CDC.

o CDC has been uploading the entire genome of the viruses from reported cases in the United
States to GenBank as sequencing was completed.

o CDC has grown the COVID-19 virus in cell culture, which is necessary for further studies,
including for additional genetic characterization. The cell-grown virus was sent to NIH’s BEI
Resources Repository_for use by the broad scientific community.

o CDC submitted an Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) package to the U.S. Food and
Drugs Administration on February 3, 2020.

o FDA approved the EUA, on February 4, 2020. On February 5, 2020, CDC test kits were
available for ordering by domestic and international partners through the
agency'’s International Reagent Resource.

Situation Summary in San Francisco (updated 2020-02-27)

There are zero confirmed coronavirus cases at this time in SF. The SF Department of Public Health (DPH)
is working closely with the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the California
Department of Public Health, monitoring the outbreak and preparing a response that protects the public.

DPH activated the DOC on 1/21/2020. CCSF activated the EOC on 1/27/2020. A local emergency was
declared on 02/25/2020.

DPH continues to coordinate with federal, state, regional, City agencies and community partners on
COVID-19 response efforts. Areas of focus include: working with key stakeholders to implement federal
guarantine orders; conducting evaluation of returning travelers; identifying PUI housing options; providing
public information that is accurate and accessible; providing guidance to clinicians; and coordinating with
local healthcare facilities and assessing hospital readiness.

SEDPH DOC Response Activities during previous operational period (updated 2020-02-28)

¢ DPH DOC Operational Period reporting has changed to Saturday-Friday reporting.

e A comprehensive and extensive plan has been developed with multiple DPH and CCSF inter-
agency partners to provide guidance, consultation, and instruction to healthcare providers, hospitals,
outpatient healthcare facilities, and field teams to prepare them for potential COVID-19 patients, as
DPH continues to follow-up with returned travelers from mainland China.

o DPH continues to monitor return travelers from China, with a goal of contact within 72 hours. Line
lists of returning travelers have been coming in and a system has been established by Epi and
Surveillance Branch to manage and track follow up with these travelers.

e DPH is tracking and following up with return travelers from China by phone and/or community
outreach if needed. Children under 19 years of age (and their respective family members) and other
populations who frequent congregate spaces are being prioritized for follow up.

¢ Mayor London Breed declared a local emergency 02/25/20, allowing CCSF to access
additional resources to prepare for potential COVID-19 cases in SF.

e SFDPH DOC expanded community outreach and mitigation efforts, working closely with the CCSF
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) in anticipation of increased inquiries due to the declaration of
a local emergency.




https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/lab/index.html

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/grows-virus-cell-culture.html

https://www.niaid.nih.gov/research/bei-resources-repository

https://www.niaid.nih.gov/research/bei-resources-repository

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/testing.html

https://www.internationalreagentresource.org/



e SFDPH is focusing on providing a comprehensive picture of past and current preparation and
mitigation efforts, forward leaning departmental objectives, and the data and information being used
to guide the work.

e SFDPH and the EOC are collaborating to create a process for routing briefing and other
informational requests (from media and non-media sources) to the appropriate channels.

¢ SFDPH drafted guidelines for housing plans for confirmed COVID-19 cases, potential COVID-19
cases, and medium risk individuals who live in congregate living situations including Single Room
Occupancies (SROs).

o SFDPH completed a preparedness consultation site visit to Chinese Hospital 02/25/20 and UCSF
Mission Bay today 02/26/20.

e SF Public Health Laboratory is strengthening their safety measures for lab personnel, including
enhanced Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) requirements.

o SF Public Health Laboratory is still awaiting delivery of CDC testing kits. CDC reported they will
have a ship date for the testing kits by the end of this week.

e SFDPH is updating their COVID-19 Fact Sheet to include the most recent updates and align
messaging and information across DPH and CCSF sites.

e SFDPH Public Information Office recently completed a COVID-19 prevention focused informational

poster, which will soon be displayed on BART Trains.

e SFDPH CDCP information: https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-
novel-coronavirus/

5. OBJECTIVES/ACTIVITIES FOR OPERATIONAL PERIOD (overarching departmental citywide

objectives)
OBJECTIVE ACTIVITIES RESPONSIBLE Status
SECTION/UNIT/BRANCH
1. Protect the 1.1 Transmission containment 1.1 Containment Branch 1.1 In Progress
public and 1.2 Develop notification and 1.2 Medical Branch 1.2 In Progress
vulnerable referral process for SF 1.3 Info & Guidance 1.3 In Progress
populations healthcare facilities 1.4 Medical Branch/EMS | 1 4 |n Progress

1.3 Review and adapt CDC
healthcare and infection control
guidelines

1.4 Develop EMS transport plan

1.5 Identify personnel to fill the role
of Equity Officer to ensure
protection of impacted
communities

1.6 Identify Community Outreach
Branch roles, responsibilities
and staff

1.7 Develop guidance to inform
plans that address vulnerable
populations in congregate
settings

1.8 Develop policy decisions
specific to closures, e.g.
schools, public events, etc.

1.5 Plans/IC

1.6 Plans/IC

1.7 Info & Guidance/
Community/ESF 6
1.8 Policy Group/IC/
Community

1.5 In Progress
1.6 In Progress
1.7 In Progress
1.8 Not Started
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2. Support the
Communicable
Disease
surveillance and
laboratory testing

2.1 Maintain tracking system and
develop line list for PUIs

2.2 Conduct verification test for
CDC-provided COVID-19 test
kit, upon receiving the test kit

2.1 Epi & Surveillance
2.2 Lab

2.3 Lab

2.4 Logistics

2.5 Clinical Consult Team

2.1 Ongoing
2.2 In Progress
2.3 Not Started
2.4 In progress
2.5 Ongoing

infrastructure. 2 3 Perform COVID-19 lab tests on | 2-6 !nf_o & Guio_lanlce/ ) 2.6 In Progress
PUI samples (contingenton | 236 \iedical Branch | 2.8 In Progress
comple_:tlon of Objective 2.3) 2.8 Info & Guidance/ 2.9 Ongoing
2.4 Expedite resource requests Medical Branch 2.10 In Progress
and hiring process for 2.9 IC/Operations/ 2.11 Ongoing
additional staff to support Logistics 2.12 Not Started
Operations activities 2.10 Info & Guidance
2.5 Provide guidance to clinicians 2.11 Info & Guidance
and conduct patient follow up 2.12 Epi & Surveillance/
2.6 ldentify additional nurse staff Logs
for field investigation teams to
deploy for patient follow-up
2.7 Coordinate and provide PPE
training and fit testing to field
teams
2.8 Develop clinician FAQs sheet
and talking points to support
Clinical Consult Team
2.9 Build infrastructure to contact,
interview, and monitor returning
travelers
2.10 Develop and prioritize all
healthcare system guidance
2.11 Develop EMS advisory
guidelines
2.12  Develop infrastructure to
receive, answer and manage
data requests
3. Maintain 3.1 Establish regular 3.1 IC/Plans/Med Health | 3.1 Ongoing
situational communication with key 3.2PIO 3.2 Ongoing
awareness and partners (EMS, DEM, CDPH, 3.3 PIO 3.3 Ongoing
provide mgssaging Healthcare Facilities) 3.4 PIO 3.4 Ongoing
to the public 3.2 Coordinate with ABAHO JIC on | 3-5 PIO/DPH HR 3.51In Prqgress
regional media messages, g? E:gﬁ:g gg 8292:29
3.3 Develop communications, 3.8 PIOLIIC 3.8 Ongoing
education, and outreach plan 3:9 PIO/JIC 3:9 Ongoing
for Chinese Community 3.10 Plans 3.10 In progress

3.4 Update public information on
digital sources, as needed

3.5 Refine the DHR messaging for
City staff to include DPH HR






messaging and disseminate to
DPH staff

3.6 Provide updates to elected
officials

3.7 Rumor control — ensure that
accurate information is posted
on various media outlets

3.8 Provide preparedness info to
the public through the media,
published materials and
outreach

3.9 Assess and meet needs for
public information — for
example, masks,
discrimination, cancelling
events, defining the virus, rules
for returning travelers

3.10 Coordinate with DEM to
align communications,
meetings, info sharing.

4. Maintain
situational
awareness on
medical surge and
support healthcare
facilities

4.1 Develop clinical guidelines

4.2 Develop a dissemination
strategy

4.3 Monitor and prepare the
healthcare system (Hospitals,
EMS) for potential surge

4.4 Provide information on hospital
readiness to CDPH

4.5 Engage primary care and
outpatient clinics to mitigate
hospital surge

4.6 Develop messaging and
guidance to health care facilities
around N95 masks and appropriate
screening procedures

4.1 Info & Guidance

4.2 |IC/Operations

4.3 Medical Branch

4.4 Medical Branch

4.5 Medical Branch

4.6 PIO/ Info & Guidance/
Medical Branch

4.1 In Progress
4.2 In Progress
4.3 In Progress
4.4 In Progress
4.5 In Progress
4.6 In Progress

5. Develop
advance planning
strategy

5.1 Identify events/or conditions

likely to occur for future operational

periods and anticipated resource

needs

5.2 ldentify potential impacts if

COVID-19 establishes itself in San

Francisco

5.3 Maintain DPH'’s continuity of
operations

5.4 Develop policy and criteria for
potential special event

5.1 Plans Section

5.2 Advance Planning
Team

5.3 IC/Command
54I1C

5.1 In progress
5.2 In progress
5.3 In progress
5.4 In progress
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| | cancellation | |

6. MAJOR DECISIONS/POLICY CHANGES

City attorney has adopted modified isolation & home quarantine orders.

There is a need to further expand DOC capacity to meet operational objectives.

Additional DOC positions will be activated and DPH staff identified to fill these roles.

The DOC will also begin to schedule shift changes to provide activated staff with rest periods.
The CDC has shifted its messaging to prepare for the possible community transmission. DPH will
begin to shift its messaging to align with CDC.

e Mayor London Breed declared a local emergency on February 25, 2020.

7. DPH DOC SAFETY MESSAGE
DOC staff — Remember to take breaks, eat, and hydrate, as needed, to avoid fatigue
Field teams — work with the DOC Safety Officer regarding PPE requirements

8. DPH DOC DOCUMENTS/PRODUCTS DEVELOPED (Include title, name of Branch/Group that
developed, and location of document) All final documents uploaded onto TEAMSs site

a. DOC Staff Tracking | Logistics | Teams/Files/Logistics/Personnel/Staffing
b. 214 Timekeeping Workflow | Finance | Teams/Files/Finance

c. 2019 Novel Coronavirus Guidance for Child Care and Preschool Settings |
Teams/Files/Operations/Containment

d. Preparing Your Clinic for COVID-19 (2/14/20)

e. COVID-19 Clinical Intake Form and Worksheet (2/18/20)

f. Process for 7 + 14 Day Check-In and Generating Release Letter |
Teams/Files/Operations/Containment
Release 14-Day Letter | Teams/Files/Operations/Containment
Frequently Asked Questions from Return Travelers | Teams/Files/Operations/Containment

Housing Options by Risk Tiers Grid | Teams/Files/Operations/Containment

Timeline_Master DPH COVID19 starting 2020-01-20 updated 2020-02-25.xIs |
Teams/Files/Plans/Documentation/Timeline

- TTa

9. MAJOR PROBLEMS OR CONCERNS

DOC Staffing
Additional staffing is needed in multiple DOC sections to meet expanding operational objectives and
planned shift changes.

e DOC staff redundancy immediate need for:
o Operations Chief
Operations Deputy
Medical Health Branch Lead
Logistics Chief
Investigation Group Lead
Logistics section should be expanded to assist with Call Center staffing and scheduling.

O O O O

PUI Housing
PUIs who are symptomatic but not sick enough to be hospitalized will need housing options. DPH DOC, in




https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-coronavirus/coronavirus-2019-information-for-healthcare-providers/preparing-clinic-for-covid19-14feb2020/

https://www.sfcdcp.org/clinical-intake-covid19-18feb2020/



collaboration with other City Agencies and partners, need to solidify housing options for SF PUI's and
potentially non-SF residents identified at airport who may need to be housed locally. A minor plan is in
place and a follow-up meeting will be scheduled to identify additional options.

DPH needs to identify a team to work on how housing will be provided to PUIs who cannot home isolate.
Once formed, DPH team will work with City Agencies through the EOC as part of the Care and Shelter
Branch to operationalize plan and identify possible locations.

PUI Protocol
There are gaps in developing the PUI protocol in the following areas: safe transport (to/from SFO airport,
patient homes, medical facilities, and housing facilities), methods to track all contacts, and data entry.

DPH DOC

There is a need to evaluate the physical location of our DOC, Clinical Consultation call center, and
Returning Traveler Call Center. Both are currently reserved through the end of February; extension of
current room reservations or alternate physical locations should be addressed.

Recommendation to use DOC emails to assist with transition of communication and knowledge as shift
changes.

DPH DOC PLANNING

There is a need to better track the progress DOC Objectives and Activities. The Objectives and Activities
are being worked on but we need to implement tracking systems that allow us to better report our status
and actions.

Resource Allocation

Travis AFB is one of the designated federal quarantine sites for persons repatriated to the US. Notification
processes to transport persons from Travis AFB to local hospitals are unclear. Federal, state, and local
agencies are working to identify gaps in the notification process to ensure communication with local
jurisdiction and consideration for resource allocation at the state and local levels.

DOC Physical Location

Need to evaluate physical location of Call Centers and DOC workstations. Additional meeting room is
needed. Considerations include relocation of workstations from 5" floor conference room to space at 30
Van Ness. Will need to consider reserving all conference rooms in 25 Van Ness for DOC use.

Operations Challenges and Concerns

= Operations branch leaders must be on the line or in attendance at meetings
= Need to be prepared for possible strategy change in consideration of the following:
o Community transmission
o PUI criteria change
o Positive SF cases
= Containment Branch Concerns/Questions:
= Should the Returning Traveler Call Center remain open on weekends?
= Decisions regarding the 7-day check in process
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a. How many attempts at each check in: 3 attempts on both day 7 and day 14; or 1 attempt
on day 7 and 3 attempts on day 14
b. How we should group the return travelers who are currently between 7 and 14 days
c. When we should begin the 7-day check in process, since we just started piloting the 14
day.
=  Where and how to document branch SMART goals
= Need guidance document for long term care facilities (highest risk patients)
a. Need to reach out to contacts at these facilities
= Not getting enough federal community outreach guidance
= CPMC Van Ness isolation mask supply short
= PUI Transportation Plan
a. Will need to be documented
b. Should include various possibilities including
i. Self-transport
ii. Ride-share transport
c. Question if county cars can use used for transport?
i. Must consider:

1. Safety
2. Training
3. Availability

Out of jurisdiction patient transport to SF without adequate notification to SF Health Officer
Need to identify return travelers who may have identified SRO as place of stay
Lab testing limitations
Questions that arose:
a. Can nurses serve quarantine/isolation orders?
b. What lab kit is CDPH using?
c. Can we use same lab-kit as CDPH?
= EH input needed regarding SROs

Finance

Some employees only submit time on a bi-weekly basis which could be confusing alongside instructions to
submit 214 forms according to the weekly activation period. For now, guidance is to prepare 214 forms in
alignment with the activation period (weekly) and submit them at the same time as you submit your time.

10. Weather Conditions/Forecast/Events
Source: https://www.noaa.gov/

Monday 3/2 - Sunny, with a high near 64.
Tuesday 3/3 - Sunny, with a high near 65.
Wednesday 3/4 - Sunny, with a high near 65.

Prepared By: Date/Time: Feb 28, 2020/ 18:00
Alecia Martin, Plans Situation Status Unit
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COMMUNICATIONS LIST

EVENT NAME:
COVID-19 Activation

2/28/2020

DATE/TIME PREPARED:

OPERATIONAL PERIOD
OP #7 2/29/2020-03/06/2020

DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATIONS INFORMATION

POSITION | NAME | LOCATION | PHONE # | EMAIL | RADIO

DOC Staff
. 415.554.2769 office
Incident Commander Naveena Bobba DOC 415-518-8772 mobile naveena.bobba@sfdph.org
. . . 415-554-2898 office
Policy Group Tomas Aragén DOC 415-515-5734 mobile tomas.aragon@sfdph.org
) . 415-437-6343 office -
CD/Info Officer Juliet Stoltey 25 Van Ness 415-860-2295 mobile juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org
. . . 628-217-6348 office . .

Operations SME Amie DuBois 25 Van Ness (650) 270-6874 mobile amie.dubois@sfdph.org

. ) 415-554-2507 office
P10/Media Officer Rachael Kagan 101 Grove 415-420-5017 mobile rachael.kagan@sfdph.org
PIO/Media Officer Veronica Vien 101 Grove 415-438-0263 office veronica.vien@sfdph.org

. ) . 415-554-2928 office .
PIO/Media Officer Linda Acosta 101 Grove 415-828-6757 mobile linda.acosta@sfdph.org

. ) - . 628-206-7174 office _ .
P10/Media Officer Cristina Padilla ZSFGH 650-267-0925 mobile cristina.padilla@sfdph.org

. ) 628-206-6995 office
PIO/Media Officer Brent Andrew ZSFGH 415-530-1199 mobile brent.andrew@sfdph.org

) . 415-554-2797 office .
Safety Officer Ed Ochi 101 Grove 415-205-3620 mobile ed.ochi@sfdph.org

. ) . 628-206-7687 office . .
Liaison Officer Israel Nieves 101 Grove 415-810-2202 mobile israel.nieves@sfdph.org
. . 415-554-2592 office .
HR Liaison Michael Brown 101 Grove 415-722-7407 mobile michael.brown@sfdph.org
. . : . 628-206-7638 office i,

Operations Section Chief Susan Philip 25 Van Ness 415-533-7015 mobile susan.philip@sfdph.org
Deputy Ops Chief TBD

. . - 415-759-2310 office -
Ops Section Documentation | Olivia Thanh 25 Van Ness 415-637-8493 mobile Olivia.thanh@sfdph.org
Info & Guidance Branch David Stier (L) 101 Grove 415-554-2648 office david.stier@sfdph.org

. . 415-437-6244 office .
Info & Guidance Branch Rita Nguyen 25 Van Ness 408-209-7518 mobile rita.nguyen@sfdph.org
Info & Guidance Support (415) 554-2887
Staff Kenya Thomas 25 Van Ness Mobile not available kenya.thomas@sfdph.org
Dissemination Group Erin Bachus (EMS) 90 Van Ness 628-206-7652 office erin.bachus@sfdph.org
Dissemination Group Frank Strona 90 Van Ness frank.strona@sfdph.org ; tfhs3@cdc.gov
Content Group Kelly Johnson 415-221-4810 ext. 2129 kjohnson@ucsf.edu
Content Group Tamara Ooms 415-407-4502 mobile Tamara.ooms@sfdph.org
Containment Branch Mivic Hirose 101 Grove 628-206-1250 office mivic.d.hirose@sfdph.org
1&Q Returning Travelers Karen Luk Karen.luk@sfdph.org
1&Q Returning Travelers Wendy Lu 628-217-6268 office wendy.lu@sfdph.org
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Restriction Exclusion &
Clearance

Michael Paquette

628-217-6224 office
415-846-0898

michael.paquette @sfdph.org

Community Outreach &
Mitigation

John Melichar

John.melichar@sfdph.org

Community Outreach

Education Curtis Chan 30 Van Ness 415-575-5672 office curtis.chan@sfdph.org
Community Outreach Consuelo Martinez Consuelo.martinez@sfdph.org
. 415-558-5947 office
Medical Branch Kenpou Saelee 30 Van Ness 510-685-7595 mobile kenpou.saelee@sfdph.org
SFHN Liaisons Albert Yu ZSFG 628-206-1170 office albert.yu@sfdph.org
. . 415-206-3525 office . :
SFHN Liaisons Jeff Schmidt (ZSFG) ZSFG 415-235-7053 mobile jeffrey.schmidt@sfdph.org
. . 415-759-4545 office . .
SFHN Liaisons John Grimes (LHH) LHH 510-219-6421 mobile john.grimes@sfdph.org
. L 415-759-3321 office Lo
SFHN Liaisons Kim Lin LHH 510-915-1535 mobile kim.lin@sfdph.org
. N . 415-558-5917 office .
Hospital Coordination Amy Ovadia 30 Van Ness 925-900-8545 mobile amy.ovadia@sfdph.org
. R 415-759-3596 office
Outpatient Coordination Anna Robert 30 Van Ness 415-244-2089 mobile anna.robert@sfdph.org
Occupational Health/ . 415-554-2797 office .
Infection Control Ed Ochi 101 Grove 415-205-3620 mobile ed.ochi@sfdph.org
Occupatlonal Health/ Karen Heckman 101 Grove (415) 554-2762 office karen.heckman@sfdph.org
Infection Control
Andrew Holcomb (Weekend 415-487-5018 office
EMSA Coverage) 90 Van Ness 312-246-2125 mobile andrew.holcomb@sfdph.org
415-487-5034 office .
EMSA - MHOAC John Brown 90 Van Ness 415-760-8548 mobile john.brown@sfdph.org
EMSA Support Staff Ryan Seymour 90 Van Ness 415-487-5032 office ryan.seymour@sfdph.org
90 Van Ness 415-487-5049 office .
EMSA Support Staff Leo Ishoda 661-466-6989 mobile leo.ishoda@sfdph.org
Environmental Health . . (415) 252-3926 office . .
Branch Stephanie Cushing 510-703-0875 mobile stephanie.cushing@sfdph.org
. . . 415-437-6356 office :
Epi & Surveillance Branch Wayne Enanoria 25 Van Ness 510-918-0102 mobile wayne.enanoria@sfdph.org
Investigation & PUI Janice Louie DOC 510-910-9968 mobile Janice.louie@sfdph.org
Clinical Consultation Team See Schedule
. . . 415-487-5019 office .
Field Investigation Team Sheilah Zarate 90 Van Ness 925-212-9902 mobile sheilah.zarate @sfdph.org
. . . 628-217-7402 office . .
Surveillance Group Melissa Ongpin 25 Van Ness 415-305-4907 mobile melissa.ongpin@sfdph.org
Surveillance Group Melissa Sanchez 25 Van Ness 415-437-6215 office melissa.sanchez@sfdph.org
. - (415) 252-3952 (office) . L
Data Group Michelle Kirian 25 Van Ness (510) 295-8833 (mobile) michelle kirian@sfdph.org
Data Center Staff See Schedule
Laboratory and Testing Godfred Masinde 101 Grove 415-554-2685 office godfred.masinde@sfdph.org

909-556-5893 mobile
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Laboratory and Testing

Planning Section Deputy

Ejovwoke Ememu

415-554-2903 office
925-451-0665 mobile

ejovwoke.ememu@sfdph.org

415-581-2453 office
909-289-6291 mobile

gabrielle.aldern@sfdph.org

Gretchen Paule

408-306-8783 mobile
415-554-2820 office

Gretchen.paule@sfdph.org

Documentation/Admin

Farah Del Arroz

415-203-8036 office
510-776-7490 mobile

Farah.del-arroz@sfdph.org

628-206-7686 office

415-377-8549 mobile

Documentation Unit Priscilla Chu DOC 510-314-5614 mobile priscilla.chu@sfdph.org
Documentation Unit Cimma Sefat 228-369-0224 mobile Cimma.sefat@sfdph.org
Situation Status Unit Kris L. Watts poc 415-558-5934 office kristina.m.leonoudakis@sfdph.org

Situation Status Unit

Alecia Martin

415-437-6202 office

alecia.martin@sfdph.org

628-217-6226 office

Mobile not available

Demobilization Unit Gary Naja-Riese 25 Van Ness (415)637-2923 mobile gary.naja-riese@sfdph.org
Resource Tracking Unit Karen Yu 415-252-3957 mobile Karen.yu@sfdph.org
. . . . 415-558-5948 office .

Logistics Section Chief Melissa Ta DOC 562-458-1360 mobile melissa.ta@sfdph.org
Deputy Logistics Chief TBD

. . . 628-206-7621 office . .
Personnel Unit Christine Siador 25Van Ness | £10 1998622 mobile christine.siador@sfdph.org
Personnel Unit Staff Karen Hill 415-530-6392 mobile karen.hill@sfdph.org
Personnel Unit Staff . . 510-604-8746 mobile . .
(activation) Niike Andino 415-554-2731 office Niike.andino@sfdph.org
IT Unit Ken Buckley IT 925-783-7351 mobile Ken.buckley@sfdph.org
Supplies Unit Solomon Gebala ZSFG 628-217-6171 mobile Solomon.gebala@sfdph.org
Facilities Unit Isela Ford 510-301-3945 mobile Isela.ford@sfdph.org

. . . 415-613-8431 mobile
Finance Section Chief Drew Murrell 101 Grove 415-554-2539 office drew.murrell@sfdph.org
. . 628-206-7618 office

Deputy Finance Chief Amanda Kwong 25 Van Ness 415-238-2168. mobile amanda.kwong@sfdph.org
Time Tracking/Payroll Unit David Palma 101 Grove 415.554.2546 office david.palma@sfdph.org

Procurement Unit

Katherine Gee 1380 Howard

415-255-3553 office
415-823-7511 mobile

katherine.gee@sfdph.org

415-554-2729 office

Admin Support Anastassia Galant 101 Grove 415-554-2729 mobile anastassia.galant@sfdph.org
DPH Leadership

Director of Health Grant Colfax 101 Grove 415-627-7876 mobile grant.colfax@sfdph.org
Deputy Director Naveena Bobba 101 Grove 415-518-8772 mobile naveena.bobba@sfdph.org

Outside Agency Contact Information

EOC ‘ DEM Duty Officer 1011 Turk St 415-260-2591 demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

SFICS 205 A PREPARED BY: APPROVED BY: DPH DOC
Marisel Brown Gabrielle Aldern

Updated: 2/28/2020 PAGE:
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From: DPH-DOC Plans Sit Stat

To: DPH-COVID-19 DPH Activation 2020; DPH-Integration Steering Committee
Subject: SFDPH Incident Action Plan (IAP)- Operational Period 7

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 3:46:33 PM

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

-- DPH DOC Plans Situation Status
DPH.DOC.Plans.SitStat@sfdph.org
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San Francisco Department of Public Health

Department Operations Center

DOC

INCIDENT ACTION PLAN

COVID-19 Activation

FINAL

Operationa| OP 7 Start Saturday 02-29-2020
Period End Friday 03-06-2020
Accompanying X SF ICS 202- Incident Objectives Event Maps
Documents [] SF ICS 203 — Organization List ]

[X] SF ICS 204 — Assignment List ]

[] SF ICS 205 — Communications Plan ]

B4 SF ICS 205A — Communications List ]

[ ] SF ICS 206 — Medical Plan ]

K] SF ICS 207 — Organization Chart ]

Prepared By Approved By Submitted On
Alecia Martin, Plans — Situation Status  Gabrielle Aldern, Plans Chief 02-28-2020
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SF ICS 202

DPH Department Operations Center

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

***FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY***
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




mailto:michael.paquette@sfdph.org

mailto:kenpou.saelee@sfdph

mailto:albert.yu@sfdph

mailto:Jeffrey.schmidt@sfdph.org

mailto:john.grimes@sfdph

mailto:kim.lin@sfdph

mailto:amy.ovadia@sfdph

mailto:Anna.robert@sfdph.org

mailto:Ed.ochi@sfdph.org

mailto:karen.heckman@sfdph

mailto:Andrew.holcomb@sfdph.org

mailto:john.brown@sfdph.org

mailto:ryan.seymour@sfdph

mailto:leo.ishoda@sfdph.org

mailto:stephanie.cushing@sfdph

mailto:wayne.enanoria@sfdph.org

mailto:Janice.louie@sfdph

mailto:sheilah.zarate@sfdph

mailto:issa.ongpin@sfdph

mailto:kenpou.saelee@sfdph.org

mailto:michelle.kirian@sfdph

mailto:godfred.masinde@sfdph



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
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From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH
Subject: CDC HAN 428: Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 3:32:26 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

You are subscribed to the Health Alert
Network (HAN) for Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC). This
information has recently been updated,
and is now available.

This is an official CDC Health Update

Update and Interim

idan n reak
of Coronavirus

Disease 2019 (COVID-
19)

The Centers for Disease Control
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and Prevention (CDC) continues
to closely monitor and respond
to the COVID-19 outbreak
caused by the novel
coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2.

This CDC Health Alert Network
(HAN) Update provides updated
guidance on evaluating and
testing persons under
investigation (PUls) for COVID-
19. It supersedes guidance
provided in CDC’s HAN 427
distributed on February 1, 2020.
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From: Alameda County Public Health Department

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Subject: Community Preparedness Update for COVID-19

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 3:30:30 PM

Attachments: COVID-19+Community+Preparedness+Update-ACPHD.pdf

This is a message from the Alameda County Public Health Department

Dear Alameda County Leaders and Partners,

In light of recent news regarding possible local transmission of novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) in Northern California, we are providing the following update on our
activities and sharing initial guidance from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) on how you may want prepare your organization. Please note we
have no confirmed cases in Alameda County at this time. The health risk from novel
coronavirus to the general public remains low, and while COVID-19 has a high
transmission rate, it has a low mortality rate.

Please see the attached letter for more information, including summaries of the
Alameda County response to COVID-19 and of the CDC’s guidance for how you can
prepare your organization for a possible COVID-19 outbreak.

Please share this communication with your networks. For questions regarding
COVID-19, please call 510-268-2101 or email nCoV@acgov.org.

Thank you for your attention,

Alameda County Public Health Department
1000 Broadway, Suite 500

Oakland, CA 94607
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ALAMEDA COUNTY Alameda County Health Care Services Agency Colleen Chawla, Director

NI Public Health Department Kimi Watkins-Tartt, Director

Erica Pan, MD, Interim Health Officer

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

February 28, 2020

Please share with your networks

Dear Alameda County Leaders and Partners,

In light of recent news regarding possible local transmission of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) in Northern
California, we are providing the following update on our activities and sharing initial guidance from the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) on how you may want prepare your organization.
Please note we have no confirmed cases in Alameda County at this time. The health risk from novel
coronavirus to the general public remains low, and while COVID-19 has a high transmission rate, it has a
low mortality rate.

Alameda County continues to monitor the community for possible cases, and it is likely that there will be
more cases identified in the Bay Area, and person-to-person spread could occur. Widespread
transmission of COVID-19 in the United States would translate to large numbers of people needing
medical care at the same time. Schools, childcare centers, workplaces, and other places for mass
gatherings may experience more absenteeism.

We are taking the necessary steps to prepare for the emergence of COVID-19 in our community:

e The Health Care Services Agency activated its Emergency Department Operations Center in mid-
January to initiate our response and we have been working with hospitals, EMS, health care
providers, and community partners;

e We are preparing for an increase in disease investigation, monitoring, mitigation, and
community outreach and education activities; and

e We recently expanded emergency operations to accelerate planning, guidance, and
coordination efforts, to prepare for a potential surge in patients, and to provide information to
schools, businesses, and other community partners to ensure readiness for disruptions caused
by COVID-19 cases.

Our Public Health Department has an established history of response to disease outbreaks and expertise
with protocols for mitigating communicable disease. We are strengthened by ongoing coordination with
public health entities at the regional, state, and federal level.

Regarding an emergency declaration, we are balancing considerations of timing, overall spread of
disease, and the impact on resource availability. We will be in touch with new guidance for health care





providers, schools, and other populations as it becomes available. From our experience with previous
outbreaks, curbing the spread of disease is a community effort and we will need broad partnership.

What you can do now to prepare for a possible COVID-19 outbreak

Hospitals, government entities, school districts and employers should plan now for how best to decrease
the spread of illness and lower the impact of COVID-19 in the United States. It's important to identify
objectives, which may include one or more of the following:

e planning for ways to reduce contact between people if Alameda County public health officials

call for social distancing,

e planning for the possibility of school closures and cancellations of mass gatherings,

e protecting people who are at higher risk for complications of illness,

e maintaining operations, and

e minimizing adverse effects on other entities.

To assist you with your planning, please see the attached document for a summary of the CDC’s
guidance for consideration with your decision-making process.

We welcome questions and suggestions for helping to safeguard our communities. Please direct
inquiries to the Public Health Department COVID-19 website page for additional information and
resources http://www.acphd.org/2019-ncov.aspx. You may also share the following email for questions
that may not be addressed on our website nCov@acgov.org.

Sincerely,

{ e .} | 1l /
Colleen Chawla, Director Erica Pan, MD, MPH, Health Officer
Health Care Services Agency Public Health Department

Health Care Services Agency

Attachment: CDC: Key considerations for planning and making decisions
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Provided by the CDC: Key considerations for planning and making decisions®:

e Prepare for possible increased numbers of absences from increases in sick staff, those who stay
home to care for sick family members, and those who must stay home to watch their children if
dismissed from school:

o Employers should plan to monitor and respond to absenteeism at the workplace.
Implement plans to continue your essential functions in case you experience higher than
usual absenteeism.

o0 Cross-train personnel to perform essential functions so that the workplace could
operate even if key staff members are absent.

0 Assess your essential functions and the reliance that others and the community have on
your services. Be prepared to change your practices if needed to maintain critical
operations.

e In some communities, early childhood programs and K-12 schools may be dismissed, particularly if
COVID-19 worsens.

e Explore whether you can establish policies and practices, such as flexible worksites (e.g.,
telecommuting) and flexible work hours (e.g., staggered shifts), to increase the physical distance
among staff and between staff and others if state and local health authorities recommend the use of
social distancing strategies. For staff who can telework, supervisors should encourage it instead of
coming into the workplace until symptoms are completely resolved.

e Set up authorities, triggers, and procedures for activating and terminating infectious disease
outbreak response plan, altering operations, and transferring knowledge to key staff. Alameda
County health officials will provide recommendations to identify these triggers.

e Plan to minimize exposure between staff and between staff and the public, if Alameda County public
health officials call for social distancing.

e Establish a process to communicate information to staff and your community on your COVID-19
response plans and the latest COVID-19 information. Anticipate anxiety, rumors, and
misinformation, and plan communications accordingly.

e If there is evidence of a COVID-19 outbreak in the US, consider canceling non-essential business
travel to additional countries per travel guidance on the CDC website. Consider cancelling large
work-related meetings or events.

For the general public, we continue to recommend everyday good hygiene and handwashing technique,
and staying informed using verified sources for updates, like our website http://www.acphd.org/2019-
ncov/resources.aspx.

For questions regarding COVID-19, please call 510-268-2101 or email nCov@acgov.org

1 Sources: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/preparing-individuals-communities.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-business-response.html
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From: kathleen.harriman@cdph.ca.gov

To: CDPHIDIGCA@LISTSERV.CDPH.CA.GOV
Subject: CDCHAN-048 Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Feb 28 2020
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 2:47:36 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

This is an official

CDC HEALTH UPDATE

Distributed via the CDC Health Alert Network February 28, 2020, 15:05 ET (3:05 PM ET)
CDCHAN-0428

Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)

Summary
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) continues to closely monitor and respond to the COVID-19 outbreak caused by the novel coronavirus,
SARS-CoV-2.

This CDC Health Alert Network (HAN) Update provides updated guidance on evaluating and testing persons under investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19. It
supersedes guidance provided in CDC’s HAN 427 distributed on February 1, 2020.

The outbreak that began in Wuhan, Hubei Province, has now spread throughout China and to 46 other countries and territories, including the United States. As
of February 27, 2020, there were 78,497 reported cases in China and 3,797 cases in locations outside China. In addition to sustained transmission in China,
there is evidence of community spread in several additional countries. CDC has updated travel guidance to reflect this information
(https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus 2019-
2Dncov_travelers_index.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eWO0poABR6HOM3ajghllIE&s=5wQ4ulpyd3huRECgLIFIF26fQM1GrI8SRKwn_cdgfZhM&e=).

To date, there has been limited spread of COVID-19 in the United States. As of February 26, 2020, there were a total of 61 cases within the United States, 46
of these were among repatriated persons from high-risk settings. The other 15 cases were diagnosed in the United States; 12 were persons with a history of
recent travel in China and 2 were persons in close household contact with a COVID-19 patient (i.e. person-to-person spread). One patient with COVID-19
who had no travel history or links to other known cases was reported on February 26, 2020, in California. The California Department of Public Health, local
health departments, clinicians, and CDC are working together to investigate this case and are identifying contacts with whom this individual interacted.

CDC, state and local health departments, other federal agencies, and other partners have been implementing measures to slow and contain transmission of
COVID-19 in the United States. These measures include assessing, monitoring, and caring for travelers arriving from areas with substantial COVID-19
transmission and identifying cases and contacts of cases in the United States.

Recognizing persons at risk for COVID-19 is a critical component of identifying cases and preventing further transmission. With expanding spread of
COVID-19, additional areas of geographic risk are being identified and PUI criteria are being updated to reflect this spread. To prepare for possible additional
person-to-person spread of COVID-19 in the United States, CDC continues to recommend that clinicians and state and local health departments consider
COVID-19 in patients with severe respiratory illness even in the absence of travel history to affected areas or known exposure to another case.

Criteria to Guide Evaluation and Testing of Patients Under Investigation (PUT) for COVID-19 Local or state health departments, in consultation with
clinicians, should determine whether a patient is a PUI for COVID-19. The CDC clinical criteria for COVID-19 PUIs have been developed based on available
information about this novel virus, as well as what is known about Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?
u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_sars_clinical guidance.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd_cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=Ybw1Zg47KVi_h3WTKNf{tX3r2GeXQz0qbQYPAD-
cRvDM&e= ) and Middle East Respiratory Syndrome (MERS) (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-

3A__ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_mers_interim-2Dguidance.html-

23evaluation&d=DwIFaQé&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz101TbEa2fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABRO6HOM3ajghlIE&s=xnTIEF3HGjcvZj-WiNTtuoHQC4OQErVICpHRHPR 7K 70& e=
). These criteria are subject to change as additional information becomes available.

Clinical Features

Epidemiologic Risk

Feverl or signs/symptoms of lower respiratory illness (e.g., cough or shortness of breath) AND Any person, including healthcare personnel2, who has had
close contact3 with a laboratory-confirmed4 COVID-19 patient within 14 days of symptom onset

Feverl and signs/symptoms of a lower respiratory illness (e.g., cough or shortness of breath) requiring hospitalization AND A history of travel from affected
geographic areas5, within 14 days of symptom onset

Feverl with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g., pneumonia, ARDS (acute respiratory distress syndrome) requiring hospitalization and without an
alternative explanatory diagnosis (e.g., influenza).6 AND No identified source of exposure

These criteria are intended to serve as guidance for evaluation. In consultation with public health departments, patients should be evaluated on a case-by-case
basis to determine the need for testing. Testing may be considered for deceased persons who would otherwise meet the PUI criteria.

1Fever may be subjective or confirmed.

2 For healthcare personnel, testing may be considered if there has been exposure to a person with suspected COVID-19 without laboratory confirmation.
Because of their often extensive and close contact with vulnerable patients in healthcare settings, even mild signs and symptoms (e.g., sore throat) of COVID-
19 should be evaluated among potentially exposed healthcare personnel. Additional information is available in CDC’s Interim U.S. Guidance for Risk
Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with Coronavirus Disease
2019 (COVID-19) (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?7u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-2Dncov_hcp_guidance-2Drisk-2Dassesment-
2Dhcp.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2{fPd cZyWQFA-
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GVDb{kNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=IKstLNjCnfqcd2306UD1ZcRn4S4Ho4HFnludVea84io&e=).
3Close contact is defined as—

a) being within approximately 6 feet (2 meters) of a COVID-19 case for a prolonged period; close contact can occur while caring for, living with, visiting, or
sharing a healthcare waiting area or room with a COVID-19 case — or —

b) having direct contact with infectious secretions of a COVID-19 case (e.g., being coughed on) If such contact occurs while not wearing recommended
personal protective equipment (PPE) (e.g., gowns, gloves, NIOSH-certified disposable N95 respirator, eye protection), criteria for PUI consideration are met.
Additional information is available in CDC’s updated Interim Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations for Patients with Confirmed
COVID-19 or Persons Under Investigation for COVID-19 in Healthcare Settings (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-

3A_ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus 2019-2Dncov_infection-2Dcontrol_control-
2Drecommendations.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz101TbEa2fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=wNynx5KIW20IA3rbVwoQBOKuaulNYR5Zkj DmFLsUsA&e=
).

Data to inform the definition of close contact are limited. Considerations when assessing close contact include the duration of exposure (e.g., longer exposure
time likely increases exposure risk) and the clinical symptoms of the person with COVID-19 (e.g., coughing likely increases exposure risk, as does exposure
to a severely ill patient). Special consideration should be given to healthcare personnel exposed in healthcare settings, as described in CDC’s Interim U.S.
Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with
COVID-19 (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-2Dncov_hcp_guidance-2Drisk-2Dassesment-
2Dhcep.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eWO0poABR6HOM3ajghllIE&s=1KstLNjCnfqcd2306UD1ZcRn4S4Ho4HFnludVea84io&e=).
4Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of COVID-19 may not be possible for travelers or persons caring for COVID-19 patients in other countries.
SAffected areas are defined as geographic regions where sustained community transmission has been identified. Relevant affected areas will be defined as a
country with at least a CDC Level 2 Travel Health Notice. Current information is available in CDC’s COVID-19 Travel Health Notices
(https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?7u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-
2Dncov_travelers&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd_cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=2qm4mGTIWS53NATPI3vHQX-mCsXyY550snSeonTd8uhY &e=
).

6Category includes single or clusters of patients with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g., pneumonia, ARDS (acute respiratory distress syndrome) of
unknown etiology in which COVID-19 is being considered.

Recommendations for Reporting, Testing, and Specimen Collection Clinicians should immediately implement recommended infection prevention and control
practices (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-2Dncov_infection-2Dcontrol_control-
2Drecommendations.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd_cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=wNynxSKIW20IA3rbVwoQBOKuaulNYR5Zkj DmFLsUsA&e=
) if a patient is suspected of having COVID-19. They should also notify infection control personnel at their healthcare facility and their state or local health
department if a patient is classified as a PUI for COVID-19. State health departments that have identified a PUI or a laboratory-confirmed case should
complete a PUT and Case Report form through the processes identified on CDC’s Coronavirus Disease 2019 website
(https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-2Dncov_php_reporting-
2Dpui.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz101TbEa2fPd_cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=G-5rC5SUNs8SmDxjncsRIG2Nk9-iUbUCUprZNgKXdgGe&e=).
State and local health departments can contact CDC’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at 770-488-7100 for assistance with obtaining, storing, and
shipping appropriate specimens to CDC for testing, including after hours or on weekends or holidays. Currently, diagnostic testing for COVID-19 is being
performed at state public health laboratories and CDC. Testing for other respiratory pathogens should not delay specimen testing for COVID-19.

For initial diagnostic testing for SARS-CoV-2, CDC recommends collecting and testing upper respiratory tract specimens (nasopharyngeal AND
oropharyngeal swabs). CDC also recommends testing lower respiratory tract specimens, if available. For patients who develop a productive cough, sputum
should be collected and tested for SARS-CoV-2. The induction of sputum is not recommended. For patients for whom it is clinically indicated (e.g., those
receiving invasive mechanical ventilation), a lower respiratory tract aspirate or bronchoalveolar lavage sample should be collected and tested as a lower
respiratory tract specimen. Specimens should be collected as soon as possible once a PUI is identified, regardless of the time of symptom onset. See Interim
Guidelines for Collecting, Handling, and Testing Clinical Specimens from Patients Under Investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19
(https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A_ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus 2019-2DnCoV _lab_guidelines-2Dclinical-
2Dspecimens.html&d=DwIFaQé&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz10ITbEa2fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eWO0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=DhPv-k-sLjc78pLqKr6wTecmm4u26PTZzA DIScyGAFg&e=)
and Biosafety FAQs for handling and processing specimens from suspected cases and PUIs (https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-

3A__ www.cdc.gov_coronavirus 2019-2Dncov_lab_biosafety-
2Dfags.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz101TbEa2{fPd cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eWO0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=ArqmusKDO05_ckxY6FDNNTGCLSveH7X310knNn5SMyQTA&e=

).

For More Information

More information is available at the COVID-19 website: https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.cdc.gov_coronavirus_2019-
2Dncov_index.html&d=DwIFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=SvuDBz101TbEa2fPd_cZyWQFA-
GVbfkNc1PGbbhBsMs&m=S8k8yUBbHy3h3b4HQ3JDV90eW0poABR6HOM3ajghlIE&s=Sp9_uKKHOIDcuxsNB7et7Xz-zld_F73fRp5-rXqYvLY &e=.
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) protects people's health and safety by preventing and controlling diseases and injuries; enhances health
decisions by providing credible information on critical health issues; and promotes healthy living through strong partnerships with local, national, and
international organizations.
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To unsubscribe from the CDPHIDIGCA list, click the following link:
https:/listserv.cdph.ca.gov/cgi-bin/wa.exe?SUBED 1=CDPHIDIGCA&A=1
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From: EPIXUpdate@cdc.gov

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Subject: Important: HAN 428: Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) --
February 28, 2020

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 12:39:06 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

(2]

Check Epi-X for an Important Report

HAN 428: Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) --
February 28, 2020

This CDC Health Alert Network (HAN) Update provides updated guidance on evaluating and testing
persons under investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19. It supersedes guidance provided in CDC’s HAN 427
distributed on February 1, 2020. This HAN will be posted at https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/index.asp
shortly.

https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=81271

HOW TO CONTACT Epi-X
For technical issues, contact the Help Desk:
EpiXHelp@cdc.gov
(877) 438-3749
For help with preparing or posting a report, contact the Editor on Call:
EpiXEditor@cdc.gov
(877) 862-2392 (toll free within the United States)
+1-770-488-7100 (If you cannot use the toll free number above, please call the CDC Emergency
Operations Center and ask to speak to the Epi-X editor on call.)

ABOUT THIS E-MAIL
You have received this message because you are an authorized Epi-X user.
Information in this message must be used only in accordance with the Epi-X User Agreement.
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https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=81271
mailto:EpiXHelp@cdc.gov
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From: Philip, Susan (DPH)

To: Chan, Curtis (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Cc: Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Packer, Tracey (DPH); Melichar, John (DPH)
Subject: RE: Info and Guidance for schools

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 12:25:52 PM

CDC now has this guidance — they are saying recently released:
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/guidance-for-schools.html
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Susan Philip MD, MPH

Deputy Health Officer

Director, Disease Prevention and Control Branch
Population Health Division

San Francisco Department of Public Health

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 345
San Francisco 94102

(628) 206-7638 (tel)

(415) 554-9636 (fax)
Susan.Philip@sfdph.org

DPH e-mails sent to and from personal email accounts or outside the DPH/UCSF servers are not
secured data transmissions for Protected Health Information (PHI), as defined by the Healthcare
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). It is the responsibility of all parties involved to take all
reasonable actions to protect this message from non-authorized disclosure. This e-mail is intended
for the recipient only. If you receive this e-mail in error, notify the sender and destroy the e-mail
immediately. Disclosure of the PHI contained herein may subject discloser to civil or criminal
penalties under state and federal privacy laws.

From: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 7:44 AM

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>
Cc: Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>

Subject: Info and Guidance for schools

“Info and Guidance for school/childcare preparedness” is something in very high demand.

| tried to explain this need at yesterday morning meeting and don’t know if someone is working on
it. If no one can work on it, | can put something together over the weekend. Basically, we’'d like to
strongly recommend that school district and school administrators immediately review new Cdc

preparedness documents, review their existing pandemic plans, and email us questions.

Thanks.
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Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 28, 2020, at 7:30 AM, Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org> wrote:

Please forward to Containment Chief to ensure isolation of possible returned
traveler, if appropriate.

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos

Tomas J. Aragén, MD, DrPH

415-515-5734 (cell); 415-554-2898 (office)

Health Officer, City & County of San Francisco

Director, Population Health Division (PHD)

San Francisco Department of Public Health

101 Grove St., Rm 308, SF CA 94102

"Radical transformational leadership is leading change from the universal values
of dignity, equity, compassion and humility to transform self, people, systems and
cultures towards equity and sustainable results.” (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-
lead)

NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or
distribution of the information is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and
delete all information.

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 12:19 AM

To: Gloria K Choy <choyg@sfusd.edu>; Vien, Veronica (DPH)
<veronica.vien@sfdph.org>

Cc: DEM-External Affairs Group <sfdem-dem-external-affairs@sfgov.org>; DEM-Anna
Sop (USD) <sopa@sfusd.edu>; dudnickl@sfusd.edu <dudnickl@sfusd.edu>; Aragon,
Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Subject: Gordon Lau Elementary School Inquiry - Principal Gloria Choy

Dear Principal Choy,

I am including my colleagues and also your colleagues from Central office on this
inquiry. | will need follow up from our colleagues for guidance. Thanks for reaching out.
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Victor Wai Ho Lim | #{&&

External Affairs Officer | ‘754 FIREE

Department of Emergency Management | = BHEABER
415-558-2768 direct | E#R

415-558-2712 media line | {85

415-748-0028 cell | F-H

From: Gloria K Choy <cho sfusd.edu>
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020, 11:19 PM
To: Vien, Veronica (DPH); Lim, Victor (DEM)
Subject: Please Advise

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or
attachments from untrusted sources.

Hello Veronica and Victor,

Below is a question from one of my second grade teachers. She texted me late tonight.
Can you please advise what | should do first thing this morning? If necessary, | can call
the house of this family before school begins and ask them not to bring the child to
school.

From Joanne C, Teacher:

Weijun is a student in my class. The family went to China recently. About three or four
days ago, Weijun was sick. She coughed and had stuffy nose. | sent her to the office for
a mask. She was absent the following day. She came back to school these two days.
Should we talk to the parents to get more information from them and suggest the
parent to get a letter from the doctor to prove the student is healthy?

Greatest appreciation for all you do. Thank you!
~ Gloria
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Gloria K. Choy | Principal

Gordon J. Lau Elementary School

950 Clay Street

San Francisco, CA 94108-1521

415.291.7921 Work

415.291.7952 Fax
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From: Health Alert Network Priority List on behalf of Health Alert Network (CDC)

To: CDC-HAN-PRIORITY-LIST@LISTSERV.CDC.GOV

Subject: CDC HAN 428: Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 12:10:10 PM

Attachments: CDC HAN 428 - Update Interim Guidance on Outbreak of COVID-19 02 28 2020.pdf

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

This is an official

CDC HEALTH UPDATE

Distributed via the CDC Health Alert Network
February 28, 2020, 15:05 ET (3:05 PM ET)
CDCHAN-0428

Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (COVID-19)

Summary
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) continues to closely monitor and respond to the
COVID-19 outbreak caused by the novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2.

This CDC Health Alert Network (HAN) Update provides updated guidance on evaluating and testing
persons under investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19. It supersedes guidance provided in CDC’s HAN 427
distributed on February 1, 2020.

The outbreak that began in Wuhan, Hubei Province, has now spread throughout China and to 46 other
countries and territories, including the United States. As of February 27, 2020, there were 78,497
reported cases in China and 3,797 cases in locations outside China. In addition to sustained transmission
in China, there is evidence of community spread in several additional countries. CDC has updated travel

guidance to reflect this information (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html).

To date, there has been limited spread of COVID-19 in the United States. As of February 26, 2020, there
were a total of 61 cases within the United States, 46 of these were among repatriated persons from high-
risk settings. The other 15 cases were diagnosed in the United States; 12 were persons with a history of
recent travel in China and 2 were persons in close household contact with a COVID-19 patient (i.e.
person-to-person spread). One patient with COVID-19 who had no travel history or links to other known
cases was reported on February 26, 2020, in California. The California Department of Public Health, local
health departments, clinicians, and CDC are working together to investigate this case and are identifying
contacts with whom this individual interacted.

CDC, state and local health departments, other federal agencies, and other partners have been
implementing measures to slow and contain transmission of COVID-19 in the United States. These
measures include assessing, monitoring, and caring for travelers arriving from areas with substantial
COVID-19 transmission and identifying cases and contacts of cases in the United States.

Recognizing persons at risk for COVID-19 is a critical component of identifying cases and preventing
further transmission. With expanding spread of COVID-19, additional areas of geographic risk are being
identified and PUI criteria are being updated to reflect this spread. To prepare for possible additional
person-to-person spread of COVID-19 in the United States, CDC continues to recommend that clinicians
and state and local health departments consider COVID-19 in patients with severe respiratory illness
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This is an official

CDC HEALTH UPDATE

Distributed via the CDC Health Alert Network
February 28, 2020, 15:05 ET (3:05 PM ET)
CDCHAN-0428

Update and Interim Guidance on Outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(COVID-19)

Summary
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) continues to closely monitor and respond to the COVID-
19 outbreak caused by the novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2.

This CDC Health Alert Network (HAN) Update provides updated guidance on evaluating and testing persons
under investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19. It supersedes guidance provided in CDC’s HAN 427 distributed on
February 1, 2020.

The outbreak that began in Wuhan, Hubei Province, has now spread throughout China and to 46 other countries
and territories, including the United States. As of February 27, 2020, there were 78,497 reported cases in China
and 3,797 cases in locations outside China. In addition to sustained transmission in China, there is evidence of
community spread in several additional countries. CDC has updated travel guidance to reflect this information
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html).

To date, there has been limited spread of COVID-19 in the United States. As of February 26, 2020, there were a
total of 61 cases within the United States, 46 of these were among repatriated persons from high-risk settings.
The other 15 cases were diagnosed in the United States; 12 were persons with a history of recent travel in China
and 2 were persons in close household contact with a COVID-19 patient (i.e. person-to-person spread). One
patient with COVID-19 who had no travel history or links to other known cases was reported on February 26,
2020, in California. The California Department of Public Health, local health departments, clinicians, and CDC are
working together to investigate this case and are identifying contacts with whom this individual interacted.

CDC, state and local health departments, other federal agencies, and other partners have been implementing
measures to slow and contain transmission of COVID-19 in the United States. These measures include
assessing, monitoring, and caring for travelers arriving from areas with substantial COVID-19 transmission and
identifying cases and contacts of cases in the United States.

Recognizing persons at risk for COVID-19 is a critical component of identifying cases and preventing further
transmission. With expanding spread of COVID-19, additional areas of geographic risk are being identified and
PUI criteria are being updated to reflect this spread. To prepare for possible additional person-to-person spread of
COVID-19 in the United States, CDC continues to recommend that clinicians and state and local health
departments consider COVID-19 in patients with severe respiratory illness even in the absence of travel history to
affected areas or known exposure to another case.

Criteria to Guide Evaluation and Testing of Patients Under Investigation (PUI) for COVID-19

Local or state health departments, in consultation with clinicians, should determine whether a patient is a PUI for
COVID-19. The CDC clinical criteria for COVID-19 PUIs have been developed based on available information
about this novel virus, as well as what is known about Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS)
(https://www.cdc.gov/sars/clinical/guidance.html) and Middle East Respiratory Syndrome (MERS)
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/interim-guidance.html#evaluation). These criteria are subject to change as
additional information becomes available.
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Clinical Features

Epidemiologic Risk

Fever! or signs/symptoms
of lower respiratory illness

Any person, including
healthcare personnel?, who
has had close contact® with

breath) requiring
hospitalization

(e.g., cough or shortness of AND a laboratory-confirmed*

breath) COVID-19 patient within 14
days of symptom onset

Fever! and signs/symptoms A history of travel from

of a lower respiratory iliness affected geographic areas®,

(e.g., cough or shortness of AND within 14 days of symptom

onset

Fever! with severe acute

No identified source of

lower respiratory illness AND exposure
(e.g., pneumonia, ARDS
(acute respiratory distress
syndrome) requiring
hospitalization and without
an alternative explanatory
diagnosis (e.g., influenza).®

These criteria are intended to serve as guidance for evaluation. In consultation with public health departments,
patients should be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the need for testing. Testing may be
considered for deceased persons who would otherwise meet the PUI criteria.

1IFever may be subjective or confirmed.

2 For healthcare personnel, testing may be considered if there has been exposure to a person with suspected
COVID-19 without laboratory confirmation. Because of their often extensive and close contact with vulnerable
patients in healthcare settings, even mild signs and symptoms (e.g., sore throat) of COVID-19 should be
evaluated among potentially exposed healthcare personnel. Additional information is available in CDC’s Interim
U.S. Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential
Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/quidance-risk-assesment-hcp.html).

3Close contact is defined as—

a) being within approximately 6 feet (2 meters) of a COVID-19 case for a prolonged period; close contact
can occur while caring for, living with, visiting, or sharing a healthcare waiting area or room with a COVID-
19 case

b) having direct contact with infectious secretions of a COVID-19 case (e.g., being coughed on)

If such contact occurs while not wearing recommended personal protective equipment (PPE) (e.g.,
gowns, gloves, NIOSH-certified disposable N95 respirator, eye protection), criteria for PUI consideration
are met.

Additional information is available in CDC’s updated Interim Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control
Recommendations for Patients with Confirmed COVID-19 or Persons Under Investigation for COVID-19 in
Healthcare Settings (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/infection-control/control-recommendations.html).

Data to inform the definition of close contact are limited. Considerations when assessing close contact include the
duration of exposure (e.g., longer exposure time likely increases exposure risk) and the clinical symptoms of the
person with COVID-19 (e.g., coughing likely increases exposure risk, as does exposure to a severely ill patient).
Special consideration should be given to healthcare personnel exposed in healthcare settings, as described in
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CDC’s Interim U.S. Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with
Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with COVID-19 (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/hcp/guidance-risk-assesment-hcp.html).

4Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of COVID-19 may not be possible for travelers or persons caring for
COVID-19 patients in other countries.

SAffected areas are defined as geographic regions where sustained community transmission has been identified.
Relevant affected areas will be defined as a country with at least a CDC Level 2 Travel Health Notice. Current
information is available in CDC’s COVID-19 Travel Health Notices (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/travelers).

6Category includes single or clusters of patients with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g., pneumonia,
ARDS (acute respiratory distress syndrome) of unknown etiology in which COVID-19 is being considered.

Recommendations for Reporting, Testing, and Specimen Collection

Clinicians should immediately implement recommended infection prevention and control practices
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/infection-control/control-recommendations.html) if a patient is
suspected of having COVID-19. They should also notify infection control personnel at their healthcare facility and
their state or local health department if a patient is classified as a PUI for COVID-19. State health departments
that have identified a PUI or a laboratory-confirmed case should complete a PUI and Case Report form through
the processes identified on CDC’s Coronavirus Disease 2019 website (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/php/reporting-pui.html). State and local health departments can contact CDC’s Emergency Operations
Center (EOC) at 770-488-7100 for assistance with obtaining, storing, and shipping appropriate specimens to CDC
for testing, including after hours or on weekends or holidays. Currently, diagnostic testing for COVID-19 is being
performed at state public health laboratories and CDC. Testing for other respiratory pathogens should not delay
specimen testing for COVID-19.

For initial diagnostic testing for SARS-CoV-2, CDC recommends collecting and testing upper respiratory tract
specimens (nasopharyngeal AND oropharyngeal swabs). CDC also recommends testing lower respiratory tract
specimens, if available. For patients who develop a productive cough, sputum should be collected and tested for
SARS-CoV-2. The induction of sputum is not recommended. For patients for whom it is clinically indicated (e.qg.,
those receiving invasive mechanical ventilation), a lower respiratory tract aspirate or bronchoalveolar lavage
sample should be collected and tested as a lower respiratory tract specimen. Specimens should be collected as
soon as possible once a PUI is identified, regardless of the time of symptom onset. See Interim Guidelines for
Collecting, Handling, and Testing Clinical Specimens from Patients Under Investigation (PUIs) for COVID-19
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/lab/quidelines-clinical-specimens.html) and Biosafety FAQs for
handling and processing specimens from suspected cases and PUIs (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/lab/biosafety-fags.html).

For More Information
More information is available at the COVID-19 website: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) protects people's health and safety by preventing and controlling
diseases and injuries; enhances health decisions by providing credible information on critical health issues; and promotes
healthy living through strong partnerships with local, national, and international organizations.

Categories of Health Alert Network messages:

Health Alert Requires immediate action or attention; highest level of importance

Health Advisory May not require immediate action; provides important information for a specific incident or situation
Health Update  Unlikely to require immediate action; provides updated information regarding an incident or situation
HAN Info Service Does not require immediate action; provides general public health information

##This message was distributed to state and local health officers, state and local epidemiologists, state and local
laboratory directors, public information officers, epidemiologists, HAN coordinators, and clinician organizations# #
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even in the absence of travel history to affected areas or known exposure to another case.

Criteria to Guide Evaluation and Testing of Patients Under Investigation (PUI) for COVID-19

Local or state health departments, in consultation with clinicians, should determine whether a patient is a
PUI for COVID-19. The CDC clinical criteria for COVID-19 PUls have been developed based on available
information about this novel virus, as well as what is known about Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome
(SARS) (https://www.cdc.gov/sars/clinical/guidance.html) and Middle East Respiratory Syndrome (MERS)

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/interim-guidance.html#evaluation). These criteria are subject to
change as additional information becomes available.

Clinical Features Epidemiologic Risk
Any person, including

healthcare personnelz, who
has had close contact® with a

Fever! or signs/symptoms of

lower respiratory illness (e.g., AND

cough or shortness of breath) laboratory-confirmed* COVID-
19 patient within 14 days of
symptom onset

Fever! and signs/symptoms of A history of travel from affected

a lower respiratory illness (e.g., AND geographic areas®, within 14

cough or shortness of breath) days of symptom onset

requiring hospitalization

Fever! with severe acute lower No identified source of

respiratory iliness (e.g., AND exposure

pneumonia, ARDS (acute
respiratory distress syndrome)
requiring hospitalization and
without an alternative
explanatory diagnosis (e.g.,

influenza).6

These criteria are intended to serve as guidance for evaluation. In consultation with public health
departments, patients should be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the need for testing.
Testing may be considered for deceased persons who would otherwise meet the PUI criteria.

1Fever may be subjective or confirmed.

2 For healthcare personnel, testing may be considered if there has been exposure to a person with
suspected COVID-19 without laboratory confirmation. Because of their often extensive and close contact
with vulnerable patients in healthcare settings, even mild signs and symptoms (e.g., sore throat) of
COVID-19 should be evaluated among potentially exposed healthcare personnel. Additional information
is available in CDC’s Interim U.S. Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of
Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (COVID-19) (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-risk-assesment-
hcp.html).

3CIose contact is defined as—
a) being within approximately 6 feet (2 meters) of a COVID-19 case for a prolonged period; close
contact can occur while caring for, living with, visiting, or sharing a healthcare waiting area or
room with a COVID-19 case
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b) having direct contact with infectious secretions of a COVID-19 case (e.g., being coughed on)

If such contact occurs while not wearing recommended personal protective equipment (PPE)
(e.g., gowns, gloves, NIOSH-certified disposable N95 respirator, eye protection), criteria for PUI
consideration are met.

Additional information is available in CDC’s updated Interim Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control
Recommendations for Patients with Confirmed COVID-19 or Persons Under Investigation for COVID-19

in Healthcare Settings (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/infection-control/control-
recommendations.html).

Data to inform the definition of close contact are limited. Considerations when assessing close contact
include the duration of exposure (e.g., longer exposure time likely increases exposure risk) and the
clinical symptoms of the person with COVID-19 (e.g., coughing likely increases exposure risk, as does
exposure to a severely ill patient). Special consideration should be given to healthcare personnel exposed
in healthcare settings, as described in CDC’s Interim U.S. Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public
Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients

with COVID-19 (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/quidance-risk-assesment-hcp.html).

4Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of COVID-19 may not be possible for travelers or persons
caring for COVID-19 patients in other countries.

5Affected areas are defined as geographic regions where sustained community transmission has been
identified. Relevant affected areas will be defined as a country with at least a CDC Level 2 Travel Health
Notice. Current information is available in CDC’s COVID-19 Travel Health Notices

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers).

6Category includes single or clusters of patients with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g.,
pneumonia, ARDS (acute respiratory distress syndrome) of unknown etiology in which COVID-19 is being
considered.

Recommendations for Reporting, Testing, and Specimen Collection

Clinicians should immediately implement recommended infection prevention and control practices
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/infection-control/control-recommendations.html) if a patient
is suspected of having COVID-19. They should also notify infection control personnel at their healthcare
facility and their state or local health department if a patient is classified as a PUI for COVID-19. State
health departments that have identified a PUI or a laboratory-confirmed case should complete a PUI and
Case Report form through the processes identified on CDC’s Coronavirus Disease 2019 website
(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/reporting-pui.html). State and local health departments
can contact CDC’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) at 770-488-7100 for assistance with obtaining,
storing, and shipping appropriate specimens to CDC for testing, including after hours or on weekends or
holidays. Currently, diagnostic testing for COVID-19 is being performed at state public health laboratories
and CDC. Testing for other respiratory pathogens should not delay specimen testing for COVID-19.

For initial diagnostic testing for SARS-CoV-2, CDC recommends collecting and testing upper respiratory
tract specimens (nasopharyngeal AND oropharyngeal swabs). CDC also recommends testing lower
respiratory tract specimens, if available. For patients who develop a productive cough, sputum should be
collected and tested for SARS-CoV-2. The induction of sputum is not recommended. For patients for
whom it is clinically indicated (e.g., those receiving invasive mechanical ventilation), a lower respiratory
tract aspirate or bronchoalveolar lavage sample should be collected and tested as a lower respiratory
tract specimen. Specimens should be collected as soon as possible once a PUI is identified, regardless of
the time of symptom onset. See Interim Guidelines for Collecting, Handling, and Testing Clinical
Specimens from Patients Under Investigation (PUls) for COVID-19

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-nCoV/lab/guidelines-clinical-specimens.html) and Biosafety FAQs
for handling and processing specimens from suspected cases and PUIs
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(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/lab/biosafety-fags.html).

For More Information
More information is available at the COVID-19 website: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
ncov/index.html.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) protects people's health and safety by preventing and
controlling diseases and injuries; enhances health decisions by providing credible information on critical health
issues,; and promotes healthy living through strong partnerships with local, national, and international
organizations.

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

##This message was distributed to state and local health officers, state and local epidemiologists, state
and local laboratory directors, public information officers, epidemiologists, HAN coordinators, and clinician
organizations##

If you would like to unsubscribe from this ListServ LIST, please send an email to
LIST@cdc.gov, enter CDC in the email Subject, and include the following "one" line in the
Body of the email: signoff CDC-HAN-PRIORITY-LIST
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From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH
Subject: CDC Newsroom: Week In Review - 02/24/20
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 12:03:18 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

WEEK OF FEBRUARY 24, 2020
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Contact Media Relations

Email: media@cdc.gov
(404) 639-3286 (9:00 am - 6:00 pm)

(770) 488-7100 (After Hours)

Media Request Form
Media FAQs

This Week's Releases
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SEARCH PRESS RELEASES

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in the U.S.

As of February 28, 2020

In the United States, there have been 15
confirmed cases of COVID-19 reported. CDC
provides updated information on the number
of persons under investigation in the United
States online on Mondays, Wednesdays, and
Fridays.
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Sign up for the COVID-19 newsletter if you would like more information on the coronavirus
disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak. Please share it with your colleagues and networks.

CDC Center Newsrooms

e National Center for Environmental Health

e National Center for Health Statistics

e National Center for HIV/AIDS, Viral Hepatitis, STD, and TB Prevention
e National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH

e Center for Global Health

. . ~ for E . 7 ic Infecti Di

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Rd Atlanta, GA 30329 1-800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636) TTY: 888-232-6348

tions or Problems | Unsubscribe
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From: State and Local Readiness (CDC)

To: State and Local Readiness (CDC)

Subject: CDC Text Iliness Monitoring (T.I.M) System Update
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:57:00 AM
Attachments: T.I.M. FAQ forPH 02.27.2020.pdf

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Colleagues,

The Text Illness Monitoring (T.I.M.) system has recently been modified to allow county-level
campaigns to be added under state campaigns. This allows for local use of T.I.M. for COVID-19
symptom monitoring.

If a state would like to add county-level users in T.I.M., they should provide the names of the
counties that should be activated. Once the T.I.M. support team activates these counties,

states may then add county-level users as appropriate.

Local jurisdictions will be assigned at the county level and will have access to the data for that
county only, and states will have access to all data within the state.

Local jurisdictions should coordinate with their state for access. States may send the list of
counties they wish to activate in T.I.M. to eocevent340@cdc.gov.

Thank you,

State Coordination Task Force

Sent by BCC to PHEP Directors, SHOS, State Epis, Non-governmental Partners, STLTs, and
BCHC
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Text lliness Monitoring (T.I.M.)

Frequently Asked Questions

About T.I.M.
Whatis T.[.M.?

Text Illness Monitoring (T.I.M.) is a mobile texting tool that facilitates symptom monitoring during an infectious disease
outbreak. Monitoring conducted by public health officials has traditionally been conducted via telephone calls, which can
be a time-consuming process requiring staff resources. CDC has developed T.I.M,, a nationally-centralized option
utilizing two-way Short Message Service (SMS)/text messaging to aid in the process. Text messaging is an efficient
method to elicit, manage, and act on any coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) symptoms among those who are exposed
or potentially exposed to the virus. The T..M. system was utilized to monitor for influenza symptoms in Michigan® with
success.

How is T.I.M. being used for the coronavirus disease 2019 response?

Use of T..M. is voluntary for health departments. Consenting persons in participating jurisdictions will receive 2-5 text
messages a day for up to14 days asking if they have symptoms consistent with COVID-19. Health departments will
immediately be alerted to any person in their jurisdiction that responds that they are experiencing symptoms and to any
persons who fail to respond to two consecutive messages. Health departments would then follow up with individuals
who are reporting symptoms or those that have been unresponsive.

Health Department Access

How do I get access to T.I.M.?

State and local public health departments may request access by sending an email to eocevent340@cdc.gov. Please
provide a primary and secondary point of contact to act as an administrator in T.L.LM. Instructions for adding users and
assigning them to a campaign to receive notifications can be found in the “T..LM. Adding a User and Alert Setup” guide
available in the Resources section of T.L.M.

After registration, the public health administrators will receive an email with information on how to log in and access
the system.

Can local public health jurisdictions use T.I.M.?

Yes, T.I.M. has recently been modified to allow county-level campaigns to be added under state campaigns. This allows
for local use of T.I.M. for COVID-19 symptom monitoring. If a state would like to add county-level users in T.1.M., they
should provide the names of the counties that should be activated. Once the T.L.M. support team activates these counties,
states may then add county-level users as appropriate. Local jurisdictions will be assigned at the county level and will
have access to the data for that county only. Local jurisdictions should coordinate with their state for access.

Who will be able to access the information in T.[.M.?

There are three levels of access to T.I.M.: CDC, state, and county. Public health administrators at the state level will have
access to all data within their jurisdiction, including county level data. Local jurisdictions assigned at the county level

1 Stewart RJ, Rossow J, Eckel S, et al. Text-Based Iliness Monitoring for Detection of Novel Influenza A Virus Infections During an Influenza A
(H3N2)v Virus Outbreak in Michigan, 2016: Surveillance and Survey. JMIR Public Health Surveill. 2019;5(2):e10842. Published 2019 Apr 26.
doi:10.2196/10842 https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6658270/

T.I.M. FAQs for Public Health Departments Updated 2/27/2020
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will only have access to the data for the county to which they are assigned. CDC will have access to the deidentified
aggregate data for monitoring campaigns.

Can I add other people in my jurisdiction as users?

State users with the administrator role may add both state and county-level users for their state. County level users can
add users to their assigned county only.

Dashboard and Notifications

[s there a dashboard and what information can be seen?

The T.I.M. system includes a dashboard with summary information on number of persons being monitored, and
information related to the alerts/notifications that public health needs to take action on (i.e., those that reply YES to a
text indicating symptoms, those that have not responded to two consecutive texts). Jurisdictions can view the mobile
phone number of participating individuals being monitored through the T.I.M. system and the messages they sent.

How will I know if someone responds that they have symptoms?

If someone in your jurisdiction replies YES to a text message indicating symptoms you will receive an email notification.
An email notification will also be sent if a person does not respond to two consecutive texts sent. You can also view a list
of all users that responded they have symptoms on the dashboard and in reports.

What data is stored in T.I.M. for individuals being monitored?

Data stored in T.L.M. includes mobile phone number, any text message response provided by that mobile phone, and the
date and time it was sent.

Are there any reports available in T.I.M.?

Yes. There are two reports in T.I.M. One report lists all of the text responses received from the previous day, with each
response tied to a phone number. The other report lists all of the text responses received for the entire campaign, also
tied to phone numbers. Both reports can be exported as a .csv or Excel file or can be reviewed and filtered using HTML.

How are families or head of household tracked in the system?

Each mobile phone enrolled in T.I.M. represents one household or family unit. A text reply of ‘YES’ or ‘SYM’ indicates
that at least one person in the household/family has developed symptoms. A text reply of ‘NO’ indicates that no one in
the household /family has developed symptomes.

Enrollment and Messaging

What messages will individuals enrolled in T.I.M. receive?

A diagram of the 14-day text message workflow is below. Individuals will immediately receive a welcome message
notifying them they have been enrolled in the text symptom monitoring program after the jurisdiction adds their mobile
phone number to T.I.M. Individuals will receive a daily message to reply ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ to symptoms of COVID-19. At the
end of the 14-day monitoring period, individuals will receive a final message informing them that they have completed
monitoring and will be unenrolled from T.I.M.

T.I.M. FAQs for Public Health Departments Updated 2/27/2020





Welcome message

Welcome to the text symptom monitoring program. For your
health & safety, you will receive daily texts. Please respond when
asked. Msg&data rates may apply.

v

11AM ET Daily Message

Have you or anyone you have
traveled with developed a fever,
cough, or shortness of breath?
Reply ‘YES’ or ‘NO’.

Response of “Yes” v Response of “No”
We’re sorry to hear that. = |fYesor No = Thank you! We will check in
Your health department again tomorrow. In the
will contact you to check v meantime, if you develop a
in. fever or any of these

symptoms, please text ‘SYM’

If No answer to this number.
by 2 PMET
v

Please respond soon or your health dept will
IN contact you to check in: Have you or anyone you ’N
have traveled with developed these symptoms?
Reply ‘YES’ or ‘NO’.

v

=== If Yes or No

Figure 1. T.I.M. message flow

What information is needed to enroll individuals in T.I.M. for monitoring?

The only information needed to enroll an individual in T.I.M. is a U.S. mobile phone number. This mobile phone number
is the only identifiable piece of information entered into T.I.M. Other personal information linked to the patient phone
number should be maintained by the jurisdiction to cross-reference with the phone numbers in T.I.M. for any required
follow up.

Infrastructure

[s there a cost to jurisdictions to implement T.[.M.?

T.I.M. is a web-based system that does not require additional hardware or software. The system is available at no cost to
jurisdictions.

How is the data in T.I.M. secured?
T.LM. is a secure, scalable, applications in alignment with HIPAA and HITECH compliance requirements. Please see
Compliant Campaign's infrastructure security and compliance document for additional details:

What are the terms and conditions for using T..M.?

Terms and conditions are available here: https://www.tim-health.com /terms/.

T.I.M. FAQs for Public Health Departments Updated 2/27/2020
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Other

[s there flexibility to change the duration of monitoring?

Monitoring for COVID-19 is for 14 days. If an individual does not want or need to be monitored for the full 14 days, they
can text ‘STOP’ and they will no longer receive text messages from the system.

Can we remove or edit phone numbers entered into T.I.M.?

If a number is enrolled in T..M. and needs to be edited or an incorrect number needs to be removed, please contact

timsupport@compliantcampaign.com.

T.I.M. FAQs for Public Health Departments Updated 2/27/2020
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From: Philip, Susan (DPH)

To: Nieves, Israel (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Ochi, Ed (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH)
Subject: RE: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUIs and Patients are Boarded
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:54:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
imaae002.png

NYC has only used hotels for asymptomatic returning travelers; anyone with symptoms has been
hospitalized. They have said they will send their protocols/materials to me, | will share when
received.

Susan
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

From: Nieves, Israel (DPH) <israel.nieves@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 8:13 PM

To: Nguyen, Rita (DPH) <rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
<tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH)
<susan.philip@sfdph.org>

Subject: Re: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUls and Patients are Boarded

Thank you Rita. I believe we would work locally to share this guidance with
the business we contract with as a city. 1 truly appreciate your support.

Best
Israel
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From: Nguyen, Rita (DPH) <rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 7:27:09 PM

To: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>;
Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH)

<susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Nieves, Israel (DPH) <israel.nieves@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUls and Patients are Boarded

| think the closest guidance for cleaning hotels would be here:

https://www.cdc.gov/quarantine/maritime/recommendations-for-ships.html

and here: https://www.cdc.gov/quarantine/air/managing-sick-travelers/ncov-airlines.html (but much more so the

ships document)

which | included in the housing question doc that | reviewed (attached).
The ships document is quite thorough and generally applicable | think.
Relevant section below (they also have a PPE section in which the say masks but not N95):

Cleaning and Disinfection

At this time, in addition to routine cleaning and disinfection strategies, ships may consider
more frequent cleaning of commonly touched surfaces such as handrails, countertops, and
doorknobs. The primary mode of COVID-19 virus transmission is believed to be through
respiratory droplets that are spread from an infected person through coughing or sneezing to
a susceptible close contact within about 6 feet. Therefore, widespread disinfection is unlikely
to be effective.

Cleaning when COVID-19 is suspected

Cleaning recommendations are based on existing CDC infection control guidance for
preventing COVID-19 from spreading to others in homes.

Standard practice for pathogens spread by air (such as measles, tuberculosis) is to restrict
people unprotected (for example, no respiratory protection) from entering a vacated room
until sufficient time has elapsed for enough air changes to remove potentially infectious
particles (more information on clearance rates under differing ventilation conditions is

available).
We don’t yet know how long COVID-19 remains infectious in the air.

In the interim, it is reasonable to apply a similar time period before entering the sick person’s
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room without respiratory protection as used for other pathogens spread by air (for example,

measles, tuberculosis). Using measles as the example pdf icon[PDF — 13 pages], restrict access

for two hours after the sick person has left the room.

Clean surfaces infected by the respiratory secretions of a sick person suspected with COVID-19
(for example, in the sick person’s living quarters or work area, and in isolation rooms).

Use disinfectant products against COVID-19 with Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)-
approved emerging viral pathogens claims. These products can be identified by the following
claim:

e [Product name] has demonstrated effectiveness against viruses similar to COVID-19 on
hard non-porous surfaces. Therefore, this product can be used against COVID-19 when
used in accordance with the directions for use against [name of supporting virus] on
hard, non-porous surfaces.

o Specific claims for “COVID-19” will not appear on the product or master label.

o More information about EPA-approved emerging viral pathogens claims can be
found hereexternal icon.

o If there are no available EPA-registered products with an approved emerging viral
pathogen claim for COVID-19, use products with label claims against human
coronaviruses according to label instructions.

This claim or a similar claim, will be made only through the following communications outlets:
technical literature distributed exclusively to healthcare facilities, physicians, nurses, and
public health officials, “1-800” consumer information services, social media sites and company
websites (non-label related).

In addition to wearing disposable gloves during routine cleaning, wear disposable gowns when
cleaning areas suspected to be contaminated by COVID-19. Wear PPE compatible with the
disinfectant products being used and approved for use onboard the ship. Remove carefully pdf
icon[PDF — 1 page] gloves and gowns to avoid cross-contamination and the surrounding area.

Perform hand hygiene upon removing and disposing gloves by washing hands often with soap
and water for at least 20 seconds or using an alcohol-based hand sanitizer that contains 60 to
95% alcohol.

Clean all “high-touch” surfaces in the sick person’s room (for example, counters, tabletops,
doorknobs, light switches, bathroom fixtures, toilets, phones, keyboards, tablets, and bedside
tables) according to instructions described for the above EPA-registered product. Wear
disposable gloves and gowns during cleaning activities.

If visible contamination (for example, blood, respiratory secretions, or other body fluids) is
present, the basic principles for blood or body substance spill management are outlined in the
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United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Bloodborne Pathogen
Standardexternal icon. CDC guidelines recommend removing bulk spill matter, cleaning the
site, and then disinfecting the site with the above EPA-registered disinfectant. For soft
(porous) surfaces such as carpeted floor, rugs, and drapes, remove visible contamination if
present, and wash according to the manufacturer’s instructions. Clean and disinfect
unremovable materials with products mentioned above and allow to air dry.

When cleaning is completed, collect soiled textiles and linens in sturdy leak-proof containers;
these can be laundered using conventional processes following your standard operating
procedures. PPE should be removed and placed with other disposable items in sturdy, leak-
proof (plastic) bags that are tied shut and not reopened. The bags of used PPE and disposable
items can then be placed into the solid waste stream according to routine procedures. Follow
your standard operating procedures for waste removal and treatment.

No additional cleaning is needed for the ship’s supply-and-return ventilation registers or
filtration systems.

No additional treatment of wastewater is needed.
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Rita Nguyen, MD

Assistant Health Officer

Chronic Disease Physician Specialist
Population Health Division

San Francisco Department of Public Health

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 500
San Francisco 94102

(415) 437-6244
rita.nguyen@sfdph.org

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

From: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:47 PM
To: Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
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Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH)
<susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Nieves, Israel (DPH) <israel.nieves@sfgov.org>; Nguyen, Rita (DPH)

<rita.nguyen@sfdph.org>
Subject: RE: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUls and Patients are Boarded

Including Susan and Israel.

Ed- we are not expecting the hotel workers to clean or be in the room.

Stephanie- we discussed and thought that env health could get a contractor to clean at the end of
the stay, like we did in Ebola (obviously not the same standard). This would be for asymptomatic
people in quarantine but of course they could become symptomatic.

Susan- think it would be great to see what NYC did.

From: Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:10 PM

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Cc: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Cushing, Stephanie (DPH)

<Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>
Subject: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUls and Patients are Boarded

OK, | got a chance to paw through the ever-changing sea of CDC guidance documents. In a nutshell:
- cleaning techniques are unchanged,
- there’s some wiggle room in the PPE guidance which I’'m really not sure if we should exploit:

Closest thing to an applicable document for hotels is the CDC’s Interim Guidance for Preventing the

Spread of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in Homes and Residential Communities, last
reviewed February 18, 2020.

With regards to cleaning, the document simply states: “Clean all “high-touch” surfaces, such as
counters, tabletops, doorknobs, bathroom fixtures, toilets, phones, keyboards, tablets, and bedside
tables, every day. Also, clean any surfaces that may have blood, stool, or body fluids on them. Use a
household cleaning spray or wipe, according to the label instructions. Labels contain instructions for
safe and effective use of the cleaning product including precautions you should take when applying
the product, such as wearing gloves and making sure you have good ventilation during use of the
product.”

1) | would personally hope that a hotel would be cleaning bathrooms and high touch areas

with some form of disinfectant, routinely, not just for COVID-19 purposes.

2) If they buying new or more disinfectant they could always buy one with a Human
Coronavirus label (kill) claim but there’s no requirement or recommendation that they
do so.

With regards to PPE the document says: “You and the patient should wear a facemask if you are in
the same room. Wear a disposable facemask and gloves when you touch or have contact with the
patient’s blood, stool, or body fluids, such as saliva, sputum, nasal mucus, vomit, urine. Throw out
disposable facemasks and gloves after using them. Do not reuse.”

1) The document is targeted for household members, partners, and caregivers. In
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employer/employee arrangements such as a hotel | would anticipate that the employer
would be held to a higher standard.

2) Home healthcare providers are supposed to follow the CDC COVID-19 Infection Control
guidance.

- Ed

Edward Ochi, CIH, CSP

Director of Occupational Safety & Health
San Francisco Department of Public Health
Occupational Safety & Health Division

101 Grove Street, Room 217

San Francisco, CA 94102

Desk: (415) 554-2797

Main: (415) 554-2793

FAX: (415) 554-2562

Email: ed.ochi@sfdph.org

Occupational
Safetp &
Healt

**CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE** This email message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may contain

confidential, privileged, or protected health information. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, use or
distribution of the information included in this message and any attachments is prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please notify me immediately and permanently delete or otherwise destroy the information.

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 4:44 PM

To: Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>

Cc: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>

Subject: Fw: [Event COVID-19] Guidance on environmental disinfection and worker safety for non-
med settings including SFMTA, BART

Ed, Will these guidelines apply to cleaning hotel rooms?

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos

From: Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 9:12 PM
To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Starliper, Lisa (DEM)

<lisa.starliper@sfgov.org>; Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Stier, David
(DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>

Cc: Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>
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Subject: Re: [Event COVID-19] Guidance on environmental disinfection and worker safety for non-
med settings including SFMTA, BART

I can do 1 PM Wednesday, although it would be totally awesome if we had a
bit more time so we could ask people to submit some questions in advance so
that we could prep. With this approach we could still reserve time for
unsubmitted questions but it would reduce the free for all aspect of the
call.

Even without advanced questions if we could distribute the new Guidance for
Business for Environmental Cleaning (attached) before the conference call it
might help give some focus for any discussions.

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

Email: ed.ochi@sfdph. org

Sent from my iPhone ——
typos are from my fat fingers, strange wording from auto—correct trying to
translate Ed into English.

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 6:01:32 PM

To: Starliper, Lisa (DEM) <lisa.starliper@sfgov.org>; Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>; Cushing,
Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Stier, David (DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>

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

Please coordinate with Stephanie Cushing (EH) and Ed Ochi (OSH).

Tomas
p.s. plz excuse typos

From: Starliper, Lisa (DEM) <lisa.starliper@sfgov.org>
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 5:45 PM
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To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>;

Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Stier, David (DPH)
<david.stier@sfdph.org>

Cc: Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>

Subject: RE: [Event COVID-19] Guidance on environmental disinfection and worker safety for non-
med settings including SFMTA, BART

Understood.

Would Wednesday at 1pm be good for DPH to present on environmental disinfection? If so, I'll send
out the meeting invite tomorrow morning. We can also do Thursday at 1300.

Thanks,
Lisa

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 2:40 PM

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

Hi Lisa, | think it's okay to invite everyone but clearly state the topic. The information is
applicable to other agencies so it's good to give them the opportunity to participate. For
example, SFPD might be interested in how to disinfect their vehicles should they become
contaminated.

Thanks!

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
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"Radical transformational leadership is leading change from the universal values of dignity,
equity, compassion and humility to transform self, people, systems and cultures towards equity
and sustainable results."” (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)

NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged information. If
you are not the intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the information
is prohibited. Notify the sender immediately and delete all information.

From: Starliper, Lisa (DEM) <lisa.starliper@sfgov.org>

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2020 2:30 PM

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
<pnaveena.bobba@sfdph.org>

Subject: RE: [Event COVID-19] Guidance on environmental disinfection and worker safety for non-
med settings including SFMTA, BART

All,

Do you want the call with the city agencies (including BART) to be similar to Friday’s call, in regards
to participants (e.g. everyone citywide)? Or do you want to limit the audience to our transportation
partners only?

Also, when are you prepared to (1) participate in the call and (2) provide documentation to all
involved?

I’'m happy to schedule the call, just need to know you’re availability and status of the materials to be
discussed.

Thanks much,
Lisa

Lisa Starliper, MPA

Emergency Manager

Department of Emergency Management
Pronouns: She/Her/Hers

1011 Turk Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

lisa.starliper@sfgov.org
415-517-5092 (cell)
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From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Sent: Saturday, February 22, 2020 3:14 PM
To: Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>; Cushing, Stephanie (DPH)

<Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Stier, David (DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>
Cc: Starliper, Lisa (DEM) <lisa.starliper@sfgov.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>;

Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: [Event COVID-19] Guidance on environmental disinfection and worker safety for non-
med settings including SFMTA, BART

Stephanie & Ed,
| promised on citywide call, 2/21, we would respond to their need for guidance.
Just reviewed 1-pager.

(BTW, the Environmental Branch (?should include non-medical OSH) has been activated.)
Stephanie is branch chief.

| believe we need to set up a call with city agencies and BART dedicated to this topic (facility
and transportation vehicles, and worker safety).

They will have many questions and then we can make sure we provide and/or develop the
best materials for them.

ccing Lisa (DEM) to arrange/schedule.
Thanks everyone!

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
and sustainable results." (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)
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
Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 2:49 PM
To: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

<tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Stier, David (DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>
Subject: RE: [Event COVID-19] Guidelines on environmental disinfection

Guidance has gotten a tad more expansive. Not necessarily better, just more expansive.

Tomas, Stephanie, David and | will confer, come up with an updated answer, and get back to you. -
Ed

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

From: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH) <Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 2:47 PM

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Stier, David (DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>;
Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>

Subject: RE: [Event COVID-19] Guidelines on environmental disinfection

Importance: High

Attached is what Ed and | developed about a month ago. These directions were for families or
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workers who may be cleaning COVID-19 residences or rooms in homes.

This can be edited for cleaning hard surface again using bleach mixture or EPA approved, and can
address corona viruses.

Stephanie

Stephanie K.J. Cushing, MSPH, CHMM, REHS
TREEE

Director of Environmental Health
Population Health Division
Department of Public Health
1390 Market Street, Suite 210
San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 252-3926

Confidentiality Notice: This email message and attachments are solely for the intended recipient
and may contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, any
disclosure, copying, use or distribution of the information included in this message and any other
attachments is prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the
sender immediately and permanently delete or otherwise destroy the information.

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>
Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 2:20 PM

To: Stier, David (DPH) <david.stier@sfdph.org>; Cushing, Stephanie (DPH)
<Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org>; Ochi, Ed (DPH) <ed.ochi@sfdph.org>

Subject: [Event COVID-19] Guidelines on environmental disinfection

You may already have this information ready:

City agencies are asking for clear guidelines on environmental disinfection (buses, BART,
facilities, etc.)

This is a great opportunity to provide uniform, high-quality guidance that is easy to implement
across the city.

What are the best materials to provide? Do we need to develop something user-friendly?

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
and sustainable results.” (learn more http://bit.ly/phd-lead)

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
Subject: Features from this Week: Adult Immunization Records, World Birth Defects Days, and More!
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:53:36 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

=

Week in Review
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male physician talking to older male patient

Adult Vaccination Records

Your vaccination record (sometimes called your immunization record) provides a history of all the
vaccines you received as a child and adult. This record may be required for certain jobs, travel
abroad, or school registration.

Locate Your Vaccine Records >

En Espanol >

World Birth Defects Day
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Every year, about 3-6% of infants worldwide are born with a serious birth defect. This means that life-

altering conditions like spina bifida and congenital heart defects affect millions of babies and families.

Birth defects can affect babies regardless of where they are born, their socioeconomic status, or their

race or ethnicity.

Birth Defects Tracking and Research >

family baking in the kitchen

Say No to Raw Dough!

Spending time with family and friends while
preparing delicious baked foods in the kitchen is
a great way to celebrate special occasions.
Follow these safety tips to help you stay healthy
when handling raw dough.

<]

Safe Food Handling Practices >
En Espafiol >

Diabetes Statistics 2020

New diabetes cases have decreased over the last decade except in people younger than 20 years.
And in adults, there is much room for improvement in preventing diabetes complications. Data from

this report can help focus critical type 2 diabetes prevention and diabetes management efforts across

the nation.

Read the Diabetes Report >

Disease of the Week Image of the Week


https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9efa473,4d0f9e9,4d11059
https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9efa473,4d0f9e9,4d1105a
https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9efa473,4d0f9e9,4d1105b
https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9efa473,4d0f9e9,4d1105c
https://t.emailupdates.cdc.gov/r/?id=h9efa473,4d0f9e9,4d1105d

three men smiling

Heart Disease and Men COVID-19

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

1600 Clifton Rd  Atlanta, GA 30329 1-800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636) TTY: 888-232-6348
tions or Problems | Unsubscribe
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From: Daniel Becker

To: Varisto, Michaela (DPH); Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Vivian Araullo; Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH);
Sims, Linda (DPH)

Cc: Jason Klumb; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Colfax, Grant (DPH); Brown, Michael (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Katherine
General; Debra Grabelle

Subject: RE: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:27:15 AM

Got it.

Thanks,

Daniel

Daniel Becker

Field Representative
SEIU Local 1021

350 Rhode Island

Suite 100 South Bldg.
San Francisco, CA 94103

Office: 415-848-3639
Cell: 510-499-1464
Fax: 415-431-6241

www.seiu1021.org

The most important word in the language of the working class is "solidarity."—
Harry Bridges

From: Varisto, Michaela (DPH) <michaela.varisto@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:26 AM

To: Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
<tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH)
<Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason Klumb <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>;
Colfax, Grant (DPH) <grant.colfax@sfdph.org>; Brown, Michael (DPH) <michael.brown@sfdph.org>;
Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Katherine General <kgeneral@ifpte21.org>; Debra
Grabelle <debra.grabelle@ifpte21.org>

Subject: RE: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Daniel,

On Wednesday at 12:04 an email was sent from Carol Delorio at DHR that the meeting will be
Friday, February 28th, at 1:00pm in SF City Hall, Room 201.

Regards,
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Michaela C. Varisto

Executive Secretary to the Director of Health
San Francisco Department of Public Health
101 Grove Street, Room 308

San Francisco, CA 94102

Phone: (415) 554-2526

Email: michaela.varisto@sfdph.org

Pronouns: she, her, hers

Confidentiality Notice: This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and
may contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, any
disclosure, copying, use or distribution of the information included in this message and any
attachments are prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify me by
reply e-mail and immediately and permanently delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.

From: Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiul021.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:18 AM

To: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>;
Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH)
<kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason Klumb <Jason.Klumb@seiu1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>;
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

Please let us know when the meeting is.

Thanks,
Daniel

Daniel Becker

Field Representative
SEIU Local 1021

350 Rhode Island

Suite 100 South Bldg.
San Francisco, CA 94103

Office: 415-848-3639
Cell: 510-499-1464


mailto:michaela.varisto@sfdph.org
mailto:Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org
mailto:naveena.bobba@sfdph.org
mailto:varaullo@ifpte21.org
mailto:tomas.aragon@sfdph.org
mailto:kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org
mailto:Linda.Sims@sfdph.org
mailto:Jason.Klumb@seiu1021.org
mailto:juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org
mailto:grant.colfax@sfdph.org
mailto:michael.brown@sfdph.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
mailto:kgeneral@ifpte21.org
mailto:debra.grabelle@ifpte21.org

Fax: 415-431-6241
www.seiu1021.org

The most important word in the language of the working class is "solidarity."—
Harry Bridges

From: Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>
Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2020 12:10 PM
To: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>; Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>; Aragon,

Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims,
Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

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

Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Hello,

DHR will be setting up a meeting on Friday with labor about the COVID-19 emergency
declaration. We will be addressing questions and concerns as well as asking for how we can
plan together.

Sincerely,

Naveena

From: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>

Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2020 11:32 AM

To: Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>; Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
<tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH)

<Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>
Cc: Jason Klumb <Jason.Klumb@seiu1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>;

Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Colfax, Grant (DPH) <grant.colfax@sfdph.org>;
Brown, Michael (DPH) <michael.brown@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>;
Katherine General <kgeneral@ifpte21.org>; Debra Grabelle <debra.grabelle@ifpte21.org>

Subject: RE: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Hello,

Thank you Daniel. Local 21 also agrees to a meeting.
Please give us dates as soon as possible.

Thank you, Vivian

From: Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiul021.org>

Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2020 11:09 AM

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>;
Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>
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

Hi,

| think we should have a meeting where you hear our members’ concerns. Can you give us some
dates?

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

Sent: Saturday, February 22, 2020 12:11 AM

To: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims,
Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason Klumb <Jason.Klumb@seiu1021.org>; Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>;
Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH)
<naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Colfax, Grant (DPH) <grant.colfax@sfdph.org>; Brown, Michael (DPH)

<michael.brown@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Katherine General
<kgeneral@ifpte21.org>; Debra Grabelle <debra.grabelle@ifpte21.org>
Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

No spaces have been used.
We are planning and preparing.

We will work w admin to provide detailed communications and address concerns.
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
and sustainable results."

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

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 10:05 PM

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH)
<kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker
<Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena
(DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Colfax, Grant (DPH) <grant.colfax@sfdph.org>; Brown, Michael

(DPH) <michael.brown@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>; Katherine
General <kgeneral@ifpte21.org>; Debra Grabelle <debra.grabelle@ifpte21.org>
Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Hello Tomas.

Thank you for your response. You have yet to confirm or deny the rumors on the use of
BHC/HB as a quarantine space.

You will also have to, very soon, inform us which spaces within DPH are/will be impacted.
There will definitely be union members in those spaces as well.

The Union's concern is the health and safety of our workers, of their families, when they go
back to their homes, and as well, of the general public.
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We will consult our members on how they wish to proceed, should they wish a meeting. We
will get back to you shortly,

| will be available by email through the weekend, as we await a straightforward reply, and your
plans.

Thank you.

Vivian Z. Araullo

Representative/Organizer
IFPTE, Local 21

1167 Mission Street, Second Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103
415.864.2100 Local 21 Main

Website: www.ifpte21.org

From: Aragon, Tomas (DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 9:52 PM

To: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims,
Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker
<Daniel.Becker@seiul021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena

(DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>; Colfax, Grant (DPH) <grant.colfax@sfdph.org>; Brown, Michael
(DPH) <michael.brown@sfdph.org>; Philip, Susan (DPH) <susan.philip@sfdph.org>

Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Dear Ms. Araullo,
Thank you for reaching out.
Unfortunately, across the US and California health officials are having to identify appropriate

spaces for non-hospitalized persons who require quarantine or isolation. Ideally, this would
be done at home.
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We are preparing for persons who do not have an appropriate home or living situation (e.g.,
homeless, or vulnerable person(s) in their home).

Within DPH we have identified a few spaces, and we are looking for more. The city's EOC Care
and Shelter Branch is activated and is looking for more living spaces in SF that meet the
requirements.

This is a collective citywide effort to make sure we care for our residents with compassion and
respect.

We are following CDC and CDPH safety guidelines.

| suggest we meet to hear your ideas, get your input, and address your concerns.
We will work with Drs. Colfax and Bobba on next steps. Thank you again.

With gratitude,

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

From: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte?1.org>

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 9:09 PM

To: Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>
Cc: Jason. Klumb@seiul021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker
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<Daniel.Becker@seiul021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas
(DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <naveena.bobba@sfdph.org>

Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird
Hi Kelly,

Thank you for your quick response. With all due respect, however, your did not give us a direct
response to the question on the BHC/HB being potentially used as a quarantine space.

You must address this rumor circulating at BHC/Hummingbird with directness and clarity, and
as soon as possible.

Failure to assure our members of their safety and health at the workplace is a violation of our
MOU.

Thank you.

For the Union,

Vivian

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

From: Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 8:37 PM

To: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>; Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker
<Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas
(DPH) <tomas.aragon@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena (DPH) <nhaveena.bobba@sfdph.org>
Subject: Re: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Hi Vivian,

Thank you for reaching out. | appreciate your concern. Please be assured we would not make plans
that would place employees at risk.

I am including Dr. Juliet Stoltey, Director, Communicable Disease Control and Prevention, Dr. Tomas
Aragon, Health Officer, and Naveena Bobba, the Department Operations Center Director, to respond
to your concerns as the subject matter experts on public health emergency response and any
guestions you may have regarding COVID-19.

Until they can respond, | will direct you to the federal CDC site that provides information and
guidance related to managing care for individuals in a residential setting:

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/guidance-prevent-spread.html
Kelly

Kelly Hiramoto, LCSW

Special Projects Manager

SF Department of Public Health
415.554.2828 Telephone

This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may contain
confidential or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying,
use or distribution of the information included in this message and any attachments is prohibited. If
you have received this communication in error, please notify me by reply e-mail and immediately
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and permanently delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.

From: Vivian Araullo <varaullo@ifpte21.org>
Sent: Friday, February 21, 2020 7:37:29 PM
To: Sims, Linda (DPH) <Linda.Sims@sfdph.org>; Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH) <kelly.hiramoto@sfdph.org>

Cc: Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker
<Daniel.Becker@seiul1021.org>

Subject: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

It's come to the Union's attention that rumors are circulating at BHC/Hummingbird alleging
that Hummingbird, adjacent to BHC, will be used as a quarantine area for coronavirus-affected
or suspected coronavirus- affected individuals.

We are deeply concerned. We would like to have facts on this matter. If this rumor has basis,
please provide the Union your plans to inform and protect our members ASAP. If the rumor is
untrue, please say so as well.

Please reply as soon as possible, as our members do not feel safe.

Thank you for your cooperation. Please reply as soon as possible. Please be assured, we do not
want to cause undue panic, but we also do not want these rumors to go unaddressed, since
our members' health and safety might be at stake.

Absent an explanation, we are prepared to escalate this to higher authorities within DPH.
Please respond ASAP.

Thank you.
For the Union,

Vivian Araullo
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
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From: Varisto, Michaela (DPH)

To: Daniel Becker; Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Vivian Araullo; Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH); Sims, Linda
(DPH)

Cc: Jason Klumb; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Colfax, Grant (DPH); Brown, Michael (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Katherine
General; Debra Grabelle

Subject: RE: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:26:08 AM

Attachments: 2.26.20 LABOR NOTICE - All Labor Organizations Meeting 2.28.20 Re Mavors Emergency Declaration on COVID
19.pdf

2.26.20 City Employee Notice.pdf

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

From: Daniel Becker <Daniel.Becker@seiu1021.org>

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
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Department of Human Resources
Connecting People with Purpose
www.sfdhr.org

City and County of San Francisco
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 26, 2020
LABOR NOTICE: All Labor Organizations Meeting
When: Friday, February 28" at 1:00 pm
Where: San Francisco City Hall, Room 201
Subject: COVID-19 (Novel Coronavirus)
From: Carol Isen, Employee Relations Director

Please attend this special labor briefing on San Francisco’s planning and response efforts to the global
outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus).

Representatives from the Departments of Public Health, Emergency Management and Human Resources
will present on the City’s response to date, health and safety considerations for City employees, Disaster
Service Worker requirements and related topics. Due to space limitations, we ask that you please limit
your union’s attendance to key leadership. RSVP to Carol Delorio at carol.delorio@sfgov.org are
appreciated.

cc: Micki Callahan, Human Resources Director
Mary Ellen Carroll, Director, Department of Emergency Management
Grant Colfax, Director of Health

Attachment:  City Employee Notice, 2/26/2020

One South Van Ness Avenue, 4" Floor @ San Francisco, CA 94103-5413 e (415) 557-4800
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Delorio, Carol (HRD)

From: DHR Alert (HRD)
Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2020 11:12 AM
Subject: Update for City Employees on Emergency Declaration for COVID-19

(novel coronavirus)

Dear City and County Employees:

Mayor London Breed has issued a declaration of a local emergency in San Francisco in response to the
global outbreak and spread of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus). This was a proactive step that will allow
the City to better prepare for the possibility of a local COVID-19 outbreak.

San Francisco has zero confirmed cases of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus).

Disaster Service Workers

As you know, all City and County employees are designated by State law as Disaster Service Workers
(DSWs). This means that when the Mayor declares a local emergency, employees may be deployed to
different work sites than usual, or be asked to perform work duties or tasks that are different from their
regular work responsibilities. No one will be assigned duties they are not qualified or trained to
perform. If you have questions about the responsibilities of a DSW, please speak with your
department’s human resources team.

Maintaining A Respectful Workplace

A person’s risk for COVID-19 depends on travel history, not on race, ethnicity or culture. Residents of
the Bay Area remain at low risk of infection from COVID-19, unless they have recently traveled to
Mainland China, or have come in close contact with someone who was ill and recently traveled in
Mainland China. As a reminder, City employees must abide by the Respect in the Workplace policy, and
treat colleagues and members of the public with courtesy and respect. Discrimination of any kind is a
violation of the City's Equal Employment Opportunity policies and will not be tolerated.

Staying Healthy

We advise City employees to take the following steps to protect themselves and their families from
infection:

1. Take preventive measures such as frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20
seconds or use an alcohol-based sanitizer.
Cover your coughs and sneezes, avoid touching your face.
Stay home if you are sick.
Get your flu shot to protect against flu or symptoms similar to COVID-19
If you feel sick, please call your primary care physician or the nurse advice line. Employees have
sick leave available should they need to stay home due to illness.
' 1
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a. Kaiser members: Contact the nurse advice line listed on your insurance card.
b. Blue Shield members: Contact your primary care physician listed on your insurance card

c. United Healthcare members: Contact your physician.

Stay up to date on this rapidly evolving situation by visiting www.sfdph.org or www.sf72.org. For more
information on Disaster Service Workers visit DHR's website: https://sfdhr.org/disaster-service-workers

Sincerely,

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Department of Human Resources

Connecting People with Purpose

* Please do not reply to this message. Replies to this message are routed to an unmonitored mailbox.







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
www.seiul021.org

The most important word in the language of the working class is "solidarity."—Harry
Bridges

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
<Daniel.Becker@seiul1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Bobba, Naveena
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

Cc: Jason.Klumb@seiul1021.org <Jason.Klumb@seiul021.org>; Daniel Becker

<Daniel.Becker@seiul1021.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Aragon, Tomas
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

| am including Dr. Juliet Stoltey, Director, Communicable Disease Control and Prevention, Dr. Tomas
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
<Daniel.Becker@seiul021.org>

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

To: Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Vivian Araullo; Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Hiramoto, Kelly (DPH); Sims, Linda (DPH)

Cc: Jason Klumb; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Colfax, Grant (DPH); Brown, Michael (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Katherine
General; Debra Grabelle

Subject: RE: URGENT: Rumors re corona virus quarantine at Hummingbird

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:18:23 AM

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

Sent: Saturday, February 22,2020 12:11 AM

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


https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fhcp%2Fguidance-prevent-spread.html&data=02%7C01%7C%7C5be5d5c5f34143bf5ab308d7baf7d411%7Ce35c5b2684f74b9ba7c591278c732568%7C0%7C0%7C637183445926725632&sdata=%2BYNXBIJYp54U1ozH1ncKlE5yhpmy%2Fa9MrBMn%2FrEjyY0%3D&reserved=0
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


https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ifpte21.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7C%7C5be5d5c5f34143bf5ab308d7baf7d411%7Ce35c5b2684f74b9ba7c591278c732568%7C0%7C0%7C637183445926735622&sdata=98ZWY39kaq3HNvOFkCF%2FILJgPlaHodXcQprHJnoiuek%3D&reserved=0

From: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Week of February 24 - PHIL Image of the Day
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 11:02:09 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

<]

Weekly PHIL Images

Featured Image

Transmission electron microscopic image of an
isolate from the first U.S. case of COVID-19,
formerly known as 2019-nCoV. The spherical viral
particles, colorized blue, contain cross-sections
through the viral genome, seen as black dofts.

Learn more about this image >

]

-]
-]
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This 3-dimensional (3D) image illustrates the very In this 2017 photo, captured inside a clinical

beginning stages of an influenza (flu) infection.
Most experts think that influenza viruses spread
mainly through small droplets containing
influenza virus.

Learn more about this image >

3D illustration of Chlamydia psittaci bacteria

This illustration depicted a three-dimensionall
(3D), computer-generated image, of a group
of Gram-negative, Chlamydia psittaci
bacteria. The artistic recreation was based
upon scanning electron...

Learn mor t this im >

setting, a health care provider was placing a
bandage on the injection site of a patient, who
just received an influenza vaccine. The best
way to prevent...

Learn more about this image >

This fransmission electron microscopic image,
revealed some of the ulfrastructural details
displayed by a Listeria sp. bacterium, including
the presence of its peritrichous flagella,
originating...

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

Sign up for the COVID-192 newsletter if you would like more information on the coronavirus

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
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From: Masinde, Godfred (DPH)

To: DuBois, Amie (DPH); Chan, Curtis (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Louie, Janice (DPH)

Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Trammell, Stephanie (DPH); Lei, John (DPH)
Subject: Re: [External] RE: PUI 2651

Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 10:25:46 AM

Hi All,

The proper protocol that we need to follow is all specimens come through the San Francisco
Public Health Lab to be shipped from us not direct. It is very important that we are the
custodians of that information so that our department can have quick access to the data in the
future and for updates. Even shipping to CDPH we still need to be the source. Thanks

Godfred

Godfred Masinde, PhD, MBA, HCLD(ABB), CM (CA)
Laboratory Director

San Francisco Public Health Laboratories

101 Grove Street, Room 419

San Francisco, CA 94102

Email: Godfred.Masinde@sfdph.org

Tel: (415) 554-2685

Fax: (415) 431-0651

From: DuBois, Amie (DPH) <amie.dubois@sfdph.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 9:56 AM

To: Chan, Curtis (DPH) <curtis.chan@sfdph.org>; Stoltey, Juliet (DPH) <juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org>; Louie,
Janice (DPH) <janice.louie@sfdph.org>; Masinde, Godfred (DPH) <godfred.masinde@sfdph.org>
Subject: Fw: [External] RE: PUI 2651

Good morning. FYI, the specimens from Chinese Hospital were sent directly to the CDC early this
am. Tracking number provided by Chinese Hospital lab. | spent some time on the phone with the
lab director about lab specimens for nCoV-19 and would like to provide some direction in
writing. Do we have guidance in writing that we have provided to the SF clinical laboratories?

Godfred, please weigh in about how to best inform the labs about the process for submitting
specimens from the laboratory perspective.

From: David Jordan <davidj@chasf.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 9:32 AM

To: DuBois, Amie (DPH) <amie.dubois@sfdph.org>

Cc: Do, Jennifer-Xuan (DPH) <jennifer-xuan.do@sfdph.org>
Subject: FW: [External] RE: PUI 2651
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Thank you for your phone call just now. Please see below, email from EOC CDC
Atlanta at 6:52 this morning,

Thank you,

Dowvid

David Jordan
Laboratory Manager
Cell: (747) 267 3607
Office: (415) 677-2466
davidj@chasf.or:

www.ChineseHospital-SF.com

' ;r-:f?“a CHINESE
.1-. HOSPITAL 845 JACKSON STREET
madl & CLINICS SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94133

HOSPITAL

SAFETY GRI.\DE

CONFIDENTIALITY

This message (and any attachment) is intended for the sole use of the addressee(s). The information may contain privileged or
otherwise confidential information and is protected from disclosure by law. If you received this message in error, or have reason
to believe you are not authorized to receive it, please promptly delete or destroy this message (and attachments) and notify the
sender by e-mail. Thank you.

From: Jenkins, Leecresia T. (CDC/DDPHSIS/CPR/DEO) <gpj9@cdc.gov>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 6:52 AM

To: David Jordan <davidj@chasf.org>

Cec: Gina Yam <ginay@chasf.org>; CDC IMS Logistics Transportation
<eocevent306(@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS Logistics Section Chief (CDC) <eoclogchief@cdc.gov>;
EOC Report (CDC) <eocreport@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS 2019 NCOV Response PUI
<eocevent185@cdc.gov>

Subject: [External] RE: PUI 2651

Thank you for contacting the CDC EOC and providing the information below.

World Courier has scheduled pick up for this specimen at 9:30AM (Job #2142). The World
Courier driver should contact you upon arrival.

The package is scheduled to leave on Delta flight 3040 departing at 12:55PM, arriving in Atlanta
at 8:36PM, and delivered to CDC by 10:30PM 02/28/2020.

CDC SHIPPING ADDRESS


mailto:davidj@chasf.orgorg
http://www.chinesehospital-sf.com/

ATTN: STAT LAB - URGENT - 2019 Novel Coronavirus
c/o Steve Lindstrom, Shifaq Kamili (Unit 84)

Respiratory Viruses Diagnostic Laboratory / DVD

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

1600 Clifton Road, NE

Atlanta, Georgia, 30333

Telephone: 404-639-1587

Email: SQL5@CDC.GOV

VI/R,
Leeenesia Yenlsins, Ph.D.

Emergency Management Specialist

From: David Jordan <davidj@chasf.org>

Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 9:41 AM

To: CDC IMS Logistics Transportation <eocevent306@cdc.gov>; CDC IMS Logistics Section
Chief (CDC) <eoclogchief >

Cec: Gina Yam <gina hasf.org>

Subject: CDC Specimen Submission

Importance: High

Reference: PUI 0002651

On the instructions of EOC, CDC, this email is to inform you that we have two samples
(nasopharyngeal and oropharyngeal swabs) to submit on one of our patients. ED doctor
at this hospital discussed the case with San Francisco Public Health and was given PUI
number 0002651. | was told by CDC to await call with relevant shipping information.

Thank you,

Dawvid

David Jordan
Laboratory Manager
Cell: (747) 267 3607
Office:  (415) 677-2466
davidj@chasf.or:

www.ChineseHospital-SF.com

CHINESE
o HOSPITAL 845 JACKSON STREET
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

WARNING: This email originated outside of the Chinese Hospital/CCHP email system!
DO NOT CLICK links or open attachments if the sender is unknown and never provide your User ID or Password.



From: I

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Subject: Protect Yourself from Flu While Traveling
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 10:04:32 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

N
Influenza (Flu)
2019 - 2020 Flu Season

February 28, 2020

www.cdc.gov/flu

Weekly U.S. Influenza Surveillance Report

According to CDC's latest FluView report (Feb 16 — 22), national levels of
flu-like illness decreased but remain high and severity indicators confinue
to show children have been hit hard by flu this season. CDC estimates

that so far this season, there have been at least 32 million flu ilinesses,
310,000 hospitalizations and 18,000 deaths from flu.

Learn More

Protect Yourself from Flu While Traveling

Are you planning upcoming fravel? The risk for exposure to flu during
fravel can depend on the time of year and destination. People who

have not gotten a flu vaccine for the current season should get

-

vaccinated at least 2 weeks before traveling to destinations with ongoing
flu activity. If you plan to travel, make sure you know how to protect

yourself from flu.

Learn More

Keep Flu Out of Schools

This flu season has been especially bad for children. A recent CDC study
shows flu vaccines have helped cut in half the number of doctor’s visit for

flu among vaccinated children this season. Educators and staff can help

-

stop the spread of flu in schools by encouraging children, parents, and

staff to practice everyday preventive actions.

Learn More
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Follow us on Twitter
=] #Parents: if your child gets sick with #flu, make sure you know what to do! Identify symptoms early, if

they are at high risk consult your doctor, and keep them home while sick. hitps://go.usa.gov/xddac

Sian up for the newsletter to receive weekly emails about the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak.

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

1600 Cliffton Rd  Atlanta, GA 30329 1-800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636) TTY: 888-232-6348
tions or Problems | Unsubscribe
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From: CCSF Department of Emergency Management

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: DEM 24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report - 02-28-2020
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 9:31:36 AM

Report Date: 02-28-2020

24-Hour Daily Situational Awareness Report

Priority Information / Current Notable Local Incidents:

-The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has confirmed 11 cases of
the recently named COVID-19 (novel coronavirus-2019) in California:

2 — San Benito County
2 — San Diego County
2 — Santa Clara County
1 — Humbolt County

1 — Los Angeles County
1 — Orange County

1 — Sacramento County
1 - Yolo County

-The Department of Homeland Security issued supplemental instructions for inbound
flights with individuals who have been in China. For more information, see:
https://www.dhs.gov/news/2020/02/02/dhs-issues-supplemental-instructions-inbound-
flights-individuals-who-have-been-china

-The CDC has issued travel advisories to countries affected by the virus:
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html

-US Health and Human Services has declared a public health emergency. For more
information, see: https://www.hhs.gov/about/news/2020/01/31/secretary-azar-

declares-public-health-emergency-us-2019-novel-coronavirus.html

« Additional coronavirus information: https://.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-


mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org
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ncov/index.html or by calling 800-CDC- INFO | (800-232-4636) | TTY: (888) 232-6348

» CDC information for healthcare providers: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-
nCoV/guidance-hcp.html

 Information for San Francisco residents:
https://www.sf72.org/
https://www.sfdph.org/dph/

DEM Contact Information:

Watch Center Operations
Mon-Sun, 0600-2230 Hours
- Primary (415) 260-2591

- Desk (415) 558-2738

- Email: demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

Duty Officer (After Hours)
Mon-Sun, 2230-0600 Hours
- Current Duty Officer: Ed Trinh / 415-260-2591

Manager On Call (MOC): Bijan Karimi - 415-640-8269 - bijan.karimi@sfgov.org
Public Information Officer: Kristin Hogan - 415-518-2834 -
kristin.hogan@sfgov.org / 415-558-2712

Current EOC Status: Level 2
EOC Activation Levels:

| Level H EOC Status H Description H Time ‘
| DO /MOC H EOC Standby H Duty Officer / Manager On-Call H After-hours & Weekends ‘
Watch Center 0600-2230; daily
3 EOC Open (Monitoring) (excluding holidays)

Partial w/ 1st Response

2 EOC Open Elements & Support

As Needed

Full Activation
1 EOC Open (All Sections and Positions) As Needed
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Weather Summary and Forecast:

Today — Partly sunny with a high of 69. Winds of 5 to 7 mph.

Tonight — Cloudy with a low of 50. Winds of 10 mph.

Tomorrow — Mostly sunny with a high of 59. Winds of 13 to 21 mph with gusts of 26
mph.

Air Quality Index (AQlI):
Current: 77

Forecast: 59
WWW.airnow.gov

Happening Today - Special Events for 02-28-2020:

Friday (2/28/2020)

-RSA Data Security Conference @ Moscone Center, 7:00am to 7:00pm

-Galantis @ Bill Graham, 8:00pm to 12:00am

-Filming Street Closure @ Quincy St between California and Pine, 7:00am to 7:00pm
and Sacramento between Leidesdorff and Battery, 8:00pm to March 1, 7:00pm and
Sansome between Clay and Sutter

Happening This Week - Special Events from 02-29-2020 to 03-06-2020:

Saturday (2/29/2020)

-Dash and Splash Polar Plunge @ Aquatic Park, 7:00am to 3:00pm

-Filming Street Closure @ Pine between Front and Montgomery, 7:00am to 5:00am
-Filming activity @ 444 Stockton, 5:00pm to 5:00am

Sunday (3/1/2020)

-YMCA Chinese New Years Run @ Portsmouth Square (street closures), 7:30am to
10:30am

-Warriors vs. Wizards @ Chase Center, 5:30pm to 9:00pm

-Filming Street Closure @ Pine between Montgomery and Market, 3:00pm to 5:00am
-Filming activity @ 444 Stockton, 5:00pm to 5:00am


http://www.airnow.gov/

Monday (3/2/2020)
-No large events scheduled

Tuesday (3/03/2020)
-No large events scheduled

Wednesday (3/04/2020)
-Hamilton Education Program @ Fulton between Hyde and Larkin (street closures),
8:00am to 6:00pm

Thursday (3/05/2020)
-Warriors vs. Raptors @ Chase Center, 7:30pm to 11:00pm

Friday (3/06/2020)
-No Large events scheduled

Critical Branch Updates:

CCSF Transportation Branch:
- SFMTA Muni Alert messages: https://www.sfmta.com

CCSF Infrastructure Branch:
- Nothing significant to report.

CCSF Public Safety Branch:
- Nothing significant to report.

CCSF Health and Human Services Branch:
- The San Francisco Department of Public Health continues to coordinate with partner
agencies to monitor the COVID-19 (novel coronavirus-2019) situation.

CCSF Community Branch:
- Community Branch has activated to provide COVID-19 information to city partners,
schools and the private sector.



Domestic and International News:
Earthquake shakes Lake County area, felt as far as Petaluma

A magnitude 3.5 earthquake rattled a remote area of Lake County near Cobb Thursday afternoon,
according to officials with the U.S. Geological Survey. The small quake struck at 3:27 p.m. in the area
south of Clear Lake, about four miles northwest of Cobb, the USGS reported. Some reported feeling the
earthquake as far south as Petaluma, which is 60 miles south of Cobb. The USGS characterized its
intensity as a light earthquake.

https://www.sacbee.com/news/local/article240712501.html

8,400 people in Calif. are being monitored for coronavirus, Gov. Newsom says

California Governor Gavin Newsom said in a press conference Thursday that at least 8,400 people are
being monitored for new coronavirus in the state. The news comes a day after the Centers for Disease
Control announced what's being called the first American case of unknown origin. That Solano County
resident is being treated at UC Davis Medical Center near Sacramento. State and federal health officials
are trying to locate everyone who came in contact with the Northern California woman. She had no known
connection to individuals who traveled abroad or other known causes. The woman lives in Solano
County, home to Travis Air Force Base, where dozens of people infected in China or on cruise ships have
been treated. But Sonia Angell, director of the California Department of Public Health, said there was no
evidence the woman had any connection to the base. "We are not overreacting, but we are not
underreacting," Newsom said. "Yesterday's case generated a lot of attention, but we all knew this was
inevitable." Newsom declined comment when asked by reporters to name the community in Solano
County where the woman is from. He urged people to take precautions while emphasizing that the risks
to public health are low. He said there was no need to declare a public health emergency. “Everybody in
this country is rightfully anxious about this moment,” Newsom said. “I think they should know we are
meeting this moment with the kind of urgency that is necessary and | don’t want to over extend the
anxiety.”

https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/Gavin-Newsom-coronavirus-California-people-monitor-15089928.php

Congress eyes billions in funding to fight coronavirus

WASHINGTON (AP) — Capitol Hill negotiations on emergency spending to combat the coronavirus
outbreak are likely to produce a bill that’s double or even triple the $2.5 billion plan requested by
President Donald Trump just days ago. Lawmakers and aides involved in the talks say they are
proceeding well and are likely to produce legislation in the $6 billion to $8 billion range. Both the
Democratic-controlled House and GOP-held Senate are eager to complete work on the measure in the
next two weeks.

https://apnews.com/c3b49aaa207f10607f4affcc821d42d4

The City & County of San Francisco (CCSF) Department of Emergency Management’s Duty Officer



Program compiles and disseminates this product in order to maintain situational awareness among public
safety partners.

CCSF Alert is owned and operated by the City and County of San Francisco. To change the way you
receive CCSF Alerts, contact your Department's Disaster Preparedness Coordinator.



From: State and Local Readiness (CDC)

To: State and Local Readiness (CDC)
Subject: 2-28-2020 CDC Media Telebriefing: Update on COVID-19
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 8:24:47 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Media Advisory

For Immediate Release
Friday Feb. 28, 2020

Contact: CDC Media Relations
(404) 639-3286

CDC Media Telebriefing: Update on COVID-19

What The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) will provide an update
to media on the COVID-19 response.

Who Nancy Messonnier, M.D., Director,
National Center for Immunization and Respiratory Diseases

When 12:15 p.m. ET Friday, Feb. 28, 2020
Dial-In
Non-Media: 888-795-0855

International: 1-630-395-0498
PASSCODE: 6656039

Important Instructions
Due to anticipated high volume, please plan to dial in to the telebriefing 15 minutes before the
start time.

Media: If you would like to ask a question during the call, press *1 on your touchtone phone.
Press *2 to withdraw your question. You may queue up at any time. You will hear a tone to
indicate your question is pending.

TRANSCRIPT
A transcript will be available following the briefing at CDC’s web site:www.cdc.gov/media.

HiH


mailto:preparedness@cdc.gov
mailto:preparedness@cdc.gov
http://www.cdc.gov/media
http://www.cdc.gov/media

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

CDC works 24/7 protecting America’s health, safety and security. Whether diseases start at
home or abroad, are curable or preventable, chronic or acute, or from human activity or
deliberate attack, CDC responds to America’s most pressing health threats. CDC is
headquartered in Atlanta and has experts located throughout the United States and the world.
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From: EPIXUpdate@cdc.gov

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Epi-X Today: Friday, February 28, 2020
Date: Friday, February 28, 2020 2:05:38 AM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

| 2]
Epi-X reports posted in your areas of interest in the past 72 hours. To view a specific report, click on its
URL.

~*~ Global Immunization News Report, February 27, 2020 ~*~

Today's Global Immunization News report includes polio, measles, Ebola, mumps, Yellow fever, cholera,
policy and funding, vaccine demand and safety, coronavirus, and other news for Thursday, February 27,
2020.

https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=81117

~*~ Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - COVID-19, February 27, 2020 ~*~
This report provides special media coverage of the 2019 novel coronavirus outbreak (COVID-19).
https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=81269

~*~ Media Tracking Report, February 27, 2020 ~*~

Media stories include influenza in multiple states; Legionnaires' in lllinois; mumps in California and New
York; pertussis in Minnesota; COVID-19 in the U.S. and other multiple countries; Lassa fever in Nigeria;
dengue in Chile; polio in Pakistan; H1N1 in India; and other media coverage.

https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Reports/Display.aspx?id=81154

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

IMPORTANT REMINDERS

Update your contact information: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Profile.aspx

Learn about Epi-X training opportunities: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/help/Training_Opportunities.htm
Receive this message in Text format: https://epix2.cdc.gov/v2/Preferences.aspx#Email
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From: Nieves, Israel (DPH)

To: Nguyen, Rita (DPH); Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Ochi, Ed (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH)
Subject: Re: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUIs and Patients are Boarded
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 8:12:45 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png

Thank you Rita. I believe we would work locally to share this guidance with the business we
contract with as a city. I truly appreciate your support.

Best
Israel

Get Qutlook for i0OS

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
Safety &
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


https://www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/guidelines/environmental/appendix/air.html#tableb1
https://www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/pdf/guidelines/Measles-Interim-IC-Recs-H.pdf
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https://www.cdc.gov/handwashing/when-how-handwashing.html

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


https://www.osha.gov/SLTC/bloodbornepathogens/standards.html
https://www.osha.gov/SLTC/bloodbornepathogens/standards.html
mailto:Susan.Philip@sfdph.org

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
- there’s some wiggle room in the PPE guidance which I'm really not sure if we should exploit:

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

Desk: (415) 5542797

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

gccupational
afety &
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
REIHE
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



From: Nguyen, Rita (DPH)

To: Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Ochi, Ed (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Nieves, Israel (DPH)
Subject: Re: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUIs and Patients are Boarded
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 7:27:11 PM
Attachments: image001.png

imaae002.png

hoteltalkinapoints2020v2 rn edits.docx

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
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COVID-19 Hotel Outreach Script + Questions

Hotel Outreach Script

Hello, my name is (name) and I work for the City and County of SF as (role).  As you may know, the Mayor made an has declared an emergency declaration to strengthen the City’s preparedness to respond due to the COVID 19 (novel Ccoronavirus). This allows the city and county to access resources, should there become a need if there is a confirmed case in SF.  We are working closely with the Department of Public Health to ensure that residents of the city and county of SF are prepared if needed.



First of all, there are still no confirmed cases of COVID 19 in San Francisco.  However, we are preparing for a situation in which we may want to house San Francisco residents who live in a communal living situation where they are sharing a bathroom or cooking space – such as those living in a dorm or SRO.

a resident has traveled to mainland China and, though have not tested positive for the virus and are not ill, may need to self-isolate based on their travel history. However, due to their communal living situation, such as a shared bathroom or cooking space, this is not possible.  We are reaching out to our partners in the city in an attempt to identify and secure temporary lodging for people who have not tested positive for the virus but may need alternate lodging.



Would you be interested/are you able to reserve a block a rooms for the City as part of this effort?

Levels of Risk and Housing	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): Need to figure out how to message to hotels who we’re housing.

Hotel Expectations

· Guests should be treated as you would any other guest. They are not ill and pose no threat.

· You and your staff will not be responsible for checking on or “monitoring” guests.  

· You will not be required to institute any additional sanitation requirements. [validate]	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): Closest guidance here:
https://www.cdc.gov/quarantine/maritime/recommendations-for-ships.html
and here: https://www.cdc.gov/quarantine/air/managing-sick-travelers/ncov-airlines.html

· We are urging you and your staff to use the same best practices that are standard for a typical flu season—frequent washing of hands, using hand sanitizer, etc. [provide info sheet]	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): See references above

· City agencies will be coordinating food deliveries and laundry pick up/delivery for lodgers.

· The Environmental Health Unit through DPH will assist in the deep cleaning of rooms. [validate]	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): Need to discuss

· Lodgers with pets are responsible for taking care of their pets.

What we need to know:

· Do you allow pets?

· Do all of your rooms have their own bathroom?

· Do you have ADA compliant rooms?

· Do you have parking? Do you charge for parking (for those that may have their own vehicles)?

· Do you have WiFi?

· Do rooms have a fridge?

· Do rooms have a microwave?



Questions That May Arise

· Who is paying for this?

· The City and County of San Francisco will be paying.

· Do we need extra security? 

· Will we be providing security? Is this something DPH recommends?No

· What do we say if other guests ask questions?

· What guidance does DPH provide around this for hotel managers?	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): This isn’t a DPH specific question. They generally shouldn’t be giving info on guests to other guests? 

· What, if anything, do we say to our employees?

· Same as above

· [bookmark: _GoBack]How will we know if lodgers test “positive” or are cleared?	Comment by Nguyen, Rita (DPH): I would answer this in a way that we would not be disclosing information about the resident

· Need DPH guidance on this





Updated: Thursday, February 27, 2020


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


https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/emerging-viral-pathogen-guidance-antimicrobial-pesticides
https://www.cdc.gov/vhf/ebola/pdf/poster-how-to-remove-gloves.pdf
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

o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok sk sk ok sk sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok

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

1) |'would personally hope that a hotel would be cleaning bathrooms and high touch areas

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

Email: ed. ochi@sfdph. org

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
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From: CCSF Alert

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH
Subject: CCSF Situation Report - Update - COVID-19 (#19)
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 7:26:20 PM
Importance: High

H

Please click here to acknowledge receipt of this message

Situation Report - Update - covip-19

Department of Emergency Management
Division of Emergency Services

02-27-2020 - 19:24:02

Change Since Last Situation Report:

i ion

¢ International data:
o 82,557 confirmed cases; 78,497 cases in mainland China; 2,745 deaths in mainland China; 65
deaths outside mainland China
o 4,053 confirmed cases outside of mainland China across 51 countries/regions. (fotal includes 705
cases on the Diamond Princess cruise ship docked at Yokohama, Japan)
e National (U.S.) data:
o 60 total confirmed cases in the USA (includes repatriation flights to Travis AFB, Lockland AFB,
Providence Sacred Heart-Spokane & University of Nebraska-Omaha)
¢ 9 total confirmed cases in California
e The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) yesterday confirmed a
possible first case of person-to-person transmission of COVID-19 in California among
the general public.
e The individual is a resident of Solano County and is receiving medical care in
Sacramento County. The individual had no known exposure to the virus through travel or
close contact with a known infected individual.
https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6
o NOTE: Information may vary as events and reporting are rapidly evolving. Differences in number of
confirmed cases may vary due to the following reporting methods:
e Global cases sourced from Jonhs Hopkins University CSSE site.
e U.S. cases sourced from CDC site.
o CA cases sourced from CDPH site.

There are no confirmed cases among San Francisco residents.
There are no recommendations to cancel events.

We are in flu season. The San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) recommends that
persons with symptoms stay home from work, school and social gatherings. Practice hand-
washing precautions. It is not too late to get the flu vaccine.

The City and County of San Francisco, led by the Health Department, is working on preventing the virus,
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containing its spread, and reducing harm in the community. We are focused on the most vulnerable
groups, including children, people in congregate settings and the elderly. However, every sector has a role
to play to ensure community health and safety. The health care system, schools, businesses and
individuals can all do their part.

FDEM (D ment of Emergency Man ment) Activities:

e To support the Department of Public Health response, the Department of Emergency Management
continues expanded activation of San Francisco’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) to assist with
coordination of resources and established a Community Branch comprised of community, faith, business
and education partners. As a result, community and government partners can work together to identify and
coordinate our response to emerging issues.

e Mayor Breed made an emergency declaration to strengthen the City’s preparedness and to surge
resources and capabilities, and ensure San Francisco is as ready as possible in the event that the new
virus comes to our community. The declaration was announced by the Mayor during a press conference
on February 25' 2020.

e The declaration of a local emergency will mobilize city resources, accelerate emergency planning,
streamline staffing, coordinate agencies across the city, allow for future reimbursement by the state and
federal governments and raise awareness throughout San Francisco about how everyone can prepare in
the event that COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) appears in our community.

EDPH (D ment of Public Health) Activities:

e CDC has expanded its COVID-19 Persons Under Investigation (PUI) criteria, and SFDPH will be sending
out an expanded definition to healthcare providers.

e SF Public Health Laboratories are finalizing preparations to start COVID-19 testing in SF, with the goal of
starting testing soon.

e SFDPH Department Operations Center (DOC) is seeing a surge in clinical consultation calls in the last 24
hours. The DOC is working to identify more staff resources to the clinical consultation unit.

¢ A meeting has been scheduled with key City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) stakeholders to provide
information and updates regarding what the city’s COVID-19 response

e The SFDPH DOC and the Department of Emergency Management’'s (DEM) EOC are collaborating to
strengthen engagement with the community, including the Chinese community, and support ongoing
communication.

e SFDPH is responding to requests from out of network health facilities for masks.

e The DPH DOC finalized cleaning/disinfection guidance (based on CDC guidelines) for businesses and
organizations such as BART and MUNI.

e SFDPH Call Center Agents implemented a process for 7 and 14 Day follow up with return travelers from
China. They will align processes with CDC guidance, as the follow up model may change.

e SFDPH Communicable Disease Control and Prevention information: https://www.sfcdep.org/infectious-

i -a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel- %20%20%20coronavir

Public Information Activities:

e SFDPH and the San Francisco Department of Emergency Management (DEM) continue to operate the
Joint Information Center to develop and disseminate accurate, timely, relevant and accessible public
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information about COVID-19 (Novel Coronavirus). The Joint Information Center will expand to include
additional regular members from other city agencies.
e Public Information Objectives:

<I--[if IsupportLists]-->1. <!I--[endif]-->Rumor Control
<!--[if IsupportLists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->Engagement and Outreach with the multilingual communities
<!--[if lsupportLists]-->3. <!--[endif]-->Manage media inquiries and requests

<l--[if lsupportLists]-->4. <!--[endif]-->Develop simplified and accessible public information education
materials

<l--[if !supportLists]-->5. <!--[endif]-->Create a COVID-19 communications toolkit for NGOs and
community serving organizations to increase public information and education among diverse and at
risk communities

DPH and DEM have public announcement plans should a San Francisco resident contract COVID-19. The
Office of Civic Engagement and Immigrant Affairs (OCEIA) continues to translate emerging materials in all
threshold languages.

Talking points were updated to include key messages regarding the San Francisco emergency declaration

and continued emphasis on preparedness
DPH and DEM Public Information Officers (P1Os) continue to respond to media inquiries and prioritize
Chinese language media. Public messaging also highlights ongoing preparedness work for possible

COVID-19 cases in San Francisco in the future.

311 has received an increase of incoming call volume due to the mayor’s proclamation announced on
Tuesday.
Upcoming External Affairs Outreach Events:

o District 9 — 2/28/20 — 10:00-11:00a; Family Connections Portola (2565 San Bruno Ave);
Audience: Families; 30-50 families expected in attendance.

o District 1 — 2/29/20 — 10:30-12:30; Fulton Street Safety Project — Argonne Elementary School
(680 18t St); Audience: MTA, SFPD, & the Public; 200-300 expected attendance; 10-20 minute
presentation.

o District 11 — 2/29/20 — 11:00-15:00; Annual Lunar New Year Celebration & Summer Resource
Fair — Minnie & Lovie Ward Recreation Center (650 Capitol Ave); Audience: Public; 400 expected
attendance; tabling event.

DPH lifornia D ment of Public Health):

e CDPH reported 1 new confirmed case of COVID-19 in Solano County, CA as of 02/27/20. CA now has 9
confirmed cases. This Solano County case is the first possible community transmission case. Contact
tracing and investigation has begun. https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/OPA/Pages/NR20-
006.aspx[NB1] [KL2]

o CDPH reports there are 33 positive cases in California: 24 are from repatriation flights. The other 9
confirmed cases include 7 that are travel related, one due to person-to-person exposure from a very close
contact (a spouse) and one from an unknown source.

o CDPH reported that approximately 80% of global COVID-19 confirmed cases have not exhibited
symptoms requiring hospitalization.

o https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx
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CDC (U.S. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention):

e CDC provides links to National Pandemic Flu plans and Pandemic plans for businesses. These policies
were within the last couple of years and are research and evidence

e CDC reports there are 15 conflrmed cases in the U.S. np§ zzwww ggg gQVZde ia/releases/2020/s0213-

15th-coronavirus-case.html
o https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-in-us.html

WHO (World Health Organization):

e WHO stated that 9 new countries (Brazil, Denmark, Estonia, Georgia, Greece, Norway, Pakistan,
Romania, and The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia) reported cases of COVID-19 in the past 24
hours. (as of 02/27/20)

e WHO is utilizing an international network of expert laboratories to provide support in the detection of the
COVID-19 virus globally.

o https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/situation-reports

Resources:

¢ Department of Public Health (SFDPH): htt
2019-novel-coronavirus/

e SFDPH'’s Policy for return travelers: https://www. sfcdcp org/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Interim-

02.07.2020.pdf
¢ SFDPH COVID-19 clinical intake form: ttps [Iwww. sfcdcp org/mfectlous -diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-

%20%20%20coronavirus/
e Department of Emergency Management (DEM): hitps://SF72.0org
e Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC): https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html

e CDC Respirator Supply Strategy Guidelines: (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/respirator-
supply-strategies.html

¢ World Health Organization (WHO): https:/www.who.int/emergenci i novel-coronavirus-201

e For operational coordination and information sharing, visit WebEOC (https://sfvem.org) under Incident
Name: 2020-01-21 2019 Covid-19 (formerly 2020-01-21 2019-nCoV). Note - WebEOC is password
protected.

Situation Summary:

e CDC is closely monitoring an outbreak of respiratory illness caused by COVID-19 that was first detected in
Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China and which continues to expand.

e Chinese health officials have reported thousands of infections with COVID-19 in China, with the virus
reportedly spreading from person-to-person in many parts of that country.

e Infections with COVID-19, most of them associated with travel from Wuhan, also are being reported in a
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growing number of international locations, including the United States.

DEM Contact Information:
Duty Officer (415) 260-2591
Watch Center Operations (415) 558-2738; operational Mon-Sun, 0600-2200 Hours

Email: demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED AND MAY
CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL, THE RECIPIENT OF THIS REPORT SHOULD BE AWARE
THAT THIS REPORT MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS NOT VERIFIED.

CCSF Alert is owned and operated by the City and County of San Francisco. To change the way you receive CCSF Alerts, contact your
Department's Disaster Preparedness Coordinator.


mailto:demdutyofficer@sfgov.org

From: Zarate, Sheilah (DPH)

To: Vien, Veronica (DPH); Kagan, Rachael (DPH); Andrew, Brent (DPH); Padilla, Cristina (DPH); Acosta, Linda (DPH)
Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Bobba, Naveena (DPH)

Subject: EpiX CDC Special Media Tracking Report for COVID-19_2/27/20

Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 7:24:41 PM

Attachments: EpiX-Special Media Tracking Report 2.27.20.pdf

FYI
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Any copying, republication, or redistribution of the following content, which is largely
provided by subscription-based news feeds such as GPHIN and the Associated Press, is
expressly prohibited by U.S. and international copyright laws and by the Epi-X user
security agreement. This report is intended to provide Epi-X users with a summary of
relevant novel coronavirus coverage from CDC and other media sources.
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CALIFORNIA: 3 Los Rios Community College District Students Exposed To
Person Who Later Tested Positive For Coronavirus





SACRAMENTO (CBS13) — The Los Rios Community College District says three
of its students were exposed to a person who later tested positive for the novel
coronavirus.

In a statement, the district says three total students from American River College,
Sacramento City College and Cosumnes River College were exposed while
working off-campus last week. All three students work as medical professionals.

The person the students were exposed to is now being treated in Sacramento
County.

The district says both students from ARC and CRC returned to campus after the
exposure and have shown no symptoms, but have since been instructed by county
health officials to self-quarantine for 14 days. The SCC student did not return to
campus after the exposure, district officials said, and has also been instructed to
self-quarantine for 14 days.

Sacramento County Public Health experts have told the district that classes and
work schedules can continue as scheduled.

The original article can be found at
https://sacramento.cbslocal.com/2020/02/27/los-rios-cosumnes-river-american-
river-coronavirus-student-exposures/

return to top

CALIFORNIA: CDC detects first case of coronavirus in someone who didn't
travel recently

Los Angeles, Feb 26 (EFE News).- The United States detected the first case of
coronavirus in a person who has not recently traveled, an indication that the virus
may be spreading locally, local media reported on Wednesday.

The patient in question, who has not recently traveled abroad or had contact with
a confirmed coronavirus case, is located in Northern California, according to The
Washington Post on Wednesday with information from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC).

According to the capital rotarian, CDC officials have begun tracing the affected
person's contacts to find out how he or she may have been infected and who else
may have been exposed, but the motives are not yet known.

With confirmation of this new coronavirus case, the total number in the United
States has risen to 60.
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That information was made public shortly after Orange County, Southern
California, near Los Angeles, declared a health emergency to address coronavirus
infections, becoming the state's second-largest facility to take action urgent after
San Francisco.

US President Donald Trump addressed the issue on Wednesday at a press
conference at the White House, where he presented his action plan, and promised
that they will find a vaccine against the coronavirus.

It also asked the US Congress for a $1.5 billion package to address the health
situation.

"All sectors of society must prepare, although the situation is improving. Schools
should prepare just in case,” Trump said.

Asked whether they are considering closing borders on citizens from countries
where the virus is already present, Trump commented that "it is not yet the time,"
though he did not rule it out in the future based on the outbreak.”

Copyright © Content Engine LLC
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CALIFORNIA: Coronavirus: California monitoring more than 8,000 people
as number of cases soar

California governor Gavin Newsom says more than 8,000 people in the state are
being monitored for coronavirus infections.

There are have been 33 confirmed cases of the flu-like respiratory illness in the
state, including what is likely the first confirmed infection in a patient who was
infected through "community spread™ and didn't come into direct contact with
another patient, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

The governor confirmed that 8,400 California residents are being medically
monitored for novel coronavirus COVID-19 in 49 local jurisdictions.

While more than 800 people have flown into the state via government-sanctioned
evacuations following the outbreak in China, thousands of other passengers
landed in California through traditional travel.

Officials also have told several school districts to prepare for potential outbreaks.

The governor said his administration is in "constant contact™ with federal agencies
as it responds to the virus.





"We're meeting this moment", he said. "We're not overreacting nor are we under-
reacting. At the same time, [there is] no better resourced state in America to
address this issue head-on."

More follows...
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CALIFORNIA: San Diego health lab can now test for coronavirus

Having that capability means that HHSA will no longer have to send all
specimens to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

SAN DIEGO COUNTY, Calif. — The County Public Health Laboratory is now
able to test for the novel coronavirus, the cause of the respiratory disease COVID-
19, the Health and Human Services Agency announced Thursday.

Having that capability means that HHSA will no longer have to send all
specimens to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, substantially
reducing the time it takes for results.

“This is great news for San Diego County and will help with our ongoing efforts
to contain COVID-19,” said Wilma Wooten, M.D., M.P.H., County public health
officer. “Being able to test locally means that when we have patients under
investigation, we can more rapidly remove unneeded restrictions from those
without infection. Should someone test positive, we will continue to keep them
isolated.”

The County Public Health Lab now has the capability to do up to 40 tests in one
run. The lab is one of dozens across the nation certified by the CDC to test for the
new coronavirus.

“The number of specimens we’ve been getting for testing is currently low, but we
expect the need to increase,” said Brett Austin, director of HHSA’s Public Health
Lab. “We are ready to increase capacity as required.”

Prior to getting the testing kit, the County Public Health Lab had to send
specimens to CDC and results took several days to return. Now, those tested for
potential cases of COVID-19 will know their results in 24 to 48 hours. Positive
tests will still need to be confirmed by the CDC.

CDC currently recommends testing patients with symptoms — fever, cough or
difficulty breathing — after returning from China or other areas with community
transmission of coronavirus disease or who have had known contact with a





confirmed COVID-19 case.

The risk of COVID-19 is still very low, especially if you have not travelled to an
area where the virus has been detected or had close contact with a patient who
tested positive for this new coronavirus.

“We want to assure the public that we are prepared and are conducting
surveillance just like we do for any communicable disease,” Wooten said.

The original article can be found at
https://www.cbs8.com/article/news/health/coronavirus/san-diego-health-lab-can-
now-test-for-coronavirus/509-8ba2651c-c50d-41ac-aaf0-1d3d9a3fe9d7
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CALIFORNIA: Solano County Schools Wiped Down, Disinfected Amid New
Coronavirus Case

Custodial staff at schools in Solano County wiped down and disinfected
classrooms Thursday, one day after officials announced that there was a new
coronavirus case in the county.

The Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District advised over 21,000 parents that the
district's custodial staff is doing everything possible to stop the spread of the
coronavirus in the county.

"We understand that novel coronavirus is causing concern for many of our
parents,” the district said in a voicemail to parents.

Marcela Sanchez of Fairfield said she has been reminding her 6-year-old and her
3-year-old to "wash their hands, sanitize their hands when they cough and
sneeze."

"We just got to be careful,” Sanchez said.

A district spokesperson said there's no known direct connection that links the
Solano County coronavirus patient with any of the district's schools.

The NorthBay Healthcare Group confirmed the patient was lying in a hospital bed
at VacaValley Hospital in Vacaville for three days before anyone knew she was
infected with the virus.

"During the course of the three-day stay, the patient's condition worsened,
prompting our physicians to seek transfer to UC Davis," a statement from
NorthBay Healthcare read.
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A hospital spokesperson said the patient may have exposed dozens of hospital
staffers. Those who had the highest risk of exposure are staying at home and
monitoring themselves for any coronavirus symptoms.

The school district is reminding parents that the coronavirus is not specific to any
race or ethnicity and it's urging parents to speak to their children about cultural
sensitivity.

The original article can be found at
https://www.nbcbayarea.com/news/local/solano-county-schools-wiped-down-
disinfected-amid-new-coronavirus-case/2243583/
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INDIANA: State Department of Health says 26 Hoosiers being monitored for
exposure to coronavirus

INDIANAPOLIS - The Indiana State Department of Health announced Thursday
that 26 individuals are being monitored in Indiana for exposure to the coronavirus
based on their history of travel or contact with an individual who has traveled to
an affected country.

In a press conference, health officials said Indiana has no confirmed cases of
coronavirus (COVID-19), and no one in the state is suspected of being infected at
this time. To date, ISDH has worked with local health departments to monitor
nearly 60 travelers in accordance with guidelines established by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The number of people being monitored
fluctuates as individuals complete the 14-day monitoring period.

The CDC says the immediate risk at this time is low for Americans who do not
have risk factors, such as travel to an impacted area or contact with a person who
has had recent travel to China or other affected countries. However, the CDC has
urged Americans to begin thinking about steps they would take if their daily lives
are disrupted.

“This is a time to plan, not to panic,” said State Health Commissioner Kris Box,
M.D., FACOG. “The situation with this novel coronavirus is changing rapidly,
and I know that can cause concern because we don’t have all the answers yet.
What we do have, however, is a plan for how to respond if and when COVID-19
comes to Indiana.”

For more on this story, see Friday’s Republic.

The original article can be found at http://www.therepublic.com/2020/02/27/state-
department-of-health-says-26-hoosiers-being-monitored-for-exposure-to-
coronavirus/
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MULTIPLE COUNTRIES: Coronavirus: COVID-19 outbreak worsens with
45 countries confirming virus infections - NEWS.com.au

A person in the US has coronavirus despite having no link to foreign travel or
coming into contact with a patient known to be infected.

A person in California is believed to be the first person to contract coronavirus
despite not having travelled outside the United States or coming into contact with
a known patient.

The chilling development, reported Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, is
the first sign the disease may be spreading within a community in the US.

The Solano County patient had “no known exposure to the virus through travel or

close contact with a known infected individual,” the California Department of
Public Health said.

The case was picked in the public health system by “astute clinicians,” the CDC
said.

Health officials are now urgently tracking the patient’s prior movements.
“At this time, the patient’s exposure is unknown,” the CDC said. “It’s possible
this could be an instance of community spread of COVID-19, which would be the

first time this has happened in the United States.”

The CDC told KCRA that “unprecedented, aggressive efforts” had been
undertaken to contain the spread and mitigate the impact of the virus in the US.

President Donald Trump earlier gave a press conference in which he downplayed
the threat of the virus to the US.

He also appointed Vice President Mike Pence to lead the country’s response to
the virus.

GROWING GLOBAL PROBLEM

South Korea has confirmed almost 300 new coronavirus infections as the country
struggles to deal with the growing crisis.

The South Korean military announced additional infections among its troops, with
20 cases on its bases and some 9570 people in isolation.





The US military, which has 28,500 troops in South Korea, confirmed the first
infection of an American soldier, a 23-year-old man based at Camp Carroll near
Daegu.

With Brazil confirming the arrival of Latin America’s first case, the virus has a
toehold on every continent but Antarctica.

The latest countries to confirm infections include North Macedonia, Pakistan,
Finland, Kuwait, Lebanon, Sweden and Georgia.

The disease has now spread to at least 45 countries, with many implementing
emergency plans and travel restrictions on the worst-affected places.

Australia activated its emergency response plan yesterday amid rising concerns of
a potential coronavirus pandemic.

Stock markets around the world have been savaged, with more than $US1.7
trillion ($A2.5 trillion) wiped off US exchanges in two days alone.

Meanwhile. the World Health Organisation (WHO) reported that the number of
new cases reported outside China exceeded the number of new cases in China for
the first time.

On Tuesday, 411 new cases of the COVID-19 disease were reported in China,
while 427 were reported outside the country, WHO said.

“The sudden increases of cases in Italy, the Islamic Republic of Iran and the
Republic of Korea are deeply concerning,” WHO director-general Tedros
Adhanom Ghebreyesus said on Wednesday.

Countries across the world are now scrambling to prevent the spread of the virus,
which was first detected at a seafood market in Wuhan, China in December.

More than 81,000 people have been infected while at least 2770 have died.

South Korea announced more than 1000 people had been infected — by far the
largest outside China —and 12 deaths.

Italy, the hardest hit country in Europe, reported 400 people have now been
infected, a rise of 80.

Iran officially announced a total of 19 deaths and 139 infections, including the
country’s deputy health minister. The actual number is thought to be higher.

The CDC warned the American public to prepare for an outbreak of the disease.





But before he flew home from India on Tuesday, Mr Trump said the coronavirus
situation was “very well under control in our country”.

The administration has asked Congress for an additional $2.5 billion to speed
development of a vaccine, support preparedness and response activities, and to
gather needed equipment and supplies.

IS IT APANDEMIC YET?

Around the world cleaning crews scrubbed down everything from money to buses
and military bases and hotels were on high alert for the disease.

Worries about the economic impact are growing with factories idle and tourism
crippled.

The dramatic surge of infections in Italy, Iran and South Korea has prompted calls
for the virus to be declared a pandemic.

WHO defines a pandemic as a situation where “the whole world’s population™ is
likely to be exposed to an infection and potentially “fall sick”.

The declaration would prompt countries to step up their preparedness plans, but
the WHO said it could also cause unnecessary panic.

“We should not be too eager to declare a pandemic,” Dr Tedros said on
Wednesday, stressing that such a declaration could “signal that we can no longer
contain the virus, which is not true”.

“We are in a fight that can be won if we do the right things.”

But Dr Tedros insisted WHO would not hesitate to declare a pandemic if it was
“an accurate description of the situation”.

“I am not downplaying the seriousness of the situation, or the potential for this to
become a pandemic, because it has that potential,” he said.

“All countries, whether they have cases or not, must prepare for a potential.”
VIRUS COULD STICK AROUND FOR MONTHS

The coronavirus epidemic is believed to have peaked in China between January
23 and February 2.

But Bruce Aylward, the leader of a joint WHO-China mission of experts, said it
could be a threat “for months”.





He warned countries they needed to do more to get ready.

“Think the virus is going to show up tomorrow. If you don’t think that way,
you’re not going to be ready,” he said.

“This a rapidly escalating epidemic in different places that we have got to tackle
super fast to prevent a pandemic.”

In the US, the CDC warned the American public to prepare for an outbreak.

“It’s not SO much a question of if this will happen anymore, but rather more a
question of exactly when this will happen, and how many people in this country
will have severe illness,” senior official Nancy Messonnier said.

She said schools could help contain the spread by closing down or using
“internet-based teleschooling” while businesses could “replace in-person
meetings with video and telephone conferences”.

On a larger scale, cities may need to cancel mass gatherings, she said.

The original article can be found at
https://www.news.com.au/lifestyle/health/health-problems/numbers-show-key-
shift-in-coronavirus-outbreak-as-who-warns-against-pandemic-panic/news-
story/6b3bf772cd427c3f0ed29bdd10640688
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MULTIPLE STATES: What Would a Coronavirus Outbreak in the U.S.
Mean for Schools?

Districts have infectious disease protocols. But few have detailed plans to teach
online if schools were closed for long periods.

Schools in the United States prepare for all manner of disasters and threats,
whether hurricanes, mass shooters, tornadoes, influenza or head lice.

But this week, a stark new order came from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention: Get ready for the coronavirus.

Around the nation, school officials and parents were flummoxed by the sudden
warning that if a coronavirus epidemic hit the United States, school buildings
could be shut down for long periods of time, leaving children sequestered at home
and schools scrambling to provide remote instruction.

In warning that the coronavirus will almost certainly spread in the United States,
Dr. Nancy Messonnier, director of the National Center for Immunization and
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Respiratory Diseases, said she had contacted her own local school superintendent
this week and asked if the district was prepared. She advised parents to do the
same. And she suggested that a temporary system of “internet-based
teleschooling” could replace traditional schools.

It was not clear how such a system would work.

The obstacles to teaching remotely were evident: American children have uneven
access to home computers and broadband internet. Schools have limited expertise
in providing instruction online on a large scale. And parents would be forced to
juggle their own work responsibilities with what could amount to “a vast
unplanned experiment in mass home-schooling,” said Kevin Carey, vice president
for education policy at New America, a think tank.

Across the country, as federal authorities announced that 60 people in the United
States had been infected with the virus, mainly from travel abroad, families were
grappling with the new alarm raised over the virus and how a possible outbreak
could play out in their own communities.

In Denver, Meg Conley’s 11-year-old daughter, Margaret, interrupted breakfast
on Wednesday morning with a worried question. She told her mother that her
elementary school classmates were gripped by fears about the coronavirus, and
she asked when it was coming and how many people it would kill.

“I had no idea,” Ms. Conley, 35, a freelance writer, said of the children’s
anxieties. “Apparently it’s all the kids are talking about on the playground.”

Schools are hastily making their own plans, or updating those drafted during
previous scares over viruses like HIN1 and Ebola. The Washington State health
department held a webinar for about 250 school superintendents on Tuesday to
discuss coronavirus preparations, including plans to close schools and allow
students to continue to do schoolwork at home.

Dennis Kosuth, a nurse for Chicago Public Schools, said his district’s ability to
handle an outbreak could be compromised by circumstances like families who
could not afford child care costs to keep sick children at home. Nursing shortages
are a concern, too, he said. Mr. Kosuth said he was responsible for nursing care at
four schools.

Some Chicago schools also lack rooms dedicated to health needs, Mr. Kosuth
said. In one school where many students and staff members became ill with an
ordinary infection last semester, “Patient Zero was sitting in the main office
coughing and sneezing all over the place” as the sick child waited to be picked up,
he said.

On a more positive note, Mr. Kosuth said that evidence from China suggested that





children were more resilient to the coronavirus than adults were.

In Miami-Dade County, Fla., Alberto M. Carvalho, superintendent of one of the
nation’s largest school districts, said his system’s preparation for hurricanes put it
at an advantage in preparing for the coronavirus. The district has provided
laptops, tablets and smartphones for some students to take home, as well as
internet connectivity for some low-income students. Teachers would be asked to
assign work remotely and could even teach some high school courses live online.

“I was a bit surprised that it took this long to offer national guidance specifically
to school districts,” Mr. Carvalho said of the C.D.C. statement this week.

Many districts have already sent home letters about the coronavirus, asking
parents to keep sick children away from school and to remember basic prevention
measures such as hand washing, cough covering and vaccination against the flu.
They have highlighted C.D.C. advice issued early this month, calling for all
travelers returning from China to “self-quarantine” for 14 days.

School officials have often tried to ratchet down panic among parents, reminding
families that face masks are not broadly recommended and that the overall risk of
infection is low.

But few districts have publicly addressed what would happen to classes in the
case of widespread infection and school closings like those that have taken place
in China, Italy and Bahrain.

The vast majority of districts have access to broadband internet, but they do not
necessarily have expertise in how to effectively organize and teach classes online
when schools are shuttered. Further complicating matters, not all families have
home computers and high-speed internet. While 90 percent of households with
children under 18 had broadband access in 2016, according to federal data, gaps
remained along the lines of income, race and education level.

Less affluent families were more likely to depend on smartphones but to lack
computers or tablets, which are often needed to fully participate in online
learning.

While school districts may not be ready for widespread remote learning, many of
the larger districts have had plans for the possibility of pandemics for years,
according to Chris Dorn, a school safety consultant with the nonprofit Safe
Havens International.

Districts without such plans will need to work with local health agencies to come
up with protocols, he said. Among the questions to tackle: Should students at risk
for coronavirus who show symptoms at school be transported immediately to

hospitals or should they be kept on school grounds until a parent or caretaker can





pick them up?

In the San José Unified School District in California, Melinda Landau, who
manages school nursing, said the district’s response to flu season would also help
in the case of a coronavirus outbreak.

It has ordered additional thermometers and hand-washing lesson kits, which allow
nurses to sprinkle powder that glows when exposed to ultraviolet light,
demonstrating how thoroughly students have washed their hands and how
important simple personal-hygiene measures can be.

The district also asks parents who call their children in sick to describe symptoms.
Schools with clusters of sick students are cleaned more deeply with disinfecting
products.

There have been no confirmed cases of the coronavirus in the district, Ms. Landau
said. Two students returned from trips to China in late January. Their parents
voluntarily kept them home from school for a time to monitor their health.

Going forward, the district is waiting to see how the coronavirus progresses, Ms.
Landau said.

She added, “We don’t quite know where to move yet.”

Closing schools may not be the best option, especially since children appear to be
at lower risk of infection, said Amy Acton, the director of Ohio’s health
department. Beyond contingency plans for closing, she said, schools need to
consider lining up substitute teachers and planning for absences of other staff
members, like cafeteria workers. And Dr. Acton said schools can also play
another, more traditional, role: science and health education.

“Schools can be telling families what they can be doing to stay healthy, and we
can teach about viruses, and what is a zoonotic disease? Why is it important to get
a flu vaccine?” Dr. Acton said. “This is a teachable moment.”

Jack Healy, Amy Harmon and Sarah Mervosh contributed reporting.

Copyright 2020. The New York Times Company. All Rights Reserved.
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NEW MEXICO: With no confirmed cases of virus, testing limited in New
Mexico

Unless you're showing flu-like symptoms and have traveled to China or South
Korea recently, you won't be approved for a coronavirus test in New Mexico.New





Mexico so far has zero cases of coronavirus, also known as COVID-19, making
the state Health Department guidelines for approving the tests fairly strict at the
moment.

If a person goes to the hospital complaining of coronavirus symptoms - fever,
coughing, headache, difficulty breathing - and has just returned from a trip to

China, the doctor will call the Health Department to discuss whether testing is
called for.

If the health official gives the OK, the medical provider will conduct a test - such
as swabbing the nose and throat or drawing blood - and then send samples to the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

"They [patients] would have to be sick. They would have to be in a higher-risk
category," state epidemiologist Dr. Michael Landen said.

Landen expects New Mexico to begin testing soon for the virus at an
Albuquerque laboratory, which means doctors will be able to send samples there
instead of a federal lab.

If a serious outbreak occurs in the state, testing will expand greatly, allowing
health care providers to order tests at commercial labs, Landen said. That was the
progression of testing - federal, state, commercial - that happened during the
H1N1 flu pandemic in 2009, he said.

All states should receive federal money that Congress funnels toward combating
the virus, just as they did with the Ebola, Zika and swine flu epidemics, he said.

More than three dozen countries have at least one reported coronavirus case,
making world health officials fear the disease is on the verge of becoming a
pandemic.

Alex Yee, a former Santa Fe Care Center employee, said his bosses gave him four
days to get test results proving he didn't have coronavirus. They claimed they
were concerned about his wife recently traveling to Italy, where the disease has
swiftly spread in the country's north.

"It was extremely unrealistic,” Yee said of the deadline.

An area hospital he contacted told him he has to show symptoms to be tested,
which he did not, he said. And even if they did test him, it could take a couple
weeks before he would receive the results, so he would miss his tight deadline, he
said.

When he told his supervisor that he couldn't meet her demand, he was fired, Yee
said. The care center, which had a recent change of management, probably came





up with the testing requirement to get rid of him, he said.

The center's administrator declined to discuss the case, other than to say she has to
protect the 96 residents from this growing threat.

"The employer had set him up for an impossible task,” Landen said. "The
employer put an unreasonable condition on the employee."

Yee clearly would not qualify for a test, Landen said. He's not displaying
symptoms, Italy is not on the list of high-risk countries and he didn't travel outside
the U.S.

Even if his spouse had visited a high-risk country, it would not be enough for a
test, Landen said. A person must be in contact with someone who is confirmed as
infected, and there are only 60 of those cases in the U.S., he said.

The worst outbreaks are in China, which has more than 78,000 reported cases, and
South Korea, where more than 1,500 cases have been reported, according to the
World Health Organization.

Italy is a distant third with 470 cases, with almost all cases reported in the

country's northern region. The still relatively low number is why someone who
has traveled to Italy doesn't qualify for a test, at least for now, Landen said.

"That's obviously evolving or changing,” Landen said.

Copyright 2020. Santa Fe New Mexican. All rights reserved.
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WASHINGTON: Seattle-area high school shuttered over coronavirus fears

BOTHELL, Wash. — A suburban Seattle high school was closed Thursday after a
staffer’s family member was placed in quarantine for showing symptoms of
possibly contracting the new virus that started in China - an action health officials
say Is unnecessary.

Bothell High School, about 20 miles (32 kilometers) northeast of Seattle, will be
cleaned and disinfected on Thursday while students stay home, Northshore
School District superintendent Michelle Reid said in an email to families
Wednesday night.

“These steps are being taken out of an abundance of caution,” Reid said.

The risk to the school’s students and other staff members is minimal, the
Washington Department of Health said in a letter. And the local health





department, Public Health Seattle & King County, said in a statement that the
closure wasn’t needed.

“Closing schools when there has not been a confirmed case in a student or staff
member is not currently recommended by Public Health - Seattle & King County
or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,” the health department said.
‘We know that school districts act out of extra special caution when they are
protecting children.”

The Bothell High School staff member had returned to work Monday after a week
of international travel. The staffer told school officials that a family member also
on the trip became sick Tuesday and was taken to the hospital.

The family member is quarantined and undergoing treatment at a hospital after
showing possible signs of contracting coronavirus. The test results for the sicked
family member may take up to a week. No other information about the person, or
where the travel took place, was disclosed.

The original article can be found at
https://www.washingtontimes.com/news/2020/feb/27/bothell-high-school-closed-
over-coronavirus-fears/
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Studies

Coronavirus Mortality Rate: How COVID-19 Fatalities Compare to Ebola,
SARS and MERS

As the outbreak of the new coronavirus continues to grow, experts around the
world are working tirelessly to understand the characteristics of the mysterious
new disease named COVID-19. That includes calculating its death rate, and
seeing how it compares to that of other deadly diseases like Ebola, SARS and
MERS.

What is known among experts as the case fatality rate—but commonly referred to
as the mortality or fatality rate—is calculated by dividing the number of deaths by
the total number of people infected. For instance, if 100 people die out of 1,000
people infected by any given disease, the mortality rate would be 10 percent.

As such, the mortality rate of a disease is changeable, and depends on a range of
factors including the location of an outbreak, the health status of the infected
person, and how much data has been accurately collected on the cases and deaths
caused by the disease.

For the new coronavirus, which causes a disease called COVID-19, the average
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mortality rate is estimated to be in the range of 1 to 3 percent, Mike Tildesley,
associate professor in the department of Life Sciences at the University of
Warwick told Newsweek.

A summary of a report on over 72,000 COVID-19 cases by the Chinese Center
for Disease Control and Prevention in the journal JAMA on Monday showed the
case fatality rate was 2.3 percent of average, spiking to 80 percent in patients aged
between 70 to 79-years-old, and dropping to 14.8 percent in those aged 80 and
above.

On Wednesday, NBC News reported the mortality rate in Iran—which has seen a
spike in cases since it reported its first case last week—was around 14 percent. At
the same time, as only 60 COVID-19 cases have been reported in the U.S. and no
one has died, it isn't currently appropriate to estimate a mortality rate for that
country, Tildesley explained.

Differences in reporting and healthcare systems in individual countries and their
ability to manage outbreaks also affect the figure, Tildesley said. For example,
officials in China changed how they count cases at least twice.

What's more, we still don't know how many people are infected but haven't shown
symptoms and are therefore missing from the available data on cases, Tildesley
said. "If this figure is high, then the true mortality rate will be significantly lower
than the current estimates.”

At present, COVID-19's fatality rate is relatively low compared to other deadly
virus outbreaks in recent memory. Ebola, which in 2014 killed over 11,000 people
in West Africa, has had a fatality rate between 25 percent to 90 percent depending
on the outbreak.

SARS and MERS—fellow members of the large coronavirus family of viruses
which now includes COVID-19—have mortality rates of around 10 percent and
35 percent, respectively, Tildesley said. Since it emerged in 2012, MERS has
killed 858 people, while 8,098 people died of SARS during the 2003 outbreak.

As reflected in the map by Statista below, fresh cases of COVID-19 have popped
up in new countries almost daily in the past couple of days, with concerning
clusters appearing in Italy, South Korea, and Iran. On Wednesday, the U.S.
Centers for Disease Control reported what is suspected to be the first example of
what is known as "community spread.” So, with all this going on, should the
general public worry about figures like mortality rates or instead simply focus on
preventing the spread of infection?

"It is completely understandable to be worried about mortality rates and evidence
suggests that those most at risk are the elderly and those with underlying health
conditions," said Tildesley.





"The best course of action is for us to try to minimise further spread of disease. It
is important for us to follow good hygiene practices such as regular handwashing,
covering coughs and sneezes with tissues, avoiding contact with people who are

sick and in those cases, avoiding contact with the eyes, nose and mouth," he said.

Addressing fears that the virus could soon be declared a pandemic (where a
pathogen has spread widely within two or more countries other than the first one
to report it) Tildesley said: "The virus is concerning as we are now seeing spread
in several countries in the world, so it is important to remain vigilant and to
maintain the intervention protocols that are currently being put in place.

However, he cautioned: "The use of the term ‘pandemic’ can sometimes be
distracting to the general public as it may give the impression that we are dealing
with a virus that is 'uncontrollable’ and spreading throughout the world.

"What should be stated is that health services around the world should be
prepared for the possibility that COVID-19 cases may start to spread in their
country and to ensure that contingency plans are in place to reduce the risk of
large scale transmission,” Tildesley argued.

The original article can be found at https://www.newsweek.com/coronavirus-
mortality-rate-covid-19-fatalities-ebola-sars-mers-1489466
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The No. 1 way to prevent coronavirus isn't wearing a face mask

As fears over the coronavirus outbreak spread, thousands of Americans are
clamoring to buy face masks in an effort to protect themselves, sending prices
soaring and leading manufacturers like 3M to ramp up production. However,
experts say stocking up on face masks is actually misguided — and there's a much
simpler thing you could be doing right now to protect yourself.

There's a lot the general public likely doesn't realize about these masks —
namely, that they are not the best way to prevent the spread of coronavirus.

Wearing a mask is more for people already showing symptoms of coronavirus and
their caregivers than for people trying to prevent it

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention said it "does not recommend that
people who are well wear a facemask to protect themselves from respiratory
diseases, including COVID-19," referring to the disease caused by the new
coronavirus. Rather, experts caution that putting on a face mask without proper
fitting and training could actually increase your risk.
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"If it's not fitted right, you're going to fumble with it," explained Health and
Human Services Secretary Alex Azar before a House Appropriations
subcommittee on Wednesday. "You're going to be touching your face, which is
the No. 1 way you're going to get disease, is unclean hands touching your face."”

On the other hand, if you are already coughing and showing symptoms of possible
coronavirus illness, that's when wearing a mask could be helpful for protecting
those around you.

"The data on the effectiveness of masks for preventing respiratory virus infections
is not very clear, " explains Dr. Andrew Stanley Pekosz of Johns Hopkins'
Bloomberg School of Public Health. "The best data suggests that if you are ill and
showing symptoms, wearing a mask can reduce the chances that you spread the
virus to others."

Cloth surgical masks are not helpful at all

The common surgical mask you might be picturing in your head will not help you
at all, Pekosz said.

A type called an N95 respirator mask, if properly fitted, can block large-particle
droplets that may contain germs, but the FDA warns they cannot filter out "very
small particles in the air that may be transmitted by coughs [or] sneezes."

"An N95 mask is the one that is most practical,”" Pekosz tells CBS News. "It stops
95% of particles of a certain size. ... There is a N99 mask, which blocks 99% of
particles, but that mask is difficult to wear for long periods of time because it is
hard to breathe through it."

Respirator masks are more expensive. The FDA also notes they are not designed
to fit children or people with facial hair.

Even a good face mask isn't enough

"Masks shouldn't be considered to be the sole item that can protect you from
infection, but it can be one of several things that can help you stay uninfected,"”
said Pekosz.

"Wash your hands frequently. Practice social distancing — stay 5 feet away from
people to avoid being close enough to be exposed to respiratory droplets from that
person. More specific guidance will be given by the CDC soon, but those two
things should be practiced by people on a daily basis to reduce the spread of
respiratory viruses."

And he adds, "Get a flu shot — influenza has killed over 16,000 Americans this
year and is still causing disease across the U.S."





You have to change masks every few hours

If you do go the mask route in spite of expert advice, it's important to note that
face masks have a very specific lifespan. While there are some with longer
lifespans or that have replaceable filters, the most common face masks on the
market are disposable and single use. Each one of those is only good for a few
hours.

"You want to change masks every few hours to make sure that they are
functioning properly and aren't getting contaminated with virus particles on the
outside,"” Pekosz tells CBS News. "It's not like putting one on protects you. One
has to follow specific procedures to ensure you are using them effectively."

Buying face masks for personal use could cause a shortage at hospitals

"There is a limited supply of masks and while companies are increasing their
production, demand is increasing at a very high rate,” cautions Pekosz. "There
will most likely be shortages of personal protective equipment at medical
institutions and this may in part be driven by supplies being purchased by the
general public. Emergency preparedness efforts will address supply chains, but
there really is no reason for the general public to purchase large numbers of N95
masks."

America's largest face mask manufacturer, Prestige Ameritech, is a small business
based in Texas with only 100 employees. And while they have no problem
fulfilling America's normal demand for face masks and respirators, they are now
struggling to keep up.

Mike Bowen, the company's executive vice president, told CBS News that they
now field orders of up to 100 million face masks and respirators a day. He also
noted that while the company does not ship its products internationally, in the last
30 days it has sold between 1 million and 2 million masks to buyers who then sent
them to others in China and Hong Kong.

This huge spike in personal orders is precisely what experts fear will cause a
dangerous inventory shortage in American hospitals — a shortage that is entirely
avoidable, given that there are no proven benefits to the general public wearing
masks.

The best way to prevent coronavirus: Wash your hands

Experts say washing your hands is the best way to prevent the spread of infectious
illnesses like coronavirus. That's because one of the most common ways
infections spread is when people touch a contaminated surface and then touch
their mouth or nose.





Wash your hands frequently and thoroughly. CBS News chief medical
correspondent Dr. Jon LaPook points out that it's especially important to make
sure that you scrub the soap into your fingertips because they are simultaneously
the part of the hand most often neglected and the part of the hand most likely to
touch your face and spread disease.

Soap and water is far more effective than hand sanitizer. If you're using an
alcohol-based hand sanitizer, you should make sure that it contains at least 60%
alcohol.

Beyond that, the CDC advises that, whenever possible, you should also avoid
touching your eyes, nose and mouth with unwashed hands, avoid contact with
sick people, cover your mouth when you cough and sneeze, and disinfect objects
and surfaces frequently.

The original article can be found at https://www.chsnews.com/news/coronavirus-
prevention-face-mask-not-helpful-wash-hands/
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AUSTRIA: EXTRA Coronavirus reaches Vienna with three confirmed cases

Vienna (dpa) - The coronavirus has reached Vienna as three cases were confirmed
in the Austrian capital, according to the city's health authorities.

The first confirmed patient is a 72-year-old man who has been in hospital for 10
days with flu-like symptoms and who had repeatedly been tested for the virus.

The man's condition is serious and he is breathing on a respirator, according to
Vienna's hospital association (KAV).

He had not travelled abroad.

On Thursday evening, tests confirmed that a couple had been infected. They had
returned from a holiday in northern Italy with their children.

The children also display symptoms of the disease but the results of their tests are
still outstanding, KAV told Austrian news agency APA. All four members of the
family showed symptoms of the virus.
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CANADA: Latest COVID-19 case in Toronto is Ontario’s 1st instance of
human-to-human transmission

Ontario now has a sixth confirmed case of the novel coronavirus, and while it is
the first instance in the province of human-to-human transmission, health officials
say the risk is still low.

Officials said Thursday the husband of a woman who had travelled to Iran and
recently tested positive for the new coronavirus in Toronto is now infected. The
husband had not travelled with her to Iran.

The woman, who is in her 60s, was diagnosed with COVID-19 on Feb. 24. She
had presented herself at Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre’s emergency
department with a travel history to Iran.

Her husband, also in his 60s, now has a presumptive case of the virus and is
currently in self-isolation, health officials said in a statement.

“We are working alongside Toronto Public Health, who is now and will continue
to be in regular contact with this individual during their self-isolation period,”
said Dr. David Williams, Ontario’s chief medical officer of health.

The man is Toronto’s fifth case of the coronavirus and the sixth case in the
province.

Five people in Ontario had previously been diagnosed with COVID-19, including
a married couple in Toronto, a Western University student in London, Ont.,
another Toronto woman who had all recently returned from travelling in China,
and a woman in her 60s who had recently travelled to Iran.

While China has been the epicentre of the outbreak of the virus known as
COVID-19, Iran is now experiencing one of the worst outbreaks outside of China,
with 254 people infected and 26 dead.

Globally, the coronavirus has infected about 81,000 people since it emerged in
China.

Dr. Williams said health authorities remain vigilant, but there is no cause for fear
in the general public. The data from China shows that most of the spread has been
to close contacts, most infected people have fairly mild and short-lived symptoms
particularly younger people — and the deaths have been in older people with





underlying health conditions, he said.

“Before there’s widespread panic and that kind of stuff, look at the evidence,”
Williams said, noting the mortality rate is less than that of the flu.

“I think you have to — instead of (acting) on speculation and fear — go back to the
data, look at the information, ask your authorities on what the risk is. It’s still low.
But does that mean we’re going to sit back and not do more surveillance? We’re
going to do more surveillance.”

The original article can be found at
https://globalnews.ca/news/6602786/coronavirus-toronto-covid19-ontario-6th-
case/
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CHINA/SOUTH KOREA: China reports 433 new confirmed COVID-19
cases, South Korea reports 334

By NewsDesk @infectiousdiseasenews

Official numbers coming out of China have seen a significant drop in recent days
with the latest information from Chinese authorities showing 433 new confirmed
cases (409 in Hubei and 383 in Wuhan) and 29 new deaths (26 in Hubei and 1 in
Beijing, Heilongjiang, and Henan) Wednesday.

In South Korea the situation appears to be going in the opposite direction. In the
past 24 hours, the Korean CDC reported 334 additional confirmed cases, bringing
the total to 1,595, including 13 fatalities.

Globally, more than 82,000 COVID-19 cases have been reported from 50
countries, including 2,804 deaths.

The original article can be found at http://outbreaknewstoday.com/china-reports-
433-new-confirmed-covid-19-cases-south-korea-reports-334/
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CHINA/TAIWAN: Coronavirus threat shows ‘unacceptability’ of Beijing
isolating Taiwan, US official says

The global spread of coronavirus has prompted the US government to push back
against Beijing’s isolation of Taiwan, a state department official said on
Thursday.
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“This Covid-19 outbreak only further underlines the unacceptability of Taiwan
being excluded from the World Health Organisation (WHO) and the World
Health Assembly because the People's Republic of China blocks every attempt to
do so,” said Jonathan Fritz, deputy assistant secretary at the US State
Department’s bureau of East Asian and Pacific affairs.

“We continue to push back very, very hard against that with as many of our like-
minded partners as possible, and | think our argument is only bolstered now by
the outbreak,” Fritz said, speaking in a House Foreign Affairs Committee hearing
on the US response to the contagion’s spread.

“And I would point out that, you know, this push by the [US government] is fully
consistent with our US one-China policy and, of course, with the Taiwan
Relations Act,” he said.

Taiwan has 31 cases of Covid-19 and one recorded death from the illness caused
by the virus, which is also known as Sars-CoV-2.

On Wednesday, Taiwan's Central Epidemic Command Centre banned all of the
self-governed island’s doctors and nurses from visiting countries declared to be
unfit destinations because of the outbreak, to ensure there would be adequate
manpower to tackle the disease at home. The ban is meant to stay in place until
the end of June.

Washington has supported calls for Taiwan to be granted observer status at the
World Health Organisation’s annual gathering, US Health and Human Services
Secretary Alex Azar said in May, at the start of the WHO’s annual assembly,
which China has prevented Taiwan from attending.

Beijing claims sovereignty over Taiwan under its one-China policy, which the US
acknowledged in 1972,

For years, Beijing allowed Taiwan to send observers to the annual conference, but
has blocked its representatives in recent years amid tensions between the
mainland’s government and the island’s administration of President Tsai Ing-wen,
whose party has a more fractious relationship with Beijing than the opposition.
US backs calls for Taiwan to be observer at World Health Assembly

In Thursday’s hearing, Fritz asserted that Beijing’s insistence on isolating Taiwan
in the WHO framework hinders efforts to halt the Covid-19 spread.

“To the to the extent that they are unable to get timely information from the WHO
that impacts public health on Taiwan,” he said.

“On the other hand, Taiwan has a lot of expertise ... and they have their own





epidemiological track record now dealing with Covid-19, and to the extent that
that is not being shared in a complete and timely fashion with other WTO
members, clearly, that doesn't do anything for the public health of the rest of the
international community,” Fritz added.

Tsai won a second term last month with a comfortable victory over Han Kuo-yu
in an election that had been cast as a referendum on the island’s approach to
Beijing. Tsai, from the independence-leaning Democratic Progressive Party
(DPP), captured more than 8 million votes, trumping her major challenger, Han
Kuo-yu, from the mainland-friendly Kuomintang by close to 3 million votes.

China’s embassy in Washington did not immediately respond to queries about
Fritz’s comments.

The original article can be found at
https://www.scmp.com/news/china/politics/article/3052783/coronavirus-virus-
threat-shows-unacceptability-beijing
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CHINA: 404 Hubei cops infected, four dead so far

A total of 293 police officers and 111 auxiliary police officers in central China's
Hubei province were infected with the new coronavirus, as of 5:00 p.m. on
Tuesday.

Four among them sacrificed their lives while on duty, the provincial public
security department told Chinanews.com on Wednesday.

So far, 88 police officers and 23 auxiliary officers have been cured, said the
department.

Statistics from the bureau indicated that there are 63,000 police officers and
56,000 auxiliary police officers working on the frontline batting against the new
coronavirus disease.

To date, a total of 49 police officers and auxiliary police officers across China
have sacrificed their lives while on duty during the epidemic outbreak, according
to the Ministry of Public Security.

https://www.thestandard.com.hk/breaking-news/section/3/142728/404-Hubei-
cops-infected,-four-dead-so-far
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GREECE: Greece reports two new coronavirus cases - health ministry

ATHENS, Feb 27 (Reuters) - Greece has reported two new cases of coronavirus
in the past 24 hours, bringing the total number of confirmed cases to three.

The health ministry said one of the cases concerned a relative of a 38 year old
woman in the northern town of Thessaloniki, the first confirmed case reported in
Greece. The woman had recently returned from Milan in northern Italy.

(Reporting By Renee Maltezou)

Copyright 2020 Thomson Reuters. All Rights Reserved.
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HONG KONG: Coronavirus: 59 Hong Kong cops in quarantine after one
officer becomes infected

Fifty-nine police officers have been quarantined after a 48-year-old male cop
became the 69th person in Hong Kong to be infected with the coronavirus on
Thursday night.

The officer, who lives in Yun Mei House, Yau Mei Court in Yau Tong, belongs to
the North Point Division and is part of the Eastern District riot police team.

According to the Department of Health, the officer developed a fever and cough
on Tuesday and sought treatment at Kwun Tong Community Health Centre. His
deep throat saliva specimen tested positive for the coronavirus. He was sent to
United Christian Hospital for isolation and treatment on Friday and is in a stable
condition.

“The force is highly concerned about the incident, and will cooperate with the
Department of Health to conduct the pathological tracking, including providing
the officer’s work record and duty sheet,” the police said in a statement.

The force said the officer had no travel history during in the past 14 days and had
mainly worked in Chai Wan, North Point and Aberdeen during the incubation
period.

His home contacts, namely his wife and mother-in-law, both developed symptoms
and were sent to United Christian Hospital for treatment.

On Tuesday, the infected officer attended a dinner party with his colleagues at the
Star Seafood Restaurant in Sai Ying Pun. All the 59 officers at the banquet were
listed as close contacts with the patient, and had to be put under quarantine.





Among them, 36 people were on duty in the Aberdeen District on Thursday night,
while the remaining 23 officers belong to different divisions under the Hong
Kong Island Regional Headquarters and the Commercial Crime Bureau.

The police force had suspended their work to minimise their contact with the
general public while the officers concerned wait for quarantine arrangements.

The force added they would sterilise related police facilities, vehicles and the
disciplined services quarters.

https://www.hongkongfp.com/2020/02/21/coronavirus-59-hong-kong-cops-
guarantine-one-officer-becomes-infected/
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IRAN/CHINA: China to provide Iran with 20k coronavirus test Kits, says
MFA Spox China to provide Iran with 20k coronavirus test Kits, says MFA
Spox

Tehran, Feb 27, IRNA — Foreign Ministry spokesman Abbas Mousavi said on
Thursday that the Chinese government and its Red Cross society are to deliver an
aid package to Iran on Friday comprising 20 thousand COVID-19 test Kits.

Mousavi who was speaking in a press conference on Thursday added that Iran's
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, concurrent with the hardworking Health Ministry's
endeavors, established a coronavirus fighting headquarters to pursue international
dimensions of the outbreak, including supplying of medical needs.

The official underlined that the ministry has followed up delivery of voluntary aid
provided by friendly countries. The first package of such aid offered by Chinese
government and its Red Cross society which includes 20,000 coronavirus test Kits,
will be handed over tomorrow, Mousavi said.

The diplomat expressed Iran's gratitude to the generous aid by Chinese
government and people adding that Iran welcomes any assistant and rendering
timely services which might be offered by other countries.

9416**1430

Follow us on Twitter @IrnaEnglish

The original article can be found at https://en.irna.ir/news/83693632/China-to-
provide-lran-with-20k-coronavirus-test-kits-says-MFA
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IRAN/SAUDI ARABIA: Iran’s vice-president diagnosed with coronavirus;
Saudi Arabia halts pilgrimage

DUBALI, United Arab Emirates — Saudi Arabia on Thursday banned foreign
pilgrims from entering the kingdom to visit Islam’s holiest sites over the new
coronavirus , potentially disrupting the plans of millions of faithful ahead of the
Muslim fasting month of Ramadan and as the annual hajj pilgrimage looms.

The decision showed the growing worry across the Mideast about the virus as Iran
confirmed that infected cases in the country spiked by over 100, to 254 now.
Those with the virus in the Islamic Republic now include Iranian vice-president
Masoumeh Ebtekar, better known as the English-language spokeswoman “Mary”
for the 1979 hostage-takers who seized the U.S. Embassy in Tehran and sparked
the 444-day diplomatic crisis, state media reported.

A total of 26 people have died so far in Iran, the world’s highest death toll outside
of China, where the outbreak began.

Saudi Arabia’s barring of pilgrims from Mecca, home to the cube-shaped Kaaba
that the world’s 1.8 billion Muslims pray toward five times a day, and also the
holy city of Medina, appeared unprecedented in modern history. The kingdom’s
Al Saud ruling family stakes their legitimacy in overseeing and protecting the
sites. Authorities also suspended entry to travellers from nations affected by the
new virus who hold tourist visas for the kingdom.

It appeared Saudi officials worried about the risk of pilgrims spreading the virus
as they had in Iran. The virus’ epicenter in the Islamic Republic is the holy Shiite
city of Qom, where the faithful in reverence reach out to kiss and touch a famous
shrine. That shrine and others have remained open, despite Iran’s civilian
government calling for them to be closed.

There have been no confirmed cases of the new coronavirus in Saudi Arabia amid
the outbreak.

“Saudi Arabia renews its support for all international measures to limit the spread
of this virus, and urges its citizens to exercise caution before travelling to
countries experiencing coronavirus outbreaks,” the Saudi Foreign Ministry said in
a statement announcing the decision. “We ask God Almighty to spare all
humanity from all harm.”

News of the cancellation shocked the Muslim world, as many save their entire
lives for a chance to see the Kaaba and walk along the path of the Prophet
Muhammad and visit his tomb in Medina.

Hundreds of faithful deplaned in Pakistan as the ban came into effect, while





Indonesia and Turkey had to turn away thousands of pilgrims set to fly.
Authorities at Cairo’s international airport said the Saudi decision created “intense
confusion” and “extreme anger” among thousands of passengers waiting for
flights. Security officials needed to call in reinforcements to control the crowd as
news of the ban broke, said the officials, who spoke on condition of anonymity as
they weren’t allowed to speak to reporters.

Disease outbreaks always have been a concern surrounding the hajj, which is
required of all able-bodied Muslims once in their life, especially as pilgrims come
from all over the world. The earliest recorded outbreak came in 632 as pilgrims
fought off malaria. A cholera outbreak in 1821 killed an estimated 20,000
pilgrims. Another cholera outbreak in 1865 killed 15,000 pilgrims and then spread
worldwide.

More recently, Saudi Arabia faced the danger from another coronavirus, one that
causes the Middle East respiratory syndrome, or MERS, which jumped from ill
camels to humans. The kingdom increased its public health measures during the
hajj in 2012 and 2013 and urged the ill and the elderly not to take part in the
pilgrimage.

Since September 2012, there have been nearly 2,500 cases of MERS reported,
with 858 deaths attributed to the virus, according to the World Health
Organization. However, the hajj itself saw no MERS outbreak. Saudi officials
also instituted bans on pilgrims coming from countries affected by the Ebola virus
in recent years as well.

Since the new coronavirus emerged in December in central China, it has sickened
82,000 people globally, with more than 2,700 deaths. The illness it causes was
named COVID-19, a reference to its origin late last year.

While millions attend the hajj, which is this year set for late July into early
August, millions more come during the rest of the year to the holy sites in the
kingdom. Those other pilgrimages are referred to as the umrah, which drew 7.5
million people in 2019 alone. One of the biggest times for the umrah is the
Muslim holy fasting month of Ramadan, which is set to begin at the end of April.

Those pilgrims spend upward of 10 days at holy sites, mingling in tight quarters.
Of those coming, many are older, have pre-existing chronic diseases and come
from countries “with suboptimal disease surveillance,” according to a letter
Thursday to The Lancet medical journal.

“Respiratory infections are the most common illness among pilgrims ... and the
lack of social distancing among pilgrims as they engage in religious rituals
amplifies their risk of acquiring and transmitting respiratory diseases,” the letter
read.





The letter added: “We do not need to wait for the first case to emerge in Saudi
Arabia’s holy sites. The time for preparedness is now.”

Dr. Ziad A Memish, a Saudi professor who studies infectious diseases and co-
signed the letter, said he welcomed the kingdom’s decision.

“This is a very tough decision,” he told The Associated Press. “But with the rapid
spread of COVID-19 and a lack of good diagnostics, preventative vaccines and
therapeutics, this is the best decision that could be taken at such difficult times.”

Kristian Ulrichsen, a research fellow at the James A. Baker 111 Institute for Public
Policy at Rice University, called the Saudi decision “unprecedented.”

“Given the worldwide spread of the virus and the global nature of the umrah, it
makes sense from a public health and safety point of view,” said “Especially since
the Iranian example illustrates how a religious crossroads can so quickly amplify
the spread and reach of the virus.”

By leaving the suspension of travel to the holy sites open-ended, Saudi Arabia has
opened the possibility of this year’s hajj potentially being disrupted as well.

The hardest-hit nation in the Mideast is Iran, where Health Ministry spokesman
Kianoush Jahanpour on Thursday reported 26 deaths out of 245 confirmed cases
of the illness. Experts are concerned Iran may be underreporting cases and deaths,
given the illness’ rapid spread from Iran across the Persian Gulf.

Jahanpour seemed to address that, saying new labs in Iran were conducting tests
and the number of confirmed cases could continue to spike in coming days.
Thursday’s number represented a jump in over 100 new cases from the previous
day. Authorities said Friday prayers in Tehran and other cities would be
cancelled, according to semiofficial Iranian news agencies.

Supreme Leader Ayatollah Ali Khamenei on Thursday praised medical staffers,
calling their work “very invaluable.” But the virus has struck the official in charge
of Iran’s response to the outbreak, as well as at least two lawmaker. On Thursday,
the state-run IRNA news agency reported that Ebtekar, the Iranian vice-president
and hostage-taker spokeswoman, had the virus. It reported she had quarantined
herself at home.

© 2020 The Canadian Press

The original article can be found at https://globalnews.ca/news/6603204/iran-
saudi-arabia-coronavirus/
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IRAN: Iran vice president is one of 7 officials to contract coronavirus

Via The New York Times: Iran Vice President Is One of 7 Officials to Contract
Coronavirus. Excerpt:

A senior figure in Iran’s government, who sits just a few seats away from
President Hassan Rouhani at cabinet meetings, has fallen ill with coronavirus,
making her Iran’s seventh official to test positive, including one prominent cleric
who has died.

Vice President Masoumeh Ebtekar, Mr. Rouhani’s deputy for women’s affairs
and the highest-ranking woman in the government, has a confirmed coronavirus
infection and is quarantined at home, her deputy said Thursday.

The disclosure came a day after a cabinet meeting in which she was in close
contact with other government leaders, including Mr. Rouhani. A photo posted by
a BBC Persia reporter on Twitter showed she had been sitting a few yards from
the president.

Ms. Ebtekar, one of four vice presidents, was known to Americans as “Mary”
during the Tehran hostage crisis four decades ago, when, as a young
revolutionary, she was a spokeswoman for the captors of the 52 Americans held at
the United States Embassy.

Iran now appears to have the highest number of government officials infected by
the coronavirus, which was first officially reported in the holy Iranian city of Qom
on Feb. 19. The disease is believed to have spread to the country from China,
which has maintained close economic relations with the Tehran government
despite American sanctions.

A regional crossroads, Iran also appears to be a primary source of the infections
that have spread to neighbors.

At least 245 people have been infected in Iran, with 26 deaths, Health Ministry
officials said Thursday, most of them in Qom, a destination for Shiite pilgrims.

But health experts estimate the number of infections is far higher, possibly over a
thousand, because the country’s fatality rate of about 20 percent seems so high.
The World Health Organization has said the fatality rate is about 2 percent.

The original article can be found at
https://crofshlogs.typepad.com/h5n1/2020/02/iran-vice-president-is-one-of-7-
officials-to-contract-coronavirus.html
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JAPAN: Woman confirmed as coronavirus case for 2nd time, weeks after
initial recovery

A woman working as a tour bus guide in Japan tested positive for the coronavirus
for a second time, Osaka's prefectural government said Thursday, the first person
in the country to do so amid growing concerns about the spread of the infection.

The second positive test comes as the number of confirmed cases in Japan rose to
186 Thursday from around 170 the day before. Tokyo has urged big gatherings
and sports events be scrapped or curtailed for two weeks to contain the virus
while pledging the 2020 Olympic Games will still go ahead in the city.

The 186 cases reported by Japan's health ministry are separate from 704 reported
from an outbreak on a cruise liner that was quarantined off Tokyo earlier this
month. A total of seven people have died, including four from the ship.

The woman, a resident of Osaka, tested positive on Wednesday after developing a
sore throat and chest pains, the prefectural government said in a statement,
describing her as being in her 40s. She first tested positive in late January and was
discharged from the hospital after recovering on Feb 1, according to the
statement.

The health ministry confirmed the case was the first in Japan where a patient
tested positive for coronavirus for a second time after being discharged from
hospital, the Nikkei newspaper said.

Though a first in Japan, cases of second positive tests have been reported in
China, where the disease originated late last year. The outbreak has spread rapidly
and widely, infecting about 80,000 people globally and killing nearly 2,800, the
vast majority in mainland China.

"Once you have the infection, it could remain dormant and with minimal
symptoms, and then you can get an exacerbation if it finds its way into the lungs,"
said Philip Tierno Jr, Professor of Microbiology and Pathology at NYU School of
Medicine.

He said much remains unknown about the virus. "I'm not certain that this is not
bi-phasic, like anthrax," he said, meaning the disease appears to go away before
recurring.

Asked to comment on prospects for the Olympic Games going ahead in Tokyo
this summer, Prof Tierno said, "The Olympics should be postponed if this
continues ... There are many people who don't understand how easy it is to spread
this infection from one person to another."

Japan has changed its strategy in combating the contagion, seeking to slow its





spread and minimize the number of deaths.

As part of the attempt to contain the outbreak, Tokyo Olympics officials are
considering scaling down the torch relay, Tokyo 2020 CEO Toshiro Muto said on
Wednesday.

The government is also considering scaling back this year's March 11 memorial
ceremony for victims of 2011's massive earthquake and tsunami, Chief Cabinet
Secretary Yoshihide Suga told reporters on Thursday.

Meanwhile a major Japanese bank reported an employee had tested positive for
coronavirus. MUFG Bank, part of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc, the
country's largest lender by assets, said a member of staff at a branch in Aichi
Prefecture, had been confirmed to have the virus on Wednesday.

© (Thomson Reuters 2020.
The original article can be found at

https://japantoday.com/category/national/japanese-woman-confirmed-as-
coronavirus-case-for-2nd-time-weeks-after-initial-recovery
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MEXICO: 6,000 people held on cruise ship as Mexico conducts coronavirus
tests

Mexico City (dpa) - Some 6,000 people are being held on a cruise ship at the
Mexican port of Cozumel while medical experts conduct tests to rule out the
presence of the novel coronavirus, officials said Thursday.

The MSC Meraviglia has docked on Cozumel island off the coast of Mexico's
eastern state of Quintana Roo after being turned away at two previous destinations
- Jamaica and Grand Cayman - because a crew member had been diagnosed with
a common flu.

Quintana Roo state governor Carlos Joaquin said entry into the port had been
granted "due to weather conditions,” but that permission to disembark would only
be given once medical officials had given the all-clear that no one on board had
contracted the deadly virus.

Mexican President Andres Manuel Lopez Obrador said although it was important
to uphold medical standards, the country would not succumb to hysteria
surrounding the virus.

"We cannot close our ports, our airports,” Lopez Obrador said in his daily press
conference.
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Latin America's first case of the coronavirus, which originated in December in
China's Wuhan region and has since spread to more than 40 countries, was
confirmed in Brazil on Wednesday.

# Notebook

Copyright 2020. dpa Deutsche Presse-Agentur
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MULTIPLE COUNTRIES: Rest of world overtakes China in new
coronavirus cases

India, Feb. 27 -- The World Health Organization on Wednesday said that for the
first time the number of new coronavirus cases reported daily outside mainland
China exceeded those within the country, marking a shift in the outbreak that has
killed more than 2,700 and infected over 80,000.

The agency had previously warned that the contagion, which is believed to have
originated from a meat market in the central Chinese city of Wuhan last
December, would spread across the world while the outbreak in China appears to
have peaked on February 2.

The UN health agency put the number of new cases in China on Tuesday at 411
(down from 508 a day before) while those registered outside the country stood at
427. China's death toll rose by 52 to 2,715.

"Yesterday, the number of new cases reported outside China exceeded the number
of new cases in China for the first time," WHO chief Tedros Adhanom
Ghebreyesus told diplomats in Geneva.

The number of recorded infections by the pathogen, which is officially called the
SARS-Cov-2 and the disease it causes is Covid-19, rose to 80,988 across 33
countries. The contagion spread beyond the European hotspot of Italy, while
Brazil confirmed Latin America's first infection.

Greece too confirmed its first case, a woman who had recently travelled to
northern Italy. Croatia, Austria and Algeria reported cases linked to Italy - the
hardest-hit European country -- while a hotel in Spain remained under lockdown
after an infected Italian tourist was hospitalised with the virus.

Italy has confirmed 374 cases of the disease and 12 deaths, and says the virus has
spread to some southern regions as well.

On Wednesday, a 60-year-old man became the second French victim of the virus





in the country, the health ministry announced. France reported four new cases in
the past 24 hours, including two returning from Italy, bringing the total number of
infections in the country to 17.

With cases being reported in more countries, traders are growing increasingly
fearful about the impact on the global economy that has already been hit by its
dependence on China.

World stocks tumbled for the fifth day on fears of prolonged disruption to supply
chains across the world. Stock markets globally have wiped out $3.3 trillion of
value in the past four trading sessions, as measured by the MSCI all-country
index.

Indian equities fell for a fourth consecutive day following sustained global sell-off
over coronavirus fears. Wall Street stocks, however, opened higher on
Wednesday after suffering a second straight rout a day before despite officials
warning that the outbreak was inevitable.

However, WHO's Europe director Hans Kluge said at a press conference in Rome
on Wednesday that there was no need to panic as the mortality rate for the disease
was 2% and had fallen to 1% in China, which accounts for over 96% of all
coronavirus infections. "Bear in mind that four out of five patients have mild
symptoms and recover," Kluge said.

In the Middle East, Iran has been hit the hardest, with a total of 139 cases and 19
deaths. Even the country's deputy health minister Iraj Harirchi said he has
contracted the virus.

In Asia, South Korea remains the worst-affected country after China, reporting
284 new infections on Wednesday. It was the country's largest daily increase in
the number of cases to date, taking the overall national tally to 1,261, and the
death toll rising to 12.

Pakistan on Wednesday confirmed its first two cases of coronavirus, but both
patients were in a "stable" condition, the health minister said, adding that "things
are under control”.

In the United States, which has 57 cases, health authorities urged local
governments, businesses, and schools to take precautions. "It's not a question of
if. It's a question of when and how many people will be infected,” the US's
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention principal deputy director Anne
Schuchat said on Tuesday.

Published by HT Digital Content Services with permission from Hindustan
Times.
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NETHERLANDS: Patient with coronavirus in the Netherlands
Publication date 27-02-2020 | 21:19
Google translation

The new corona virus (COVID-19) was found in a patient in the Netherlands.
This has been determined today with lab tests. The patient, who recently visited
the Lombardy region (Italy), is in isolation. The GGD Municipal Health Service
maps contacts of this patient through contact research.

The new coronavirus can spread through drops. For example if someone coughs
or sneezes in the face of another. To prevent the disease from spreading further in
the Netherlands, the Municipal HealthService (GGD) and the RIVM National
Institute for Public Health and the Environmentmap out who has been in close
contact with the infected patient. These people (referred to as contacts) are
monitored and must record their temperature twice a day and report this to the
GGD. They must also report other complaints that they have. These measures
reduce the chance that the disease can spread in the Netherlands.

RIVM remains alert to possible new infections and applies the same protocol
when new infections are found: isolation, contact investigation and continuous
monitoring of the patient.

Symptoms of the disease are fever and respiratory symptoms such as shortness of
breath or cough. Someone who has spent the last 14 days in an area where
COVID-19 is widespread (such as China, South Korea, but also in some
municipalities in Italy) with a fever and one of the aforementioned airway
complaints can be tested for COVID-19 , the disease caused by the virus called
SARS severe acute respiratory syndrome - CoV coronavirus -2. A doctor can also
request this test for someone with these complaints if he or she has been in
contact with a patient with the new corona virus.

The original article can be found at https://www.rivm.nl/nieuws/patient-met-
nieuw-coronavirus-in-nederland
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NIGERIA: Nigeria reported the first ill with the novel coronavirus

the Federal Ministry of health of Nigeria announced the first in the country the
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case of infection with the novel coronavirus. The corresponding message was
published on Friday in the Twitter Department.

As specified, the disease is a coronavirus recorded in Lagos state.

Recall that outside of China coronavirus has spread in 45 countries, including in
Russia. Chinese authorities confirmed the country 2788 deaths, more than 36.1
thousand people were recovered, the number of infected has reached more than
78.8 thousand

The original article can be found at http://www.kxan36news.com/nigeria-
reported-the-first-ill-with-the-novel-coronavirus
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PAKISTAN: Pakistan confirms first two COVID-19 cases

Two cases of coronavirus have been confirmed in Karachi, Special Assistant to
the Prime Minister on Health Dr Zafar Mirza confirmed on Wednesday, minutes
after the first case was reported in the port city.'l can confirm first two cases of
coronavirus in Pakistan. Both cases are being taken care of according to clinical
standard protocols and both of them are stable," Dr Mirza wrote on Twitter.

He also noted that there was 'no need to panic [as] things are under control'.

The second case was reported in Islamabad and was shifted to a quarantine in the
capital's Pakistan Institute of Medical Sciences (PIMS).

Earlier, a spokesperson for the Sindh health department confirmed that the 22-
year-old patient - Pakistan's first case - had arrived in aeroplane from Iran and has
a history of travel to Tehran from where he reportedly acquired the virus. He was
suffering from coronavirus symptoms while he was in Iran, it
mentioned.Meanwhile, Director General Health Department Dr Tahir Nadeem
Wednesday said the provincial government has released Rs 100 million grant to
cope with any emergency related to coronavirus in the region.Talking to media
here, he said that effective measures have been put in place to curb outbreak of
Coronavirus, adding that thermal screening is being performed at Pak-Afghan
border to check the disease.

He said teams have also being deployed at Bacha Khan Airport to screen each and
every passenger coming from affected countries.The DG said that Police Services
Hospital has been specified to deal with coronavirus patients. Until now not a
single case of coronavirus has been reported from any part of the province, he
said and added that out of 16 suspected cases none was found positive.

In the wake of reports of Coronavirus cases in Iran and Afghanistan, a 13-member
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medical team including doctors has scanned 143956 people at Torkham
Border.Deputy Commissioner Khyber, Mehmood Aslam Wazir on Wednesday
said a medical team was busy in scanning people coming from Afghanistan
through Torkham Border with thermal scanning guns to check the spread of
Coronavirus.

To cope with any emergency, he said ambulances have been shifted to the border
besides emergency spots have also been declared at Pak-Afghan Dosti Hospital
Torkham, Tehsil Headquarter Hospital Landikotal and Jamrud.

The facility of keeping suspected patients in isolation has also been made
available at the border, he said adding the administration was doing its best to
cope with any situation with regard to threat of spread of the virus.The Khyber
Administration and Health Department, he said were in close liaison and
cooperation however, he added so far no such case of Coronavirus has been
reported at Torkham Border.Meanwhile, the closure at the Pakistan-Iran border
continued for a fourth straight day on Wednesday amid the coronavirus outbreak
in Iran, reported Geo News.

Quetta-Taftan train service suspendedRailways Minister Sheikh Rasheed Ahmed
also announced the suspension of train service between Quetta and Pakistan's
Taftan amid fears of coronavirus outbreak.

Copyright © 2020. The Statesman
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SOUTH KOREA: (2nd LD) Two more Air Force officers, two military
workers test positive for coronavirus

SEQUL, Feb. 27 (Yonhap) -- Two Air Force officers and two civilian workers for
the military tested positive for the new coronavirus Thursday, bringing the total
number of confirmed cases in the military to 25, the defense ministry said.

Three of the four new patients are stationed in South Korea's southeastern city of
Daegu, where more than 1,000 confirmed cases have been confirmed. Including
patients in its surrounding North Gyeongsang Province, more than 80 percent of
the total cases have occurred there, according to the Korea Center for Disease
Control (KCDC).

Of the total cases in the military, 15 are in the Army, eight in the Air Force and
one each in the Navy and the Marine Corps, according to the ministry.

Three of the 25 patients are civilian workers, and the remainder are active-duty
soldiers, it added.





As part of efforts to stem the further spread of the potentially deadly virus into the
barracks, around 9,900 service members are quarantined at their bases.

Of them, about 820 have either shown symptoms or had direct contact with
infected patients, while the remainder had visited Daegu or its neighboring
regions after Feb. 10.

Among the U.S. Forces Korea (USFK) and related people, two have tested
positive for the virus, including one active-duty soldier.

To guarantee the safety of their service members and to support Seoul's
containment efforts, the South Korea-U.S. combined forces command decided to
postpone their springtime joint military exercises slated for early March
indefinitely.

Following the first confirmed case among its service personnel Friday, the South
Korean defense ministry has halted off-installation drills and physical
examinations for potential draftees. It has also restricted all enlisted soldiers'
ability to go on vacation, stay outside their base and meet visitors.

USFK also raised its risk level to "high™ and has limited its soldiers' non-essential
off-installation activities and social events, as well as implementing a tougher
process for accessing garrisons across the country.

graceoh@yna.co.kr (END)

20200227 1728 KST
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SOUTH KOREA: Coronavirus cases reach 1,596 on tests of religious sect
members

Some 46% of confirmed cases related to religious sect in Daegu

The confirmed coronavirus cases in Korea increased by 334 to 1,595 on Thursday
as authorities ramped up efforts to test some 210,000 members of a religious sect
whose members are at the centre of the coronavirus outbreak, KCDC reported.
Some 46% of the confirmed cases in Korea are related to members of the sect,
however, new clusters are slowly emerging in other cities such as Busan and
Seoul where confirmed cases stood at 55 and 58. Cases are expected to continue
to rise in the coming days due to the testing of the religious sect members. The
authorities have tested 56,395 patients for the coronavirus thus far (up by 4,130 in
a day) of which 36,298 have tested negative and the remaining are still being
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tested.

© 2020. CEEMarketWatch
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SOUTH KOREA: South Korea coronavirus cases surpass 2,000

South Korea reported 256 more confirmed cases of the novel coronavirus on
Friday morning, bringing the national total to 2,022, according to the South
Korean Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (KCDC).

The country has the most confirmed coronavirus cases outside of mainland China.
Among the 256 new cases, 182 are from Daegu, the epicenter of the outbreak in
South Korea. A total of 1,314 cases since the beginning of the outbreak have
come from Daegu, according to the KCDC.

Many of the cases are linked to the Shincheonji religious group in the country's
south.

An additional 49 cases are from North Gyeongsang province, which surrounds
Daegu city.

Thirteen people have died from the virus in South Korea.

The original article can be found at https://www.cnn.com/asia/live-
news/coronavirus-outbreak-02-28-20-intl-hnk/index.html
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SPAIN: Spain probes first local coronavirus transmissions

Spanish health ministry officials were on Thursday investigating the country's
first suspected cases of locally-transmitted coronavirus infections, with one
elderly patient in a serious condition.

Three people are in hospital -- two in Madrid and one in Seville -- with the flu-
like disease.

None had travelled to a hotspot country, nor had any connection to a known
patient, said Fernando Simon, the ministry's chief coordinator for health
emergencies.

"Their possible ties with cases outside of Spain, or imported cases are being
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investigated,” he told a news conference.

Since the start of the epidemic, Spain has registered 17 cases of coronavirus
infection, 15 of which were detected since Monday evening.

Of that number, 12 cases involve Italian nationals or people who had been in
Italy, the worst-hit country in Europe where more than 525 people have been
infected and 12 have died.

Four Italian tourists tested positive on Tenerife in the Canary Islands with
authorities imposing a quarantine on the hotel where they were staying with more
than 700 other guests.

But the quarantine was partially lifted on Thursday, with staff and around 130
tourists allowed to leave after testing negative, officials said.

If confirmed that the disease is now spreading from person-to-person within
Spain, the government would have to take extra measures to prevent further
contagions, such as "reducing large gatherings", Simon said.

One of the two Madrid patients is a 77-year-old man is seriously ill and in
intensive care, Madrid's regional government said. The other is a 50-year-old man
in stable condition.

The first suspected case of local transmission was discovered on Wednesday in a
62-year-old man in the southern region of Andalusia who is in isolation at a
Seville hospital.

"The fact that it has not been possible to determine where he became infected
means the virus may have circulated for a while in Andalusia,” Simon told radio
Onda Cero earlier on Thursday.

Among the latest diagnosed with the infection was a sports journalist from the
coastal city of VValencia who went to Milan to cover the February 19 Champions
League clash between Valencia and Atalanta Bergame.

"Coronavirus has recruited me," joked reporter Kike Mateu, wearing a mask in a
video sent from his hospital bed.

bur-hmw/mg/har

Copyright Agence France-Presse, 2020 All reproduction and presentation rights
reserved.
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UNITED KINGDOM: Derbyshire primary school shut over *confirmed
coronavirus case' as numbers rise to 15 in UK

It brings the number of confirmed coronavirus cases in the UK to 15

A primary school in Buxton has been closed after a parent was ‘confirmed to have
coronavirus' -as the number of reported cases in the UK rises to 15.

Two further patients in England have tested positive for coronavirus , the
Department of Health said.

The virus was passed on in Italy and Tenerife and the patients have been
transferred to specialist NHS facilities at the Royal Liverpool Hospital and the
Royal Free Hospital, London.

The department published the update from England's Chief Medical officer, Chris
Whitty, to its Twitter account on Thursday.

Social media users were left asking a number of questions, such as where the
individuals are from, and whether they had symptoms.

However, more information about the cases is yet to be confirmed.

But a school in Buxton has closed following a confirmed case among the parent
population.

The parents of pupils at Burbage Primary School in Buxton, Derbyshire, have
been told that the school would be closed on Thursday as a result of a "confirmed
case of coronavirus amongst our parent population”.

Burbage Primary has 350 students sent a message to parents via WhatsApp on
Wednesday night saying the decision had been taken as a "precautionary measure
and to enable a deep clean to be completed™.

Across the UK, at least eight schools have closed while others -including Prince
George's and Princess Charlotte's school in London -have sent pupils home amid
fears they may have been exposed to coronavirus during half-term trips to
northern Italy.

On Tuesday, Health Secretary, Matt Hancock, told British travellers returning
home from northern Italy to self-isolate for 14 days if they had symptoms.

This has led to a number of school pupils and staff across the country to stay
indoors over fears they may have been exposed to the virus during school ski trips
to the region.





Cases of the outbreak in Italy has surged to 447, with a total of 12 deaths.

On Wednesday, it was reported that four people tested positive for the virus at a
hotel in Tenerife, which is popular with British tourists.

The four-star H10 Costa Adeje Palace Hotel was put on lockdown where around
1,000 guests were told to remain in their rooms.

The latest confirmed cases in the UK on Thursday comes as the government is
soon set to launch their own public information campaign to reassure people.

Four cruise ship passengers brought to the UK from the Diamond Princess cruise
ship in Japan tested positive for coronavirus on February 23 -which had brought
the previous total of cases in the UK to 13.

© 2020 Trinity Mirror
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UNITED KINGDOM: Fears of coronavirus pandemic hitting UK grow as
two new cases confirmed

Fears of a coronavirus pandemic hitting Britain grew today as a leading expert
warned that the number of cases in Italy and other countries is far higher than
reported — and two new cases were confirmed in the UK.

Chief medical officer Professor Chris Whitty announced that one person,
understood to be a Londoner who recently returned from Italy, was being treated
at the Royal Free Hospital in the capital.

A second individual, who had been in Tenerife and is believed to be linked to a
coronavirus-hit hotel in lockdown on the island, was being cared for at the Royal
Liverpool Hospital.

The cases take the total so far here to 15, including four who were repatriated
from the Diamond Princess luxury liner in Japan.

The Italian authorities have sealed off about 12 towns in Lombardy and Veneto to
try to contain the spread of the virus, with the number of cases officially put at
400 last night, an increase of 80 on the previous day, with 12 deaths.

However, Professor Neil Ferguson, director of the Centre for Global Infectious
Disease Analysis at Imperial College, London, said there were “definitely

thousands” of cases in northern Italy.

“The great majority of cases for this virus we think have quite mild disease and





they are not being detected,” he told BBC Radio 4’s Today programme.

If there is an outbreak in the UK, people could be advised to “minimise social
contact”, he added, but quarantining of whole towns or cities, as happened in
China and Italy, is unlikely.

As the Government sought to delay any major outbreak here until the summer
when the NHS will be under less pressure:

Australian Prime Minister Scott Morrison warned: “There is every indication that
the world will soon enter a pandemic phase of the coronavirus.”

He triggered an emergency response plan which aimed to ensure hospitals have
enough medical supplies, personal protective equipment and staff.

Chinese health officials said 14 per cent of patients discharged from hospital after
recovering from the virus later tested positive again.

London Mayor Sadigq Khan is to hold a high-level meeting to ensure the capital’s
readiness and resilience for further cases of coronavirus, including considering
concerns over the risk of its spread on the Tube.

One of London’s top private schools, Dulwich Prep London, became the latest to
announce it was closing for a few days “as a precautionary measure” after two
pupils returned from Italy feeling unwell.

The FTSE-100 and other stock markets dropped sharply this morning as concerns
grew over a pandemic, with trillions wiped off the value of shares globally in less
than a week.

Criminals are disguising themselves as World Health Organisation officials to
steal money or sensitive information with phishing emails about the coronavirus
threat, the WHO warned.

Donald Trump put US vice president Mike Pence in charge of America’s
coronavirus response, insisting the risk remained “very low”.

He defended his handling of the crisis after being criticised for earlier lashing out
at the media, accusing it of trying “to make the Caronavirus [sic] look as bad as
possible”. There have been 59 cases in the US, including 42 American passengers
repatriated from the Diamond Princess.

French President Emmanuel Macron visited a hospital in Paris that has been
treating coronavirus patients. Two people have died from the virus in France, a
60-year-old French man and an 80-year-old Chinese tourist.





Officials in Germany were racing to trace contacts of infected individuals after
health minister Jens Spahn said: “We are at the beginning of a coronavirus
epidemic in Germany.” So far there have been 21 confirmed cases.

South Korea reported 505 new cases, taking the total to 1,766, with 13 deaths,
with a large proportion of them linked to a religious cult in the southeastern city
of Daegu.

Iran’s state news agency said 22 people had died from coronavirus, with 141
cases confirmed, though this is believed to be a huge underestimate.

China reported 433 new cases yesteday to take the total to 78,497, with 29 more
killed and a death toll so far of 2,744 people.

Professor Ferguson, a government adviser in his role on the Committee on New
and Emerging Respiratory Virus Threats, suggested the case figures were under-
reporting.

Health officials in the UK are so concerned about the quarantine area in northern
Italy that they have imposed similar advice to returning Britons as for the Hubei
region at the centre of the outbreak in China to self-isolate for 14 days even if
they do not have symptoms. “What’s been clear is that there has been
transmission in Italy ongoing and not detected for at least three weeks and
probably more like a month,” said Professor Ferguson. “Behind each one of those
deaths probably lies about a thousand cases.”

He added that the scale of the disease meant it could not be contained by “chasing
cases, isolating them”, but that “large scale community measures”, as happened in
China, Hong Kong and Singapore, could reduce transmission.

Containment measures could “buy time” to push an outbreak’s peak into the
summer rather than the spring or the autumn. The vast majority of people recover
from coronavirus.

As the virus spread to nearly 50 countries, Saudi Arabia halted travel to the
holiest sites in Islam over fears of an epidemic just months ahead of the annual
Hajj pilgrimage.

© 2020. Independent Digital News and Media Ltd. All Rights Reserved
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From: EPIXUpdate@cdc.gov

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Subject: Important: ~*~ Special Epi-X Media Tracking Report - COVID-19, February 27, 2020 ~*~
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:55:29 PM

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
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To: Ochi, Ed (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Cushing, Stephanie (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Nieves, Israel (DPH); Nguyen, Rita (DPH)
Subject: RE: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUIs and Patients are Boarded
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:47:59 PM
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
mailto:ed.ochi@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
mailto:Stephanie.Cushing@sfdph.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
mailto:israel.nieves@sfgov.org
mailto:rita.nguyen@sfdph.org
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
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From: Ochi, Ed (DPH)

To: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)
Cc: Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Cushing, Stephanie (DPH)
Subject: Cleaning in Hotels Where COVID-19 PUIs and Patients are Boarded
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 6:10:15 PM
Attachments: image004.png
imaae003.png

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
1. | would personally hope that a hotel would be cleaning bathrooms and high touch areas
with some form of disinfectant, routinely, not just for COVID-19 purposes.
2. If they buying new or more disinfectant they could always buy one with a Human
Coronavirus label (kill) claim but there’s no requirement or recommendation that they do
so.

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

1. The document is targeted for household members, partners, and caregivers. In
employer/employee arrangements such as a hotel | would anticipate that the employer
would be held to a higher standard.

2. Home healthcare providers are supposed to follow the CDC COVID-19 Infection Control
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
REE

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



From: Leonoudakis, Kristina (DPH)

To: DPH-COVID-19 DPH Activation 2020; DPH-Integration Steering Committee
Subject: SFDPH DOC COVID-19 Situation Status Report (02/27/2020)
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 3:47:41 PM

SFDPH DOC COVID-19 Situation Status Report (02/27/2020)

Status: Yellow
Outlook: Worsening
Need: None

# of Cases/Deaths

Worldwide: 82,557 Cases / 2,810 Deaths (John Hopkins CSSE, link below)
US: 56 Cases (see notes below)/ 0 Deaths (CDC)

CA: 11 Cases / 0 Deaths (CDPH)

SF: 0 Cases

https://gisanddata.maps.

Updates and Response:

SFDPH
Summary of actions

e SF Public Health Laboratories are finalizing preparations to start COVID-19 testing in SF, with the goal of
starting testing soon.

e SFDPH DOC is seeing a surge in clinical consultation calls in the last 24 hours. The DOC is working to identify
more staff resources to the clinical consultation unit.

e SFDPH consultation units are reporting an increase in calls after the Mayor’s declaration of a local
emergency.

e A meeting has been scheduled with key CCSF stakeholders to provide information and updates regarding
what the city’s COVID-19 response

e The SFDPH DOC and the Department of Emergency Management’s (DEM) EOC are collaborating to
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

e SFDPH CDCP information: https://www.sfcdcp.org/infectious-diseases-a-to-z/coronavirus-2019-novel-

%20%20%20coronavirus/

C€DC-

e CDC provides links to National Pandemic Flu plans and Pandemic plans for businesses. These policies were
within the last couple of years and are research and evidence based. https://www.cdc.gov/flu/pandemic-
resources/national-strategy/index.html

e CDC reports there are 15 confirmed cases in the U.S.

h -//www.cdc.gov/media/rel 202 213-15th-coronavirus- .html

e https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-in-us.html
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HO (World Health Organization)-

e \WHO stated that 9 new countries (Brazil, Denmark, Estonia, Georgia, Greece, Norway, Pakistan, Romania,
and The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia) reported cases of COVID-19 in the past 24 hours. (as of
02/27/20)

e WHO is utilizing an international network of expert laboratories to provide support in the detection of the
COVID-19 virus globally.

e https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/situation-reports

CDPH (California Department of Public Health)-

e CDPH reported 1 new confirmed case of COVID-19 in Solano County, CA as of 02/27/20. CA now has 9
confirmed cases. This Solano County case is the first possible community transmission case. Contact tracing
and investigation has begun. https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/OPA/Pages/NR20-006.aspx[NB1] k2

e CDPH reports there are 33 positive cases in California: 24 are from repatriation flights. The other 9
confirmed cases include 7 that are travel related, one due to person-to-person exposure from a very close
contact (a spouse) and one from an unknown source.

e CDPH reported that approximately 80% of global COVID-19 confirmed cases have not exhibited symptoms
requiring hospitalization.

e https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Immunization/nCOV2019.aspx

Johns Hopkins Data Dashboard (real time updates, data sources- WHO, CDC, NHC, and DXY.)
https://gisanddata.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/bda7594740fd40299423467b48e9ecf6

International data-

e 82,557 confirmed cases globally.

e 78,497 confirmed cases in mainland China; 4,053 confirmed cases outside of mainland China, in 51
countries.

e 2 745 deaths in mainland China + 65 additional deaths (Afghanistan, Bahrain, Irag, Oman, Iran, Italy,
Philippines, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Japan, France, South Korea, Diamond Princess Cruise)

NOTE: Information may vary as events and reporting are rapidly evolving.

Differences in number of confirmed cases may vary due to reporting methods.
- Global cases sourced from Jons Hopkins site.
- U.S. cases sourced from CDC site.

- CA cases sourced from CDPH site.

Kristina Leonoudakis-Watts, HPC3/Operations Manager
San Francisco Department of Public Health

Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response
(415) 558-5934 office

(415) 377-8549 mobile
kristina.m.leonoudakis@sfdph.org
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The San Francisco Health Network is the city's only comprehensive system of care. Our top goal is to improve the value of
services provided to our patients, staff, and San Franciscans.

This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient, and may contain confidential or privileged information.
If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of this message and any attachments is
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender by reply email, and immediately and
permanently delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.



From: Hanson, Jake@CDPH

To: CDPH CCLHO DL
Subject: Fwd: What US Hospitals Should Do Now to Prepare for a COVID-19 Pandemic
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 3:40:27 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: Rick Johnson <drrickjiohn@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 9:59 AM

To: Hanson, Jake@CDPH

Subject: Fwd: What US Hospitals Should Do Now to Prepare for a COVID-19 Pandemic

**[EXTERNAL MESSAGE]** FROM: drrickjohn@gmail.com
Only open links and attachments from known senders. Do not provide your username or password. To
report suspicious emails, click “Report Phish” button.

This is an excellent resource that Health Officers could share with hospitals.
Can you send out to all the HOs?

Thanks

Rick
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What US Hospitals Should Do Now to Prepare for a COVID-19 Pandemic
Eric Toner, MD, and Richard Waldhorn, MD February 27, 2020

The World Health Organization (WHO) and the US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) have called on health systems around the world to prepare for a possible COVID-19
pandemic. The purpose of this article is to offer to American hospital administrators and clinicians
specific judgment on what hospitals should do to prepare for a COVID-19 pandemic. This is an
update of a similar perspective related to pandemic influenza, published in 2006.1 These
recommendations derive from the authors’ analysis of the consequences of a flu pandemic, review
of many existing hospital plans, analysis of the federal government’'s recommendations, and
meetings with a number of leaders in health care, public health, and emergency management.
Recognizing that any such recommendations must be based on numerous untestable assumptions,
any of which can be reasonably challenged, we propose specific actions and priorities for the
purpose of making the discussion of hospital pandemic preparedness issues more operationally
useful. This commentary pertains to hospitals, but long-term care facilities, outpatient clinics,
medical offices, and other healthcare facilities must also urgently prepare.

The Argument for Urgent Preparedness
The current COVID-19 epidemic looks very much like an early influenza pandemic in many
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important respects. It is spreading from person to person efficiently, much like influenza, including
some degree of pre-symptomatic spread. Although the true case fatality rate is as yet uncertain, all
evidence suggests that it is as severe as, if not more severe than, influenza pandemics of the last
century. The case fatality rate (CFR) of confirmed COVID-19 patients in China is estimated to be 1-
3%, although this may not account for all mildly symptomatic or asymptomatic infections. In some
regions of China outside Hubei, the CFR has been less than 1%. For comparison, the CFR of the
2009 influenza pandemic was around 0.1%, the 1968 and 1957 pandemics in the United States
were about 0.5%, and the CFR of the 1918 pandemic was estimated to be 2.5 % in the United
States.

Because it will take considerable time to fully understand the epidemiology of COVID-19, it is
reasonable to begin preparations using a model we have studied extensively for decades and that
seems similar to COVID-19—pandemic influenza. The threat of a novel influenza pandemic has
stimulated international, national, and local planning and preparedness efforts for years. In the
event of a 1918-scale flu pandemic, hospitals would be flooded with sick patients seeking care.

The impact of a COVID-19 pandemic on hospitals is expected to be severe in the best of
circumstances. Currently, US hospitals routinely operate at or near full capacity and have limited
ability to rapidly increase services. There are currently shortages of healthcare workers of all kinds.
Emergency departments are overcrowded and often have to divert patients to other hospitals.

In recent years, there has been a reduction in the overall number of hospitals, hospital beds, and
emergency rooms. During an epidemic, the healthcare workforce would be greatly reduced.
Healthcare workers would face a high risk of infection because of contact with infected patients;
many would need to stay home to care for sick relatives, and, in the absence of vaccine, others
might fear coming to work lest they bring a lethal infection home to their families. The provision of
medical services to both COVID-19 and non—COVID-19 patients may be adversely affected in most
communities.

Detailed modeling projections for COVID-19 have not yet been released by the US government or
WHO; however, the US Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) released official
planning assumptions for pandemic influenza, ranging from a moderate pandemic like 1968 or
1957, to one based on a very severe pandemic like 1918.2 These may be the best tools we have at
the moment. They differ by more than 10-fold in the number expected to need hospitalization,
intensive care, and mechanical ventilation (see Table 1).

Table 1
HHS pandemic planning assumptions

Moderate Scenario (1968-like) Very Severe Scenario (1918-like)
38 M needing medical care 38 M needing medical care

1 M hospitalizations 9.6 M hospitalizations

200,000 needing ICU 2.9 M needing ICU

As a comparison, there are about 46,500 medical ICU beds in the United States and perhaps an
equal number of other ICU beds that could be used in a crisis. Even spread out over several
months, the mismatch between demand and resources is clear.

Some patients in China have been treated with extracorporeal membrane oxygenation (ECMO),
and some US medical centers with this technology are preparing to use it as well. For US hospitals
with this capability, it would be prudent to think through how this scarce resource would be
allocated if demand exceeds resources.

Preparedness Defined

Based on such calculations, it would seem that preparing for a pandemic of even moderate severity
is a difficult challenge. For the purpose of this analysis, we use the following definition of
preparedness:

Every hospital, in collaboration with other hospitals and public health agencies, will be able to
provide appropriate care to COVID-19 patients requiring hospitalization while maintaining other
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essential medical services in the community, both during and after a pandemic.

This definition recognizes that what constitutes “appropriate care” and the criteria for hospital
admission may well change during a pandemic.

The Top Priorities
Individual hospitals and groups of hospitals involved in regional coordination of pandemic
preparedness should focus their initial preparedness efforts in the following priority areas:

1.

3.
4.

Comprehensive and realistic planning based on actual CDC FluSurge projections in each
hospital, and collaborative planning among all hospitals in a region (eg, healthcare
coalitions).

. Limiting the nosocomial spread of the virus to (1) protect the healthcare workers and, thus,

maintain a hospital workforce; (2) prevent the hospital from being a disease amplifier; and (3)
protect the non—COVID-19 patients from infection, so as to maintain the ability to provide
essential non—COVID-19 health care.

Maintaining, augmenting, and stretching the hospital workforce.

Allocating limited healthcare resources in a rational, ethical, and organized way so as to do
the greatest good for the greatest number.

Specific Priority Actions to Be Taken
To implement the priority goals above, hospitals should undertake the following specific actions:

1. Employing a comprehensive and realistic planning process:

e Employ at least 1 full-time hospital emergency manager in each hospital.
¢ Dedicate a full-time infection prevention practitioner to work on infection prevention aspects

of the preparations, including education, training, and exercises.

Designate a medical director to work closely with the emergency manager and infection
prevention practitioner.

Create a pandemic preparedness committee (or use an existing emergency management
committee) that includes representatives of all clinical and support departments as well as
senior administrators.

Participate in a local healthcare coalition, which includes neighboring hospitals, local public
health agencies, and emergency management. Members of multi-hospital health systems
should integrate system-wide planning with local planning with other local hospitals.

We do not yet have modeling tools or planning assumptions for COVID-19. CDC has
developed FluSurge 2.0, which can be used in conjunction with HHS planning assumptions
to guide planning for both a moderate and severe pandemic.2 Note that the default
assumptions in FluSurge are based on a 1968-like pandemic. To model a severe pandemic,
FluSurge allows the assumed number of hospitalizations to be modified to correspond to the
HHS planning assumptions for a severe pandemic.

Be able to make 30% of licensed bed capacity available for COVID-19 patients on 1 week’s
notice. About 10-20% of a hospital’s bed capacity can be mobilized within a few hours by
expediting discharges, using discharge holding areas, converting single rooms to double
rooms, and opening closed areas, if staffing is available. Another 10% can be obtained within
a few days by converting flat spaces, such as lobbies, waiting areas, and classrooms.*
Collaborate in regional plans to be able to make at least 200% of licensed bed capacity in
the region available for COVID-19 patients on 2 weeks’ notice.

Use telephone and internet-based advice lines to reduce unnecessary visits to the hospital
emergency department.

2. Limiting the nosocomial spread of the virus:

The CDC has provided good technical guidance on infection control for COVID-19 in
healthcare facilities.2

Limit the accidental contamination of the hospital environment by implementing respiratory
etiquette and by using simple surgical masks for everyone entering the facility (staff, patients,
and visitors) during a pandemic. Assuming re-supply may be difficult during a pandemic,
stockpile enough masks for 3 weeks.

Prevent staff from getting infected by training healthcare workers on the use of personal


https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__r20.rs6.net_tn.jsp-3Ff-3D001PJeRkqzHYodYk5sr3iST4lvRiizkRllmtS14K3Nl-5FBy9tE12z4KqXPsnFvjEJlTLoogpT-5FKphPvMtIMnAsJJqBzy2j-5FftVlj25vXGnDBgY8GP0s7aZSs7591qPan0l-5FwVrsoGQqflbvom4QWKJgHsuKauagD1is7TGh4vfCuIaqMtpU3WMUER4i2gesAEwQIuJ-2Dq00F2K5U-3D-26c-3Dze-2DcMrANOA4kB4M-2D3L4gWGZ5zqJVkEIRNtxf-2DhNxWjIXrF7KZPXpEQ-3D-3D-26ch-3DRgX1ZMtUhycIrKyEswAyhSYvD7idqATyyEHNSWyIamFJEwXOlzdGmQ-3D-3D&d=DwMFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=0PyiXS2LGQOUl6N7FevK7WVfES6YpHloaP5kj830ZnM&m=lLmo5QKa_F_J-97nzEQV6F_yZb7UX83Iv5pH8rNiCf8&s=hQS5EwlR6P4xRz05143he5aVBCIcray9aQDLatNWQuw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__r20.rs6.net_tn.jsp-3Ff-3D001PJeRkqzHYodYk5sr3iST4lvRiizkRllmtS14K3Nl-5FBy9tE12z4KqXPsnFvjEJlTLS4HsZXa5gC2W756g2I4PTFZRfktf5QdutyICpVOZhXgm9AkcrQ0dhAEenTyOfQ-5FG2MoovVjjbtsya4DoLR4AVlsUGS0DK8J5enQJEEl-2DXS5Ex2t9Nl5sLszPIl9dkGvevm5P0efV-2Dlg2W4nG-5FCT6Og-3D-3D-26c-3Dze-2DcMrANOA4kB4M-2D3L4gWGZ5zqJVkEIRNtxf-2DhNxWjIXrF7KZPXpEQ-3D-3D-26ch-3DRgX1ZMtUhycIrKyEswAyhSYvD7idqATyyEHNSWyIamFJEwXOlzdGmQ-3D-3D&d=DwMFaQ&c=Lr0a7ed3egkbwePCNW4ROg&r=0PyiXS2LGQOUl6N7FevK7WVfES6YpHloaP5kj830ZnM&m=lLmo5QKa_F_J-97nzEQV6F_yZb7UX83Iv5pH8rNiCf8&s=x0Xhf9i6kB9JmMb4v5eVI4L5gJsP9iPGxSyVziYTK8c&e=

protective equipment (PPE) and infection control procedures and by stockpiling a supply of
PPE. PPE availability is currently limited, but hospitals should purchase what they can,
recognizing that a local outbreak could last at least several weeks to several months. Given
the preeminent need to protect healthcare workers, we feel the highest level of protection
available should be used. We call for the use of N95 respirators for healthcare workers with
direct contact with COVID-19 patients. This is in concert with the CDC’s COVID-19
guidelines. Powered air-purifying respirators (PAPRs) should be available for use in high-risk
aerosol-generating procedures.

e Limit the number of staff who are exposed to COVID-19 patients by cohorting (dedicated
staff in dedicated units) (see Figure 1). Utilize overtime and long shifts for staff in the COVID-
19 units to limit the number of staff needed. When possible, use staff who are immune
(recovered) in the COVID-19 units.

e Prevent infected staff from working (except with COVID-19 patients) by tracking staff who are
sick and testing for COVID-19, if possible, and keeping a log of staff who have had confirmed
COVID-19.

Figure 1
Cohorting

3. Maintaining, augmenting, and stretching the hospital workforce:

e Vaccinate all staff for influenza to reduce the burden of that disease.
¢ Organize in-home childcare for well children of healthcare workers if schools are closed,
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using screened volunteers.

e Provide medical daycare for sick family members.
o Allay fear through open, honest, and transparent planning and careful training.
o Shift clinical staff to highest-need areas from areas that may be closed or quiet; employ “just

in time” education and “buddy teaming.”

Augment clinical staff with nontraditional personnel, employing “just in time” education and
“buddy teaming.” Use (1) medical professionals with prior clinical experience (eg,
administrators, researchers, retirees, etc); (2) related health professionals (eg, dentists,
veterinarians, emergency medical technicians, etc); (3) nonclinical hospital personnel; and
(4) nonclinical outside personnel. Specific training and operating procedures for each group
must be created in advance.

Coordinate plans with other hospitals in the region to recruit and use volunteers.

4. Allocating limited healthcare resources in a rational, ethical, and organized way so as to do the
greatest good for the greatest number through deferral of nonemergency care and, if necessary,
institution of alternative patient care routines.

Prioritize which services and types of procedures can be deferred, for how long, and with
what consequences and create an alternative plan for patients who will be deferred. Create a
process for refining and updating this plan as circumstances change. Create a process to
track deferred patients.

Plan for the graceful transition to contingency and crisis standards of care. In a severe
pandemic, not all patients in need of intensive care will be able to be accommodated in the
ICU. Normal staffing ratios and standard operating procedures will not be able to be
maintained.

Plan for alternative sites to provide ICU-like care within the hospital (eg, catheterization lab,
catheterization recovery, OR, PACU, endoscopy units, etc).

Implement contingency and crisis standards, which will be justified when conventional
standards cannot be maintained despite the use of all available resources, including mutual
aid arrangements. The legal and ethical framework for these decisions should be considered
well in advance of a crisis. Alterations in hospital policy and procedures should be
implemented by an active decision of the hospital leadership in consultation with the medical
staff and civil authorities.

Create criteria/clinical guidelines for use (or denial) of resource-intensive services (eg,
admission, mechanical ventilation, invasive monitoring) based on national guidelines, such
as the Crisis Standards of Care report€ in regional collaboration with other hospitals.
Establish a process for triage of patients competing for limited resources, including
admission, early discharge, and life support. These decisions should not be made solely by 1
person. The criteria used to make these decisions should be created in advance and formally
sanctioned by the medical staff and hospital administration.

How to Proceed

Although a COVID-19 pandemic seems all but inevitable, there is still uncertainty about its severity
in the United States. Time will tell, but, in the meantime, hospitals should not delay. In the event of
a pandemic, the predictable costs of not preparing, in human, societal, and political terms, would be
huge. Decision makers at all levels—including hospital CEOs and their boards and state and
federal officials—should consider these issues and how to proceed. Several of the first priority
items (comprehensive and collaborative planning, discussing allocation of scarce resources, and
planning education and training) take substantial time. Hospitals should begin these actions now.
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From: Nguyen, Rita (DPH)

To: Stier, David (DPH); Stoltey, Juliet (DPH); Louie, Janice (DPH); Chan, Curtis (DPH); Johnson, Kelly (DPH); Philip,
Susan (DPH); Masinde, Godfred (DPH); Alonso, Sabrina (DPH); DuBois, Amie (DPH)

Cc: Aragon, Tomas (DPH)

Subject: 2/27 CDPH All County Call

Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 2:09:33 PM

Attachments: 2-27 CDPH All-County Call.docx

Hi all,

Attaching my notes from today’s CDPH All County Call. | pulled out the highlights below.
Please let me know if any questions.

Thanks,

Rita

Epi/Surveillance —
e CDC has new PUI form
o 2 pages, more about symptoms, exposures, how PUI was identified
o Upload form into CalREDIE and email form to CDC
e Testing: currently get nCoV ID (formerly PUI ID) from CDC
o CDPH is creating a website to generate a unique nCOV ID. Will give instructions on
how to get access to this
= Looking for 5 local health jurisdictions to test WEBSITE. If we’d like to volunteer

to test website, email izbepireport@cdph.ca.gov

Returning Traveler
¢ No current plans to designate additional countries for monitoring of returning travelers.
Community transmission in other countries not at the level of magnitude of China
PUI definition updated to include other countries (see below)
Starting 2/28, booklets will be provided to every traveler from China at the end of screening
process at airports. Booklets will contain info on:
How to perform self monitoring
14 day log sheet
Instructions to contact LHD if symptomatic
They will NOT be providing thermometers

O O o o

Updated PUI Definition (added Iran, Italy, Japan, and South Korea as relevant epi risk)


mailto:rita.nguyen@sfdph.org
mailto:david.stier@sfdph.org
mailto:juliet.stoltey@sfdph.org
mailto:janice.louie@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f99a63daa440401389225bcc93dec198-Curtis Chan
mailto:kelly.a.johnson@sfdph.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
mailto:susan.philip@sfdph.org
mailto:godfred.masinde@sfdph.org
mailto:sabrina.alonso@sfdph.org
mailto:amie.dubois@sfdph.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=931bf2b00cd743f494734faa8a15efb2-Tomas Aragon
mailto:izbepireport@cdph.ca.gov

CDPH Science Branch Update for LHD 2/27/20

[bookmark: _GoBack](FYI I generally did not take repeat notes of identical things said on same call on 2/20 CDPH LHD call)

Update: Concern for community transmission

· Resident of Solano and Sacramento County

Agenda

· Epi

· Returning Traveler

· New PUI Definition

· Lab Testing

· Infxn Control in Healthcare

Epi/Surveillance – Erin Murray

· AS of 4pm 2/25: 445 tested or approved for testing in US

· 14 were positive

· 12 are travel related

· 2 from person to person transmission

· 45 repatriated to US

· 3 from Wuhan

· 42 from Diamond Princess

· Newest Solano case not included

· 218 tested in CA or approved for testing

· 33 were positive

· 7 travel associated

· 1 person to person among close contact

· 1 community acquired

· 2 from Wuhan repatriated

· 22 from Diamond Princess

· All have been adults, 4 cleared from isolation

· Use CalREDIE to report cases

· If a contact of a positive case becomes a PUI or a confirmed case, create a NEW profile for that person

· CDC has new PUI form

· 2 pages, more about symptoms, exposures, how PUI was identified

· Upload form into CalREDIE and email form to CDC

· Testing: get nCoV ID (formerly PUI ID)

· CDC report result through ?DECIPHER system

· CDPH is creating a website to generate a unique nCOV ID. Will give instructions on how to get access to this

· Looking for 5 local health jurisdictions to test WEBSITE. If we’d like to volunteer to test website, email izbepireport@cdph.ca.gov

Returning Traveler

· CA has received notices of 9380 returning travelers. Most reported to 49 LHD. Quality and comprehensiveness continue to be challenging

· 300 presumptive CA travelers unassigned to LHD

· No current plans to designate additional countries for monitoring of returning travelers. Community transmission in other countries not at the level of magnitude of China

· PUI definition updated to include other countries (see below)

· Medium risk asymptomatic traveler ok to travel but cautioned against it bc they may develop symptoms while traveling and then be quarantined (this rec hasn’t changed, they’re just repeating)

· Starting 2/28, booklets will be provided to every traveler from China at the end of screening process at airports. Booklets will contain info on:

· How to perform self monitoring

· 14 day log sheet

· Instructions to contact LHD if symptomatic

· They will NOT be providing thermometers

Updated PUI Definition (added Iran, Italy, Japan, and South Korea as relevant epi risk)

[image: ]



Lab

· Lab

· VDRL will now be able to test for COVID-19 with a turnaround time of 48 hours

· PUI # (nCoV #) given by CDC still required

· Current VDRL testing criteria:

· Pt has met CDC criteria for PUI AND

· A unique ID number has been assigned by CDC AND

· Ppl are NEW PUIs that have not tested pos

· Specimens

· OP or NP swabs in viral transport medium

· Put in SEPARATE viles

· Sputum only if pt has productive cough

· Submitting to VDRL

· Call VDRL 510-307-8585 if we’re going to submit a sample

· Use general submission form on their website

· They will send out guidance of this testing in the next few days

Healthcare Infxn Control – Janice Kim

· New CDC Infxn Control FAQ including what PPE should be worn by ppl transporting confirmed COVID-19 or PUI case

· Document whether healthcare worker was ill while taking care of pt

· If COVID-19 pt confirmed, all exposed HCW need to be assessed for sx

Jackie Hopkins, San Diego

· Will CAHAN Alert be issued for new PUI criteria? Yes

Dr. Mohammed

· What info do we have on infected children? China published over 7200 cases. Kids were u

· 1 death of someone between age of 10-15 (or maybe they said 18)

Ruth

· What is official guidance on masks. There is no recommendation to wear masks.

Rachael Wreath

· Is VDRL testing for ppl beyond Travis Airbase cohort? Yes

Rita Nguyen

· Are there plans for guidance for home care providers such as home nursing, IHSS/workers that assist with ADLS, food delivery when there is more concern for community transmission? Not yet, it’s in the queue of things they’re developing

Curtis Chan

· Is there plan for updated school guidance? Yes they’re working on it

Robert

· Do we know anything about effect of pregnant women? Not a lot of info yet

Roxanne, Butte County

· For ppl who meet PUI criteria, first call CDC for PUI ID number. Permission is granted from CDPH (don’t need to get permission from CDC)

Janice Louie, SF

· Can we use VDRL lab now? Yes. Pts have to meet criteria .













Footnotes to PUI criteria:

1Fever may be subjective or confirmed

2For healthcare personnel, testing may be considered if there has been exposure to a person with suspected COVID-19 without laboratory confirmation

3Close contact is defined as—

a) being within approximately 6 feet (2 meters) of a COVID-19 case for a prolonged period of time; close contact can occur while caring for, living with, visiting, or sharing a healthcare waiting area or room with a COVID-19 case

– or –

b) having direct contact with infectious secretions of a COVID-19 case (e.g., being coughed on)

If such contact occurs while not wearing recommended personal protective equipment or PPE (e.g., gowns, gloves, NIOSH-certified disposable N95 respirator, eye protection), criteria for PUI consideration are met.

See CDC’s updated Interim Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations for Patients with Confirmed COVID-19 or Persons Under Investigation for COVID-19 in Healthcare Settings.

Data to inform the definition of close contact are limited. Considerations when assessing close contact include the duration of exposure (e.g., longer exposure time likely increases exposure risk) and the clinical symptoms of the person with COVID-19 (e.g., coughing likely increases exposure risk as does exposure to a severely ill patient). Special consideration should be given to healthcare personnel exposed in healthcare settings as described in CDC’s Interim U.S. Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a Healthcare Setting to Patients with COVID-19.

4Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of COVID-19 may not be possible for travelers or persons caring for COVID-19 patients in other countries.

5Affected areas are defined as geographic regions where sustained community transmission has been identified. Relevant affected areas will be defined as a country with at least a CDC Level 2 Travel Health Notice. See all COVID-19 Travel Health Notices.

6 Category includes single or clusters of patients with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g., pneumonia, ARDS) of unknown etiology in which COVID-19 is being considered.
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Last updated February 26, 2020
« China

* Iran

o Italy

o Japan

* South Korea

See all COVID-19 Travel Health Notices.







Clinical Features & Epidemiologic Risk

Fever: or signsfsymptoms of lower respiratory AND  Any person, including health care

iliness fe.g. cough or shortness of breath) warkerss, who has had close contact?
with a laboratory-confirmed? COVID-19
patient within 14 days of symptom
onset

Feverl and signsfsymptoms of a lower AND A history of travel from affected
respiratory illness (e.g., cough or shortness of geographic areas? (see below) within
breath) requiring hospitalization 14 days of symptom onset

Feverl with sevare acute lower respiratory ANMD Mo source of exposure has been
ilness {e.z., pneumonta, ARDS) requiring identified

hospitalization® and without alternative
explanatory diagnosis (e.g. influenzal

Affected Geographic Areas with Widespread or Sustained Community
Transmission
Last updated February 26, 2020

* China
® |ran
* [taly
* |apan

* Spouth Korea

See all COVID-19 Travel Health Motices.

Lab

VDRL will now be able to test for COVID-19 with a turnaround time of 48 hours
PUI # (nCoV #) given by CDC still required
Current VDRL testing criteria:
= Pt has met CDC criteria for PUI AND
= A unique ID number has been assigned by CDC AND
= Ppl are NEW PUIs that have not tested pos
e Call VDRL 510-307-8585 if we’re going to submit a sample
o Use general submission form on their website
o They will send out guidance of this testing in the next few days
¢ For ppl who meet PUI criteria, first call CDC for PUI ID number. Permission is granted from
CDPH (don’t need to get permission from CDC)

Footnotes to PUI criteria:

"Fever may be subjective or confirmed

°For healthcare personnel, testing may be considered if there has been exposure to a person with suspected COVID-19
without laboratory confirmation

*Close contact is defined as—

a) being within approximately 6 feet (2 meters) of a COVID-19 case for a prolonged period of time; close contact can
occur while caring for, living with, visiting, or sharing a healthcare waiting area or room with a COVID-19 case

—or—

b) having direct contact with infectious secretions of a COVID-19 case (e.g., being coughed on)

If such contact occurs while not wearing recommended personal protective equipment or PPE (e.g., gowns, gloves,



NIOSH-certified disposable N95 respirator, eye protection), criteria for PUI consideration are met.

See CDC's updated Interim Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations for Patients with Confirmed COVID-19 or
Persons Under Investigation for COVID-19 in Healthcare Settings.

Data to inform the definition of close contact are limited. Considerations when assessing close contact include the
duration of exposure (e.g., longer exposure time likely increases exposure risk) and the clinical symptoms of the person
with COVID-19 (e.g., coughing likely increases exposure risk as does exposure to a severely ill patient). Special
consideration should be given to healthcare personnel exposed in healthcare settings as described in CDC's Interim U.S.
Guidance for Risk Assessment and Public Health Management of Healthcare Personnel with Potential Exposure in a
Healthcare Setting to Patients with COVID-19.

“Documentation of laboratory-confirmation of COVID-19 may not be possible for travelers or persons caring for COVID-
19 patients in other countries.

“Affected areas are defined as geographic regions where sustained community transmission has been identified. Relevant
affected areas will be defined as a country with at least a CDC Level 2 Travel Health Notice. See all COVID-19 Travel
Health Notices.

® Category includes single or clusters of patients with severe acute lower respiratory illness (e.g., pneumonia, ARDS) of
unknown etiology in which COVID-19 is being considered.

3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k %k %k %k %k >k >k >k 3k 3k sk 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k %k %k %k k k

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
Subject: Updated CDC COVID-19 Guidance: Evaluating and Reporting Persons Under Investigation (PUI)
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 1:29:02 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Colleagues:
CDC has posted updated Criteria to Guide Evaluation of PUI for COVID-19.

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/clinical-criteria.html

Revisions were made on February 27, 2020, to reflect the following:

Information updated in the “Criteria to Guide Evaluation of PUI for COVID-19” section.

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

From: Enanoria, Wayne (DPH)

To: Bobba, Naveena (DPH); Philip, Susan (DPH); Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Kirian, Michelle; Ongpin, Melissa (DPH)
Subject: Fw: Updated PUI criteria now live on CDC website

Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 12:34:52 PM

FYI,

Wayne

Wayne Enanoria, MPH, PhD (my pronouns: he/him/his)

Director, Applied Research, Community Health Epidemiology, & Surveillance (ARCHES)
Chief Public Health Informatics Officer, Population Health Division

San Francisco Department of Public Health

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 500

San Francisco, CA 94102

Phone: (628) 217-6356

Email: Wayne.Enanoria@sfdph.org

NOTICE: This message and attachments may contain confidential or privileged information. If you are not the
intended recipient, disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the information is prohibited. Notify the sender
immediately and delete all information.

From: Marcelle Layton <mlayton@health.nyc.gov>
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 12:16 PM

To: Marcelle Layton <mlayton@health.nyc.gov>
Subject: Updated PUI criteria now live on CDC website

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Sent from the New York City Department of Health & Mental Hygiene. This email and any
files transmitted with it may contain confidential information and are intended solely for the
use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This footnote also confirms that
this email message has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.
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From: Chrissie Juliano

To: Allison Arwady; Barbara Ferrer; Bob McDonald; Colfax, Grant (DPH); Dawn Emerick (SAMHD); Denise Fair
(faird@detroitmi.gov); Dzirasa, Letitia; Fermin Leguen; Gibbie Harris; Gretchen Musicant
(Gretchen.Musicant@minneapolismn.gov); Jeff Duchin - Public Health - Seattle & King County
(jeff.duchin@kingcounty.gov); Kelly Colopy (kelly.colo longbeach.gov); Kimi Watkins-Tartt ; LaQuandra
Nesbitt; Marcy Flanagan (Marcy.Flanagan@maricopa.gov); Merle R. Gordon; Muntu Davis ; Mysheika Roberts ;
Oxiris Barbot; Patty Hayes; Phil Huang; Rachael Banks (rachael.m.banks@multco.us); Rex Archer ; Rita Nieves;
Sara Cody - Santa Clara County Public Health Department (sara.cod hd.sccgov.org); Stephanie Hayden
(Stephanie.Hayden@austintexas.gov); Stephen Williams; Thomas Farley ; Aragon, Tomas (DPH); Villalta, Yesenia
D; Vinny Taneja - Tarrant County Health Department (vtaneja@tarrantcounty.com); Wilma Wooten

Cc: Gabrielle Nichols

Subject: FW: Syndromic Surveillance Data Sharing for COVID-19
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2020 11:12:38 AM
Attachments: COVID19Sharing.bng

FW Request to Share Data for Novel Coronavirus Response.msg

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Jose mentioned this at our meeting on Tuesday. | will add it to the meeting notes but in the interest
of getting it out, sending to y’all directly.

Chrissie Juliano, MPP
Executive Director

Big Cities Health Coalition | @BigCitiesHealth

Desk Phone: 301-664-2989

7501 Wisconsin Ave., Ste. 1310E
Bethesda, MD 20814

From: Lansang Tran, Rhea Lanee (CDC/DDPHSIS/CSTLTS/OD) <ngll@cdc.gov>
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 1:59 PM

To: Chrissie Juliano <juliano@bigcitieshealth.org>

Subject: Syndromic Surveillance Data Sharing for COVID-19

Hi Chrissie,

Please see the two attachments regarding syndromic data sharing for COVID-19. Please share with
the Big Cities members as you see fit. It was encouraging to see so much and interest and support;
we hope they sign up at their earliest convenience.

Thank you!

Respectfully,

Rhea-Lanee Lansang Tran, MPH, CHES
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COVID19 Data Sharing - NSSP ESSENCE

Sharing
Interested
L Not Sharing
Hawaii \D Not Submitting to NSSP-Biosense




FW: Request to Share Data for Novel Coronavirus Response

		From

		Yoon, Paula (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS)

		To

		Yoon, Paula (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS)

		Recipients

		pay3@cdc.gov



From: nssp (CDC) <nssp@cdc.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 8:58 AM
To: nssp (CDC) <nssp@cdc.gov>
Cc: Coletta, Michael A. (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) <mac0@cdc.gov>; Davis, Alan (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) <ald7@cdc.gov>; Rodgers, Loren E. (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) <izj8@cdc.gov>; Worlund, Max (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) (CTR) <zqy3@cdc.gov>; Kommareddy, Laxma (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) (CTR) <vyz1@cdc.gov>
Subject: Request to Share Data for Novel Coronavirus Response



 



Dear Colleagues, 



 



As you know, NSSP staff have been working closely with our community in order to develop queries and methods for using syndromic data to bolster surveillance for novel Coronavirus (COVID-19). We would like to request your assistance and cooperation by sharing data with selected CDC partners.



 



We established a new data sharing group in the Access & Management Center (AMC) called “Novel_Coronavirus”, and we ask that you consider partnering with us by sharing data details for the “patient location” and “facility location” datasets. This will enable CDC staff to work with you and refine the queries that are in development, test dashboards to be used by state and local partners, and develop analytic approaches that will be useful if nCoV transmission becomes widespread in the US.  



 



As always, we will seek your input and share results with you and won’t publish or discuss anything externally about your data without your approval.  If you decide that sharing your line level data is not an option, please contact us so we can discuss other ways to work together on this.



 



In addition, the NSSP team has created a dedicated Slack channel within the Health Surveillance workspace, and >100 members have already joined. This channel has enabled open communication and collaboration related to syndromic querying, investigations, and general surveillance for the novel coronavirus outbreak. If you are interested in becoming a part of the conversation, please email nssp@cdc.gov to be added.  There has already been some helpful coordination and sharing of tools, so please take a look if you haven't already!



 



Thanks so much for your leadership in our Community of Practice and for your willingness to consider our request.  Please let us know of your decision at your earliest convenience. Questions or responses can be directed to nssp@cdc.gov



 



Sincerely,



 



NSSP Surveillance Team
nssp@cdc.gov 
http://support.syndromicsurveillance.org
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Special Assistant to the CSTLTS Director

Office of the Director

Center for State, Tribal, Local, and Territorial Support
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Desk phone: (404) 498-1045

Work cell: (404) 310-4015

From: Yoon, Paula (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/DHIS) <pay3@cdc.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2020 12:38:31 PM

Jose,

Attached is the latest map and the email that went out to SyS colleagues in states about the data
sharing collaboration. Feel free to share these materials as needed.

Thank you again for all of your help with this!

Paula


mailto:pay3@cdc.gov

